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Providing clinically valuable healthcare
products to people around the world
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Our vision

To be aleading international healthcare
business built around products which
are clinically valuable to patients.

We will be both the partner and

emplover of choice

Our mission

To create partnerships that unlock
potential for brands, businesses and
people around the world.

Our purpose

Our purpose is to make a difference to
people’s lives through making a range of
clinically voluable healtheare products
available to consumers and patients
around the world.

We achieve this through working together
as one global team, to create partnerships
that unleck potentiol for brands, businesses
and people, enabling us to identify and
respond to user demand as the markets

in which we operate continue to grow.

Responsible business

We are committed to operating our
business in an ethical and sustainable way,
having regard to the interests of all our
stakeholders — our customers, suppliers,
business partners and employees.

We recognise that everything we do

has an impact on the natural environment
and on the people and communities within
it and we are committed to looking for
ways to reduce curimpoct in these areas
to ensure a better future for all.

Contents

Cverview Governance Financial Statements Additional Information

2019 Highlights 01 Chairman’s Introduction 52 _Independent Auditor's Report 78 _u",?uq,if,?d,ln[?rt':'a'j_c'" a2
Ata Glance 02 to Governance Consolido!eﬂ ‘|ncomre $m|gmepf 84 VFirveﬂqu‘r Summgr;{ o 133
o . Board of Direcfors 54 Consﬁhdcfed Stciémenf H Advisors oné'g;;y Service Providers ‘ 134
Strategic Report QCA Code Compliance 56 ol Comprehensive Income 8 ij}‘.c;'n'u;)'{ -S-;c;iev‘";elr;i ' ’ ‘-‘35
Investment Case 06 Nomination Committes Report 42 Consolidated Botance Sheet 84 G\ossnry C 136
Chief Executive’s Q&a 08  Auditand Risk Committee Report 43 Company Bolonce Sheet 87 ’

Ou{_r_MqueV; o ) 12 Remuneruh’c;n Committee Report 65 Conso.lwdcled Statement of Changes g8

Qur Business Model 14 Disectors’ Report 73 in Equity 7

Stokeholder Engagement 146 S:g::ﬂ;i?:?z:;?; 89

Qur Sirotegy 20 Consolidated and Company %0

Strategy in Action 22 Cash Flow Statements

Chieﬁ Executive’s R_ewew 3¢ Notes to the Fingneial -Smlerpems g1

Responsible Business 34

lFincnc‘iaI Re;iew 38

krsk Mo;ogemenf and Vlme;nul Coni‘r.c.ﬂs 42 For more informaton visit

Qur Principal Risks un‘d Uncertginties 44 alfiancepharmaceuticals.cam

Alliance Pharma ple - Annuao! Report and Accounts 2019



2019 Financial Highlights

See-through Revenue®

£144.3m +16%

2019 £144.3m
2018 £124 Qm
2017 £101 &m

20— + 57 5

Reported Profit Before Tax

£31.1Tm +36%
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Statutary Revenue

£135.6m +15%
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Underlying Basic EP§**

5.09p +12%
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£135.6m

Underlying Profit Before Tax

£32.9m +17%
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£32.9m
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2016 £22 2m

Reported Basic EPS

4.80p +31%
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2017
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*  Non-IFRS alterngtive performance measures {see nate 33] See-through revenue includes sales fram Mizoral as if they had been invoiced by Alliance For stotutary accounting purposes the product

margin on Nizaral sales is ineluded within Revenue, in line with [FRS 15

** The 2017 meosure refers to the Underlying Adusted Basic EPS as disclosed inthe 2017 Annuol Report which was odjusted 1o normalise the impact of significant changes in overseas lax rates

Overview

+ See-through revenyes up 16% at £144 3m
{2018, £124m), on both a reported end

constant currency basis, in line with expectations.

- Conlinved strong performance from

Internaticnal Star and other consumer brands,

led by Kelo-cote™.

- Internotional sales saw anather year of strong

growth.

- Includes full year's revenues from Nizoral™

(under Johnson & Johnson management).

- Excluding acquisitions, year an year revenue
incredsed 10% in 2019 (up B% on a constant

currehcy basis]

= Statutory revenues up 15%, to £135.6m
{2018: £118.2m).

+ Underlying EBITDAY up 22% 10 £39.4m
{2018: £32 4m).

» Underlying profit befare tax up 17% to £32.9m

{2018: £28.1m), reported profit befare tax up 36%

to £31.7m (2018 £22.6m).

* Good progress made with the Nizoral transition
ond the enhancement of our Asia Pacific

operations, revenues in line with expectations.

+ Continved good growth from our US operation,

with year on year revenues up 11%

* UK and EU licensing rights to Xonvea™ returned.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Group
booked non-underlying inventory provisions and
associaled restructuring costs of £1.9m in 2019;
the total non-underlying loss on disposa! being
£1.7m. £0 25m of the £2m milestone payments
made to date hove already been repaid, with the
balance to be repaid in 2020.

* Continyed strong cash generation, with free cash
flow over 80% higher than in the previous year,
and levercge falling to 1 48x from 2.33x ot the
end of 2018.

* The Board has decided not to propose a final

dividend for FY2Z019 to prudently preserve cash in

light of the COVID-19 pondemic.
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AT A GLANCE

We are an international

healthcare group, supplying
a range of clinically valuable

products to people around

the world.

Who we are

Founded in the UK over 20

years ago, we have grown both
our geographic reach and our
product range and now market
over 20 consumer healthcare and
pharmaceutical products in aver
100 countries worldwide.

What we do

All cur products have an established
clinical heritage - many can trace their
origins back several decades.

Qutsourcing all our manufacturing,
warehousing ond logistics activities enables
us to remain asset-light and focus on

what we do best — bringing our specialist
expertise to the morketing and regulatory
management of our products, so as to
ensure that they can be made available

to the widest range of people who could
potentially benefit from them, wherever
they may be located.

We continue to look to enhance our
product portfolio through making
carefully selected acquisitions.

Our values

Performance
Our high performing people
continually drive business success

Realism
We set stretching goals and targets
which we believe are achievable

Accountability
We take responsibility and
deliver what we promise

Allionce Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

How we do it

We have built a successful business with a
strang collaborative culture. We recognise
that our relevance and value is in how we
work together, both with our colleagues
and with our customers, suppliers and

oll other external stakeholders. Our
entrepreneurial spirit and our care values
of performance, realism, accountability,
integrity, skill and entrepreneusship remain
at the heart of how we engage with each
other and conduct our business.

See more in our business model on page 14

Integrity
We build trust in all our relationships
through openness and fairness

skill
We recruit highly skilled pecple
and develop their talents to the full

Entrepreneurship
Our people think of the business
as if it was their own



Where we operate

We currently employ over

200 people, located in

ten offices around the globe.

QOur international presence

is further enhanced by an

extensive network of distributors
enabling us to serve customers in
more than 100 countries worldwide.

. Country with international office

. Distnbutor relahonships

] 100+ 10

Team Countries Offices

200+

People

2019 see-through revenue by geography

- UK & ROI Other International
£51.4m £22.8m

13607 6"
Mainland Evrope us
£32.5m £6.1m
23 4

Asia Pacific incl. China
£31.4m

2200

Employees by location

"'I

UK & ROI

139

Mainland Europe

40

Asia Pacific

25

Total

210
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INVESTMENT CASE

Our established business partnerships, strong
collaborative culture and clearly articulated
strategy have enabled us to deliver an
impressive track record of growth, creating
sustainable value for our shareholders and
other stakeholders. We are committed to
leveraging these capabilities in an ethical and
responsible way as we continue our growth
trajectory in pursuance of our purposc.

Six reasons to invest in Alliance Pharma plc

Recognised Clearly articulated strategy Diversified portfolio creates a
expertise ond proven business model platform for sustainable growth
We are a highly capable business, with a We have a clearly articulated strategy Qur diversified portfolio of around
distinctive ‘can do’ culture and deep sectar  for delivering sustainable business growth 90 brands, spanning both consumer
experlise in the management of many which is well understood both within healthcare and pharmaceuticals across
types of product, from pharmaceuticals to  and outside the business. This centres on multiple therapy areas and geogrephies
medical devices, faod supplements and maximising the potential of our brands, helps to reduces risk and we have become
traditional herbal remedies, across multiple  particularly our consumer healthcare adept at managing both the complexity
geographies. We also have an established  brands, to generate organic growth, and and the opportunities this creates for us.
network of experts we can call onto cover  then supplementing this with carefully
any requirements for additional specialist selected acquisitions. 2019 see-through revenue by product type
knowledge, das needed. Consumer healthcare products
Our business model is well-established and £790m
centres around the following key activities: -
P 87 employees in our Scientific Affairs P Maintaining our cash-generative o N
d Operations team heritage pharmaceutical products, P ption madicines
o £65.3m

whilst investing behind selected brands,
primarily our consumer healthcare
brands, to drive organic growth

» 50 employees in cur global
Commercial teams

43

. . 2019 see-through revenue by brand
P Reinvesting the cash generated fram our

trading activities in growing our existing
brands, in paying down debt and

International Star brands

£66.0m

funding further acquisitions 46
P Selectively identifying, acquiring Local brands
i i ts into
and |ntegr§hng hew Produc s £78.3m
our portfolio, to provide additienal o
54
opportunities for growth
For more informaotion see page 34 Formare on our strategy see page 20 For more information see page 30

For more on cur business model see page 14

06 | Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Strong financial
performance

We are a highly profitable and cash
generative business, with an established
track-record of delivering underlying

profif growth and eHQcﬁvely managing
our borrowing commitments, enab|ing us
to borrow to fund acquisitions and then
rapidly de-lever, Our profitability and cash
generation capabilities are reflected in the
dividend payments ta our shareholders,
which have increased by at least 10% p.a.

every year for the past nine years [to 2018).

P Progressive dividend policy

Highly profitable and cash generative,
which supperts deal flow and growth

P 15 acquisitions in the pastten years

Ethical business
commitments

We are committed to operating our
business in an ethical and sustainable way,
having regard to the interests of all our
stakeholders — our customers, suppliers,
business partners and employees. We
recognise that everything we do has an
impact on the natural environment and on
the people and communities within it and
we are committed to looking for ways to
reduce ourimpact in these areas to ensure
a better future for all.

Experienced
leadership team

Our leadership team has a collective
length of service of more than 45 years,
all members having held senior leadership
positions since their respective dates of
joining the business and having built up

o wealth of relevant experience in other
businesses prior to this,

For more mformation see page 38

For more infarmation se¢ poge 34

Far more information tee page 53
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S Q&A

Alliance Chief Executive
Peter Butterfield answers
some key questions on the
business’s operations and

outlook.

The current Alliance business looks

very different now to how it did a few
years ago - what's changed and what's
been the driver behind these changes?

The business has undergone a periad of transformation over the
past four years — it’s evolved to become much more consumer-
focused, with over half our revenues now derived from aur
consumer healthcare brands, and has significantly broadened its
geographic reach, with more than 60% of our sales now coming
from international markets, From being a predominantly UK-
based business, we now have an established trading presence in
nine countries around the world.

These changes have been made to move the business closer to
our vision of being a leading international healthcare business
built around products which are clinically valuable to patients.
We've also been proactive in evolving the compaosition of our
Board, so we continue to be equipped to take advantage of
opportunities and address new challenges associated with this
phase in the Group's development.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annuai Report and Accounts 2019

Which of the Group's achievements
are you most proud of in 20192

I'm pleased to say that the Group successfully achieved much
of what it set outto do in 2019 - we've grown see-through
revenues by 16% {ond reported revenues by 15%), with

some fantastic growth coming through from Kelo-cote, as
we've continued to invest behind this key brand. We've made
substantial progress with the Nizoral transition and the scaling-
up of our Asia Pacific operations and seen good growth
continuing to come through from our US business.

The level of free cash flow which we've been able to generate
this year, at £29.1m is more than 80% up on that achieved in
2018, with cash generated from operations up almast 50%.
This has allowed us to pay dewn our debt and reduce our
leverage to below 1.5x — for the first time since 2013. This,
together with the enhanced credit facilities we put in place in
2019, leaves us very well placed to make further acquisitions.
What I'm most proud of though is maintaining our high
employee engagement as the business continues to grow,
both geographically and in scale.



What's the hardest decision
you had to make in 20192

Returning the UK and EU licensing rights to Xonvea was a
purﬁcu|ur|y difficult decision for us, especially given the
internal restructuring that this involved in our sales team.
However we are pleased that we managed to reach an
agreement with Duchesnay Inc (the licensor} which both
ensures the return of the original milestone payments to
Alliance and more importantly, enables this landmark product
to continue to be made availabie to patients and clinicians in
the UK, pending the appointment of a new licensor. | think this
is o testament to the good working relationship we have built
up between our respective businesses over the past five years.

Whilst it was by no means an easy decision, we needed

to do what was right for the business in the longer term. By
returning the rights to Xenvea, we have reduced uncertainty
in the business, and allowed invesiment to be focused on our
growing consumer healthcare portfolio and the continued
expansion of our international business.

See more in the Chief Execulive's Review on page 30

What are the Group's
priorities for 20202

On top of driving organic growth and selective acquisitions,
one of our key operational priorities for the Group in 2020 will
be on progressing the implementation of our ERP system, This
project has taken longer than we originally anticipated, and it
will be good to start to see some real business benefits coming
out of this investment — particularly given the ability of these
systems to support our future growth ambitions,

We will also be focusing on the roll-out of our marketing
excellence programme, which aims to ensure that an
appropriate leve! of support is provided for our consumer
brands, both on a global and local level.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S G&A CONTINUED

What most excites you
about the future®

We've built a great platform, with some leading products
and filled it with great people. This bodes well for the future.
I'm excited by the potential that still exists to be realised

from a number of our larger consumer brands — in particular
Kelo-cote, and look forward ta the teansitionat arrangements
for Nizoral starting to fall away during 2020, enabling

us to take greater control of the deve|opmenf of this well-
established brand.

With our relatively low debt levels and strong cash generation,
we are now very well placed to take on the challenge of

another acquisition, as and when a suitable opportunity arises.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Your employees are one of your major
assets — how do you ensure that you
attract, develop and retain the best?

Our employees are one of our most important assets and the
great results we have delivered this year bears testament to
the combined efforts of our team of colleagues around the
globe. We aim to attract and retcin the very best healthcare
and business professionals, to reward them well and to create
great apportunities for their ongoing career development,
through engaging in fulfilling and frequently challenging
wark. Through our annual share option award scheme, all of
Alliance’s employees get to share in the success of the business,
giving them another reason to ‘go the extra mile’ to deliver
great performance.

We are also committed to nurturing early-stage talent, be it
recent graduates or apprentices, giving them the opportunity
to learn and grow - both in a professional and a personal
capacity - in the foundationol stage of their careers.

Case study: MacuShield Chewables

One of the most common questions we were asked by
MacuShield consumers was whether there was another way the
product could be taken, Many of the brand’s consumers suffer
from dysphagia (inability to swallow), which make swallowing
traditional capsules particularly challenging for them.

In response to this, we assembled a cross-functional team

to look ot developing an alternative presentation. Working
collaboratively with our ingredient suppliers and our CMO we
developed a chewable tablet which contains the same active
ingredients as the traditional capsule.

MocuShield Chewables were launched in the UK in October
2019 making MacuShield among the first eye health brands in
Europe to offer alternative formats to the traditional capsule —
another example of how we have evolved our product to better
meef the needs of cur customers.

1.5m 24 12

packs of MacuShield
sold in 2019

Number of countries
in which MacuShield
is currently sold

registrations
currently in progress



What is it thats unique about
the culture at Alliance?

This is something we've spent fime
looking at over the past couple of years,
and initially it's quite hard to put your
finger on. However, | think it comes
down to o few key ingredients. First and
foremosf, we've created an extremely
collegiate appreach within the business.
This is evident when you walk through
the door of any of our offices. Secondly,
having completed 15 acquisitions over
the past ten years, the organisation is
well versed in change management

and frankly no-one here expects things
to stay the same for very long. Finally,
there's the innate drive for performance,
with employees at all {evels in the
business benefiting from this through
participation in the Group's share
option scheme.

What impact is COVID-19 likely to have on the business
and what steps are you taking to mitigate this?

As a diversified global business, we
have been paying close attention to the
COVID-19 pandemic and our position
on this remains as announced on

23 March 2020.

We have good control of our cost

base and will continue to manage our
levels of discretionary spend carefylly
to help mitigate the potential impact of
any reduction in revenue as a result of

COVID-19.

We have also decided it would be
prudent at this time to preserve cash and
therefore have taken the decision not to
propose a final dividend for year ended
31 December 2019, We will provide
further updates ot our Annual General
Meeting {'"AGM’) in May, in our H1
trading update in July and at other
times as appropriate.

Notwithstanding the current uncertainty
created by COVID-19, our underlying
business remains resilient, with strong
financials, good liquidity and covenant
headrocem, and we look forward to
continuing our poth of growth in the
years ohead.
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OUR MARKETS

The changing landscape
of the global market for
consumer healthcare.

Global market overview - trends in consumer healthcare

THE GLOBAL MARKET FOR CONSUMER HEALTHCARE IS BEING DRIVEN BY SEVERAL KEY TRENDS:

Increasing life expectancy

According to the World Health Organisation, global average life
expectancy increased by 5.5 years between 2000 and 2016,
the fastest increase since the 19605 - a trend which is expected
to continue, with global life expectancy expected to increase by
afurther 4.4 years by 2040 and life expectancies in 59 countries
including China prajected to exceed 80 years.

With increasing longevity and ageing populations comes an
increosed demand for healthcare - particularly for products
which target conditions typically experienced in later life.

Increasing prosperity, self-care and the
wellness movement

Levels of prosperity are also rising in many parts of the world,
particularly in developing countries, creating a greater number of

consumers who can afford to spend money on non-essential items.

The shift towards self-medication using over the counter (OTC)
products, rather than relying on prescription medicines, and an
increased tocus on personal wellbeing and on prevention rather
than cure, are alsa helping to shape the landscape for consumer
healthcare praducts.

Digital healthcare and the empowerment of
patients and consumers

Whilst many industries have fully embraced digital marketing,

the healthcare industry has been slow to adopt digital strategies.
However, as most consumers, potients and corers are now aclive
online and with consumers, especially younger ones, increasingly
turning to online resources to self-diagnose and discover solutions
to their health concerns, itis crucial that healthcare brands have
an effective digital strategy, with o strong pressnce on search
engines and engogement on social media, and provide quality
and informative educational centent, so individuals can make
informed choices,

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

In todoy's increasingly digital world, consumers as prospective
potients are now octive partners in their healthcare journey.

They no longer simply accept what they are told by healthcare
professionals [doctors, pharmacists, nurses, efc.) and can carry
out extensive research online, making them mare knowledgeable
about the services they receive and the products they use.

According to recent research:?

/2%

of global internet users have locked online for health
information, including treatments and procedures,
symptoms, conditions or diseases in the past year

/7%

of consumers use sesarch engines to start their research
as well as other channels such as social media

A0%+

of consumers use social media, with Facebook
being the main platform

45%

of consumers watched an online video on YouTube
[e.g. patient testimonials, patient-generated content)

1. Forecasting life expeciancy, years of life tost, and vll-cause ond cause-specific mortalty for
250 causes of death. reference and glternative scenarios for 2016-40for 195 counines and
territories, The Lancey, 2018

2. How digital marketing is impacting the healthcare indusiry, Janwary 2019, WBS

3 Nicholes Holl Digital end e-commerce report, December 2019



The growth of e-commerce

The rapid expansion of e-commerce sales is being fuelled by
online discounting, the emergence of high-speed mobile data,
and increasingly secure and speedy payment methods, all of
which are leading consumers to embrace the canvenience of
online purchases. Already hugely important in the major markets
of Ching, USA, lapan and Germany, online sales are expanding
rapidly in all markets where permitted.

E-commerce is currently the fastest-growing sales channel in
consumer healthcare. Whilst offline remains the dominant channel,
online sales are growing at a much faster rate and will see their
share of the total consumer health market rise incrementally over
the next few years. Currently accounting for 9% of all consumer
healthcare sales globally, this figure is expected to reach 16% in
the next ten years.”

In the USA, one of the largest e-commerce markets globally,
pharmacy, health and beauty products are among the most
purchased items online, according to a recent e-commerce survey.’

The challenges posed by increasing regulatory scrutiny

Regulatory authorities like the Medicines and Healthcare products
Regulatory Agency ['MHRA'} in the UK and the Faod and Drug
Administration {'FDA’) in the United States have increased their
level of scrutiny of medicines, in terms of safety and efficacy, in
recent years. Some ingredients which have been switched from
Prescription to OTC status have been reclassified due to safety
concerns. This has meant that companies who develop novel
formylations or new chemical entities 'NCEs’) have experienced
much longer drug approval times, helping to maintain the demand
for older, more established products.

The opportunity for Alliance

Qur consumer healthcare products currently account for around
55% of our revenues, the remainder coming from our prescription
medicine products,

In the consumer healthcare sector, we are positioning curselves
to take advantage of future growth opportunities through
increasingly focusing our marketing investment on digital content
and communication, ensuring we develop engaging activity
which drives business growth through this channel - prioritising
the growth of Kele-cote for example using ¢-commerce
platforms like Tmall in Chino and Amazon in the UK.

Our pharma heritage means we have significant experience of
operating in the highly regulated environment of prescription
medicines, leaving us well placed to deal with the challenge of
increased regulation that is now impacting consumer healthcare
products — for example medical devices, which are currently
facing increased regulation under the MDR in the EU. We
continue to upskill our medical and regulatory capabilities

to support us in this as needed.

Case study: Focus on China

In Ching, the retail medicines market grew by 9% from 2017
to 2018 from RMB400.3 billion {£45.7 billion) in 2017 to
RMB437.7 billion (£49.7 billion} in 2018. The penetration rate
of online drug purchase in China has also increased over the
past few years and is now as high as 37.6%, with huge market
development potential. From 2012 to 2016, the number of
online pharmacies in China grew rapidly, with an average
increase of 111 each year. China is a key market for two of our

largest consumer healthcare preducts, Kelo-cote and Nizoral.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We have built a successful
business with a strong
collaborative culture.

Ouvur resources How we create value

People and culture
Sur ded

optmeng busie | nvest

Investing behind sefected brands,
primarily our consumer healthcare
brands, to drive organic growth

Knowledge and expertise

wuwnlements and tadit o

act riult pl aphic,

i Maintain

nrond:

Maintaining our cash-
generative heritage
pharmaceutical products

Underpinned by:

Our purpose

Qur purpose is to make a difference

to peaple's lives through making

a range of clinically valveble
healthcare products avarlable to
consumers and patients around

the world.

We achieve this through working
cemmg the g togethert as cne globalteam, to
T create partnerships that unlock
potential for brands, businesses
and peeple, encbling us to identify
and respond to user demand as

the markets in which we operate

Financial resources

continue to grow.

14 | Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Reinvest

Reinvesting the cash
generated from our
trading activities:

* in growing our
existing brands

* in paying down debt

+ in funding further
acquisitions

Our values

Performance
Qur high performing people continvally
drive business success

Realism
We set stretching goals ond torgets
we believe are achievable

Accountability
We toke responsibility ond deliver
what we promise



Our vision is to be a lcading international healthcare Through our strategy of maximising the potential of our

business, built around products that are clinically existing portfolio of brands and sclectively acquiring new

valuable to patients. products, we look to crecate sustainable value for all our
stakcholders — our shareholders, emploveces, consumers
and paticnts, our supplicrs and partners, healtheare
professionals and our communitics,

The value we create

For our shareholders

O yratehaloe weostrie winsial perferre

whoshiciterm return vig a aderdy ana fone

th for the last nmo ye

Acquire

Selectively identifying, acquiring
and integrating new products into
our portfolio, to provide additional
apportunities for growth

wrcue thy

sofety and

AGt packs sald m 2019

For cur suppliers and partners

prapnher ond g e cantn et Franm tan prosseb abeur bus ness

Integrity
Wa build trust in ail our relationships
through openness and fairmess

cathorcpy oren
Skill
We recrvit highly skilled people and
develop their talents to the full

Entrepreneurship
Qur pecple think of the business as if

it was their own al b

nartub o

See more in responsble business on page 34
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We believe that the continued success of
our business is down to our collaborative
culture and the strong working
relationships we have built up with our
stakeholders - recognising that our
relevance and value is in how we work
together with our customers, suppliers,
and partners to achieve more.

s172 Companies Act 2006

For Alliance, engaging with our stakeholders is an integral part of how we operate as a business - actively seeking te understand
what really metters to our stokeholders and ensuring thot we take this into account in our decision-making, beth at o strategic ond

an operational level. This engagement enables us to continue to make our clinically valuable healthcare products available to people
around the world, through maintaining @ motivated worklorce, dependabtle supply chains, customer confidence in our preducts,
close relationships with healthcare professionals, good returns for our shareholders and social impact in our local communities.

In the table we set out our key stakeholder groups, their material issues and how we engage with them.

Further information on how stakeholder considerations are taken into account by the Board in their decision-making in
accordance with s172 of the Companies Act 2006 is provided in the Governance section.

Our key stakeholders How we engage with them

Shareholders

Maintaining an ¢ and tig Qur principal means of engoging with our shareholders are through:
» Investor roadshows

« Capital markets days

* One-to-one meetings

* Annual Report and Accounts

* Holf year and fuli year trading and results announcements

We engage with all aur employees on a regular basis, primarily thraygh monthly Company
briefings, a bi-annual appraisal process, annual development reviews and employee surveys,
and more informally through a variety of social events and team oway days.

We measure employee engagement through our annual employee engagement survey, the
results of which are shared with and acted on by the Board.

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT CONTINUED

s172 Companies Act 2006 continued

Our key stakeholders

Consumers and patients
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How we engage with them

For cur consumer healthcare praducts, we engcge with consumers via digital channels
[websites, social media), odvertising {across multiple media, including TV, print media and
in-store promotions in pharmacies and retail steres), in addition to providing basic praduct
information as part of cur Medical Information function.

For medicines, our direct engagement with patients is much more limited, due to regulatory
constraints governing promotional activities — although we do provide basic product
information as part of our Medical Informatien function.

We aim 1o work collaboratively with our suppliers to build long-term, mutually beneficial
relationships, so as to assure the continued availability of our products for consumers
and patients.

We hold regular eross-functional meetings with key suppliers throughout the year - both at
our offices and at the manufacturing sites, to review their performance and address cny issues
or concerns they may have.

We are cemmitted to paying our suppliers in line with agreed payment terms.

We see our distributors as trusted business partners and work collaboratively with them o
maximise market opportunities, holding regular meetings fo understand market dynamics and
sales performance, provide product training and address any regulatory or supply issues.
Many of these disiributors have been with the business for many years, o testament to the efforts
of our commercial team, who work hard to maintain these partnering arrangements and ensure
that they continue 1o operate in @ mutually beneficial way.

We engage with HCPs in a variety of ways, frem answering specific questions about our
products, to praviding educational materials and resources in associoted disease areas, fo
acting as a source of scientific and clinical background to enable them to judge the place of our
products in clinical practice, in guidelines and in funding decisions. We also velue the expertise
and advice they can provide as we develop our products and educational materials.

Engagement with the leading cliniciens or KOLs is crucial 1o ensure that our aclivities recognise
their needs and to allow them to act as informed advocates for our products.

We provide support for our local communities through o variety of charity initiatives, from
fundraising, to providing time and expertise, tc providing donations of Christmas gifts and
personal care products.

Our ongeing work with International Health Partners enakles our products to be made
available to those most in need.




Their material issues / What's importont to them

Key metrics for 2019
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OUR STRATEGY

We have a clearly
articulated strategy for
delivering continued
business growth.

Maximising
brand potential

A key component of our strategy is to
maximise the potential of our existing
portfolio of brands, particuiarly those in
the consumer healthcare sector. This could
be by range extension to better meet
evolving consumer demand, extending
our geographical reach through
establishing new distributor relationships,
or engaging in targeted marketing activity
to increase brand awareness, either at a
globat or locat level.

Strategy in action

The opportunity for
Kelo-cote in China

For more information see page 22

Increasing awareness
of Forceval in the UK
For more information see page 24

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Acquiring and

integrating new products

To supplement the organic growth
delivered primarily by our promoted
brands, we also engage in a selective
programme of acquisitions, to refresh our
portfolio, expand aur product range and
take advantage of operating synergies —
both geographic and by therapy areq, to
deliver additional growth.

These may be small product acquisitions
or more substantial strategic acquisitions,
of assets or corporates, but all have one
thing in common - that the target products
are clinically valuable to healthcare
consumers and potients. Qur acquisition
focus currently is on augmenting

our consumer healthcare brands in
international markets.

We have well-developed integration
capabiliies, enabling us to absorb
acquired assets in an appropriate
timeframe, working collaboratively
with the vendor where appropriate.
This is an area where our culture of
working together across functions and
geographies really comes info its own.

Strategy in action

Nizoral transition and
expanding our geographic
presence in Asia Pacific
Formare information see page 26

Investing
in people

We recognise that our people are key
to our success and that great results
can only be achieved through the
combined efforts of our dedicated
team of colleagues across the globe,
our partners and customers, and to
the strong collaborative culture that
we have built within Alliance. We

are committed to ongoing investment
in training and development for

all our employees and to ensuring
that our offices are pleasant and
environmentally friendly places to work,



Acting
responsibly

As an ethical business, we aim to
ensure that we conduet our business

in a way that maximises the value
created for all our stakeholders and are
committed to doing this in a responsible
and sustainable way. As part of this
commitment, we continually evaluate
and develop our business practices

to ensure they remain fit for purpose,

in fulfilment of our mission to create
partnerships that unlock potential for
bronds, businesses and people around
the world.

CSF

Progressin 2019

Our strategy is underpinned by a number of Critical Success Factors ('CSFs’), which
together form the focus for the operational delivery of our strategy — these include:

Focus for 2020

Farmere informatien on cur responsible
business initatives see poge 34

Strategy in action

The social impact of cur
partnership with Smile Train
Fer more information see poge 28

Maintaining a
blended model -
acquisitions and
organic growth

Maximising deal
flow

Developing
our marketing
excellence

Maintaining
operational
excellence

Ensuring

we have an
engaged, skilled
ond motivated
workforce

Good progress made with Nizoral

transitian and with the confinved growth

of our other consumer brands

We reviewed over 120 acquisition
opportunities in 2019, several of
which were progressed to late stage
evaluation

Creation of a new Head of Global
tarketing role, to lead our global
marketing function and increase our
level of expertise in this area

Substantial progress made with our
ERP implementation and several

other initiatives cimed at improving

our business systems and processes,
including our New Product Intraduction
(NP} and Sales & Operatiens Planning
(S&CP} processes

Further enhancements made to our

global connectivity

Pleasing results from employee
engagement survey, with 77% of
employees positive ond motivated in
their work

Ongoing invesiment in employees’

prefessional and personal development

across multiple disciplines

Expansion of apprenticeship
programme

Scored in the top quartile in Britain’s
Heualthiest Workplace [workplace
wellbeing study] for the third year
running

Continying to invest in our consumer
brands to maximise fulure growth
potential, whilst locking to augment
this part of our portfalio and extend
our internationa! reach, through
suitable acquisitions

Identifying and securing one or more
acquisitions which fit our selective
acquisition criteria

Roll-aut of marketing excellence
programme, ensuring appropriate
leve! of support provided for our
consumer brands on a local and
globaol basis

Continuing te progress with
the development of our ERP

implementation

Fully embedding our improved NPI
Ond S&OP PrGCESSES

Working towards the ‘Great Place to
Work' survey to generate enhonced
data and insights to deepen our levels

of engogement

Implementation of actions coming
out of Britain's Healthiest Workplace

survey
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STRATEGY IN ACTION -

MAXIMISING BRAND POTENTIAL

The opportunity for
Kelo-cote in China

China is one of the fastest growing scar treatment markets in the world’,
growing at over 20% per annum, driven by factors such as the rising
demand for cosmetic procedures and C-section births. The Aesthetic
Medicine (AM) market in China has grown rapidly and in 2018 China
overtook the USA in the number of procedures, growing 26.4% on the
previous year, to reach over 20 million!?

Despite this foct, China lags way behind
markets such as Korea in terms of
consumption per head which indicates there
is significant opportunity for further growth.
Consumpfion is spreading to lower tier cities
and not just confined to the ‘lier one’ cities
anymore i.e. Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen,

Kelo-cote is well placed to take advantage
of this growth oppertunity, having built a
well-established presence in the AM market
in China, growing significantly as a brand
over the past four years under Alliance’s
ownership (CAGR all markets 2015-2019:
42%), with a current market share in this
market of 26%.

1 Micholos Hell DBé database 2018

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Our focus on this category will continue in
2020 and beyond, as we seek to enforce
our leadership position, through working
collaboratively with our distribution partner
in China to maximise their effectiveness
and drive recommendations by healthcare
professionals, supported by a continuing
facus on raising awareness of the brand
more generally through cur global marketing
initiatives, such as the roll-out of websites
with a new global identity, improved global
packaging, and featuring Kelo-cote at key
heclth care congresses.

[

For more information visit

allioncepharmaceuticals.com

2 2019 New-Oxygen White Foper of Aesthetic Medicme Industry



STRATEGY IN ACTION —

MAXIMISING BRAND POTENTIAL

Increasing awareness
of Forceval in the UK

Forceval is Alliance’s nutritional support preduct, comprising Forceval
Capsules, the UK's most comprehensive licensed multivitamin {and one of
only @ small number of medicinal vitamin products}, and Forceval Soluble,
an effervescent tablet food supplement.

The purpose of Forceval Capsules is to help
tackle the increasing and significant impact
of malnutrition in the UK, a condition that
impacts three million people across the
country and costs around £20 billian a year
to treat'. It is a condition that is regularly
under recognised and inadequately treated
and 5o our activities with Forceval in 2019
have focused on driving owareness of
malnutrition with healthcare professionals in
both Primary ond Secondary Core and of
the value that using a licensed medicine to
treat this condition can have. In o healthcare
system that is increasingly focused on

the benefits of self-care, NHS England
guidance’ still acknowledges the need

and value of prescribing to treat medicaily
diagnosed malnutrition.

This messaging, as well as the value that
healthcare professionals continue to place
on the brand, resulted in the capsules
becoming the number one prescribed
multivitamin in the UK in bath Primary Care
and Secondary Care in 2019. For a long
time Forceval Capsules was the multivitamin
of choice in Secondary Care, but 2019 saw
the brand achieve this in Primary Care as
well {with Primary Care accounting for over
?0% of the prescription market). In @ market
that has declined 8% by volume through
2019 due to the move to self-care, Forceval
Capsules has seen over 10% in-market
growth?, further demonstrating the value
thot healthcare professionals place on the
brand as part of their suite of measures for
tackling malnutrition.

1 Elia M onbehglt of the Malnulriion Aclion Group of BAPEN, The cost of
malnutnbon in England and petential cost savings from nuttion intervenhons

[short version), 2015, www bapen.org uk/pdfs/economic-report-short.pdf,

occessed February 2020

2 NHSEngland and NHS Clinical Commissioners Conditions for which aver

the counler tems shauld not rovtinely be prescribed in

primary core Guidance for Climeal Commissioning Groups (CCGs), 2018,
Available ab: www.england nhs uk /publication/condihons-for-which-over-
the-counter-items-should -not-routinely-be-prescribed-in-primary-care-

guidunce-for-ccgs/ Accessed January 2020
3 IGYIAHPA Subnahonal ond NHSBSC PCA data

Alliance Pharma plec - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

[

for more information visit
alliancepharmaceuticals.com
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STRATEGY IN ACTION -

ACQUIRING AND INTEGRATING NEW PRODUCTS

Nizoral transition and
expanding our geographic
presence in Asia Pacific

We have built a successful business with a strong collaborative cuiture,
recognising that our relevance and value is in the way we work together,
both with our colleagues and with our customers, suppliers and other
external stakeholders. Nowhere has this been more evident in 2019 than
in the development of our operating capabilities in the Asia Pacific region,
to support the Nizoral transition, whilst also providing a platform for future

growth.

When we acquired Nizoral in mid-2018,

we had litle by way of local infrastructure

to enable us to trade significantly from a
manufactyring base in Asia Pacific, As part
of this acquisition, we acquired seven new
contract manufacturers {'CMOs’) and trading
relationships in new territories including Indio
and Thailand. Therefore, it was essential that
we recruited local people with the capability
to not only manage the Nizoral transition but
to also support Alliance’s future growth plans,
both for the brand and for the region. We
relocated to new larger, more central offices
in both Singapore and Shanghai which could
be easly accessed by CMOs and distributors,
and bolstered our existing headcount with
new appointments of highly skilled persannel
in Technical, Regulatory, Procurement,
Supply Chain and Marketing functions to
deliver the transition and grow the brand. This
included persannel from J&J, with a detailed
understanding of the manufacturing process
far the product, bringing a wealth of invaluable
knowledge into the business.

Once the team was in place, the focus was on
developing our relationships with J&J, both

the various J&J local teams across all the Asia
Pacific territories and reporting up to the Central
teams in EU/US. This enabled us to leverage
the support we needed to ensure an effective
transition, for example, in agreeing an extension
to the transition period in Ching, where

new guidelines for Marketing Authorisation

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Reportand Accounts 2019

Holders are due to be released by the Chinese
avthorities in late 2020, We have also built
strong relations with the CMO base across the
Asia Pacific region, some of whom we see as
strategic suppliers of the future, who will enable
Alliance to goin competitive advantage not
only for Nizoral but also potentially for other
products in Alliance’s portfolio too.

To enable us to trade in a compliont and tax
efficient woy, we are in the process of creating
new legal entities in Thailand, Philippines and
India, which are expected to go live in 2020.

in each of these regions, we are also having

to source office and warehouse space, recruit
local directors and competent persens in order
to satisfy local regulations. We have identified
strong partners in each of these regions, who are
working with us to achieve this, advising us on the
best opproach.

It is this spirit of collaboration which has powered
the progress of the Nizoral fransition to date and
will continue to do 50 through 2020 and beyond.

Nizoral transition — progress to date:

* New distribution agreements in place
for seven out of the 14 markets — several
others close to finalisation.

+ Six out of 14 Marketing Authorisation
transfers approved — a further five are
expected during H1 2020.

+ One market {Taiwan) is now producing
product in Alliance livery.
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STRATEGY IN ACTION -
ACTING RESPONSIBLY

The social impact of
our partnership with

Smile Train

Smile Train is a global charity with the sole vision of supporting safe
and quality cleft treatment for children all over the world.

Every year, approximately one in 700 babies
is bern with v cleft lip or palate globally.

Due to challenges with infrastructure, lack of
trained medical professionals, and poverty

in some areas of the world, many of these
children do not have access to safe and
guality cleft care. If left untreated, these
children often face serious health and survival
issues - including the ability to eat, breathe,
speak and ultimately thrive.

To tackle this glabal issue, Smile Train’s
sustainable model empowers local medical
professionals with training, funding and
resources 1o provide free cleft surgery and
comprehensive cleft care te children in their
own communities.

In May 2019, Kelo-cote, Alliance's scor
prevention and treatment product, announced
that it had entered into a two-year corporate
sponsorship arrangement with Smile Train,

to provide brand sponsorship and product
donation to children who have received cleft
surgery, in order to help prevent post-surgical
hypertrophic and keloid scarring.

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Smile Train is now being featured on Kela-cote
brand materials, which are shared regularly
with partners, healthcare professionals and
consumers globally, to raise awareness. To
date, we have received positive feedback from
several of our distributors who are keen to
participate in this initiative and we have linked
them with Smile Train offices in their local
countries,

We have also been working on the set up of
a pilot with two Smile Train partner hospitals
in India, to provide Kelo-cote to children who
have undergone cleft surgery, to help reduce
post-surgical scarring, with plons to roll-out
to more.

These initiatives have been supported by
a maiched fundraising programme for all
Alliance's employees, which collectively
raised more than £32,000 for the charity
in 2019 - enough to fund 215 operations.

[

Formore infarmation visit
alliancepharmacevticals.com



“Weare thrilled with the success of Smile Train UK's partnership with Alliance Pharma
and the dedicated support from their employecs. This partnership helps us continue
to fulfil our vision of supporting free cleft surgery and comprehensive cleft care for
children in need globally. Together, we are changing the world one smile at a time.”

SUSANNAH SCHAEFER
President & CEOQ, Smile Train
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW

2019 saw another year of strong revenue and profit

Jo LeCauilliard and

growth, led by our consumer brands in international Richard Jones toke
. up their pesitions as
markets, as we continued to pursue our strategy to independent Non-

execulive Directors

deliver sustainable business growth. -
Timeline

Jan

2019 Highlights

* Strong revenue growth, driven by another
impressive performance from Kelo-cote
(+38%), underpinned by good performances
fram our other Star brands

* I'm really pleased with the way the Group performed
during 2019, both in terms of its financial performance
and also the considerable progress we made in

! . . reioom
» Good cash generation with leverage now developing our opcrating capabilities.

below 1.5x, leaving us well placed to PETER BUTTERFIELD
selectively add to our portfolio during 2020 Chief Executive

* Good progress made with Nizoral transition
and the enhancement of our operating
capabilities in the Asia Pacific region;

continued growth in the US, led by Yamousse 201 NG 001 I—
2018 £124 Om 2018 €118 2m
-
2017 £101 m 2007 £10] 6m
See-through Revenue® Statutary Revenue

£144.3m £135.6m

TRADING PERFORMANCE
Overview

The Group continued to trade strongly in 2019 with revenue on
a see-through basis up 16% to £144.3m {2018: £124m) and

up 15% on a statutory basis to £135.6m (2018: £118.2m).
See-through revenue benefitted by £9.3m in 2019 due to the
inclusion of the first full year's trading revenue from Nizoral,
which was acquired in June 2018. Coupled with improving gross
profit margins, gross profit increased by 19% to £86.1m (2018:
£72.6m). Through maintaining good control over our operating
costs, we were pleased to be able to deliver some operational
leverage, with underlying EBITDA up 22% to £39.4m (2018:
£32.4m). Underlying profit before tax increased 17% 1o £32.9m
[2018: £28.1m) and reported profit before tax increased 36% to
£31.1m (2018: £22.8m}.

International Star brands performance

Our portfolio of International Star brands oll performed very well
during 2019, delivering collective revenue growth of 43% (30%
on a like for like basis, exciuvding Nizoral). These key brands now
account for over 45% of Group revenue, with this percentage
expected fo increase further in the current year.

Alliance Pharma plc



Opening of new offices
in Shanghai

First MacuShield Global
Marketing Forum held

Awarded Business of the
Year and Best Place to Wark -

Chippenham Business Awards in Frankfurt

Feb Mar

Kelo-cote - scar prevention and treatment

Kelo-cote delivered another impressive performance in 2019,
with revenues up 38% to £31m {2018: £22.5m) due to continved
strong demand, primarily from China and other countries in the
Asia Pacific region, reflecting the growth in the Aesthetic Medicine
{AM] market in this part of the world. With rising demand for
cosmetic procedures and C-section births, Kelo-cote remains
very well-placed to take advantage of this AM growth trend,
particularly in Ching, where it is well established in the market.
For more en the cantinued demand and opportunity for Kelo-cote
in China see page 22,

During 2019, our global marketing team continued to support the
local brand teams in delivering a range of marketing activities

to support brand growth, attending several conferences and
interacting with healthcare professionals across the globe, to
increase brand awareness.

Nizoral - medicated anti-dandruff shampoo

Nizorel (under J&J management during 2019} performed in line
with expectations, generating see-through revenues in its first full
year of ownership by the Group of £20.2m, as compared with
£10.9m in the second half of 2018.

Our focus during 2019 has been on refining and executing
detailed transition plans to support the transfer of the product
licences in each of the territories from J&J to Alliance, including
establishing new trading relationships with suppliers and
distributors to enable us to continve to manufacture and sell the
product post transfer. As previously reported, during the first half
of 2019 we enhanced our presence in Singapore and Shanghai,
moving to larger offices in both locations and establishing

a dedicated team to support the transfer and subsequent
management of Nizoral,

The first two product licences {for Hong Kong and Thailandy}
transferred to Alliance in Q4 2019 and we expect the majority

of the remaining licences to transfer during 2020, Once all of the
product licences are under our control, we will be able to manage
the associated commercial relationships and brand development
more proactively. China continuves to be an important market for
Nizoral and a future growth-driver for this key brand. Further
detail on the Nizoral transition and our geographic expansion

in the Asia Pacific region can be found on page 26.

MacuShield ~ eye health supplement

MacuShield grew strongly in 2019, generating revenues of
£8.2m, up 18% year on year (2018: £7m), driven by distributar
stocking and changes in trading arrangements with a key
distributor, Exeluding these ‘one-off’ benefits, the brand
delivered underlying growth in 2019 of around 5%.

Opening of new offices
in Singapore

Apr May

In addition to launches in ltaly and Turkey in the first half of the year,
we launched MacuShield in Pakistan during the second half and
plan to launch the brand in a further six territaries during 2020. In the
UK, we expanded the range of products available with the launch of
MacuShield chewable tablets in October 2019, for consumers who
find the original capsule presentation difficult to swallow.

Vamousse - prevention and treatment of head lice
Vamousse delivered another strong performance, particularly in
the US, its core market, with global revenues up 14% to £6.5m
{2018: £5.8m) and up 10% on a constant currency basis.

Whilst we continue to evaluate opportunities to infroduce Vamousse
into new markets, our near-term focus is on continuing to grow the
brond in the US, where it cantinues to eut-perform the general market.

Further detail on our Star brands can be found on cur website:
www.alliancepharmaceuticals.com/our-brands/eur-star-brands

Local brands

QOur Llocal brands portfclio delivered a stable performance overall,
with revenues of £78.3m, £0.3m above those for the previous
year (2018: £78m}. We saw good performances from some of

the consumer brands in this part of our portfolio, with new UK

retail listings for Aloclair [freatment for mouth ulcers) and Ashton &
Parsons {teething gel) and strong sales of a number of products to
our international distributors, offsetting the decline we experienced
with some of our heritage pharmaceutical products, due to generic
competition and competitive tender activity, We also took the
decision to discontinue a few products within our Local brands
portfolio, which were generating very low revenues and margins,
as part of a regular periodic review of our portfolio.

Going forwards, we will continue to actively manage this part of
our portfolio, in particular the heritage pharmaceutical products,
and expect sales in this category to modestly decline over time.
However, the cash generation from these assets is expected to
remain strong, with limited requirements for promotional investment.

Regional performonce

International

Our international distributor business continued to go from
strength to strength in 2019, benefitting from a full year's revenues
from Nizoral and continued strong demand for Kelo-cote, which
helped to deliver significant year on year revenue growth across
the Asia Pacific region and particularly in China, We also saw
good growth from our Middle East and Africa distributor business,
with revenues up 26% on the previous year at £6.7m.

*  Non-IFRS alternalive performance measures [see note 33} See-through revenye includes sales

frem Nizoral as if they had been invoiced by Allience. For statutory accouning purposes the
product margin on Nizoral sales is inclvded within Revenue, in line with IFRS 15
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REVIEW CONTINUED

Awarded Internationol Company of the Year (25m+
turnover), South West Global Growth awards [UK]

Chester to Chippenham cycle ride in aid

Timeline of Smile Train

confinued
Jun

Regional performance continued

International continved

See-through revenues for our international distributar business
increased 32% to £54.2min 2019 {2018; £40.9m) and reported
revenues increased 30% to £45.6m (2018: £35.1m).

us

Revenues in our new US business increased by 11% in 2019 to
£6.1m [2018: £5.5m), with a particularly strong perfermance
by Vamousse, with revenues up 19% to £5.4m {2018: £4.6m),
supported by £0.7m of reclassified revenues from products
previously included within Internationa! sales.

UK and Republic of Ireland

Revenues in the UK and Republic of Ireland were down 2% on the
previous year at £51.4m (2018: £52.3m) due to weaker performances
from some of our heritage pharma products being partially offset by

o stronger performance from our UK consumer products, with
MacuShield, Ashton & Porsons and Aloclair oll delivering good
revenue growth as we centinye to invest behind these brands.

Mainland Europe

Our Mainland Eurcpe business saw another year of strong top-
line growth in 2019, with revenues increasing by 28% to £32.5m
(2018: £25.4m), largely due to continued growth in Kelo-cote, to
satisfy both export and regional demand.

Return of Xonvea licensing rights

As we have previously reported, we returned the UK and EU licensing
rights to Xonveaq, the prescription medicine for the treatment of
nausea and vomiting of pregnancy where conservative managemant
has failed, which we launched in the UK in October 2018, to
Duchesnay, Inc ['Duchesnay’} {the licensor) in November 2019.

Under the terms of the agreement signed with Duchesnay, the £2m

in milestone payments made to date by Alliance will be repaid to

the Group, £0.25m was paid in 2019 and the remaining balance is
due in 2020. As a result of this agreement, the Group booked non-
underlying inventory provisions and associated restructuring costs of
£19min 2019; the tofal non-underlying loss on disposal being £7.7m.

Alliance will continue to make Xonvea available to patients in the
UK for up to 12 months to assist Duchesnay with the transition to a
new licensee.

Acquisitions

Our acquisition strategy remains focused on selectively adding to our
portfolio, os suitable opportunifies arise, with a focus on augmenting
our consumer healtheare brands in international markets where

we already have a presence. Our strong cash generation in 2019,
increased credit facilities and significant reduction in net debt leave
us well-placed to pursue this element of our strategy.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Allionce appeints its first Head of

Global Marketin
9 Distribution agreement

New enhanced credit facilities signed with new partner

agreed, to facilitate future grawth in Saudi Arabia

Jul Aug

Operational review

Following the UK's departure from the EU on 31 Janvary 2020,
we continue to monitor the progress of negotiations closely to
ensure we have the most up to date information available to allow
us to ensure continuity of supply, irrespective of the timings or
nature of the trade agreements reached with the EU with regard to
consumer healthcare and pharmaceutical praducts, or the nature
and duration of any transitional arrangements which may apply.

We remain on track to ensure our technical documentation and
processes meet the new requirements of the MDR, which will now
start to apply from May 2021. The new regulation places greater
scrutiny on the technical documentation, product safety and medicai
device performance through stricter requirements on clinical
information and requires enhanced fraceability and fransparency.

We continve to progress with the development of our ERP system
which, when implemented, will deliver business benefits and
scale-up capaobility through the standardisation of processes.

We have also invested time in several other initigtives aimed at
improving our business systems and processes, including our
New Product Introduction (NPI} and Sales 8 QOperations Planning
(S&OP) processes.

Work is now underway to fully embed these improved processes
into the business in 2020, 1o further improve our operational
leverage and facilitate future growth.

People

As previously announced, our two new independent MNon-executive
Directors, o LeCouvilliard and Richard Jones, took up office at the start
of 2019 and we are grateful to both for the valuable contributions
they have made to the Group's activities during the first year of their
tenure. The composition of the Board underwent o further change in
June 2019, when John Dawson, founder and former CEQ, stepped
down as a Non-executive Director of the Group,

Wa recognise that great results can only be achieved through the
combined efforts of our dedicated team of colleagues around

the globe, our partners and customers, and thraugh the strong
collaborative culture that we have built within Allionce, Alliance
currently employs more than 200 peaple in ten locations around the
world. In 2019 we scaled up our existing operations in Asia Pacific,
to support the transition and ongoing monagement of Nizoral. We
also appointed our first Head of Global Marketing, as we continue
to develop our marketing insight, processes and performance
across all our teams to further accelerate the growth of our larger
consumer brands. We were delighted to once again achieve
exceptionally high engagement scores in our annual employee
survey, with some aspects of the survey achieving satisfaction levels
in excess of 0%, for the second year in succession.



New corporate
website goes live

Our annuol employee
engagement survey delivers

MacuShield chewables
launched in the UK

First two product licences far
Nizoral transferred to Alliance

Xonvea licensing rights
returned to Duchesnay,
allowing us to focus on

First delivery of Alliance-
branded Nizoral ready for
shipment to Taiwan

Qur fundraising for
SmileTrain charity reaches
£32,000 - encugh to fund

another set of great resylts (Hong Kong & Thailand)

Sep Oct

We received several awards this year, including 'Best Place to Work’
in the Chippenham Business Awards, where our head office is based.
Qur social impact activities were again extremely well supported
by employees in 2019. Alliance matched employee fundraising
enabled us to raise more than £32,000 for the charity Smile Train
and we also supported more than 20 other chorities, through
fundraising and donations of time and money. In addition, we
donated £75,000 of products to International Health Partners,
wha we have been supporting for more than ten yeors now.

The Group places great importance on attracting and retaining
high quality employees and aligning the success of the Group with
their rewards. In recognition of this, the Group operates a share
option scheme which aims to ensure that all employees have an
opportunity to bensfit from the growth of the business as reflected
in the Company's share price.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere thanks to all those who have contributed to
another very successful year for Alliance.

COVID-19

Qur priority is to ensure the safety of our people across the globe.
In the UK, Republic of Ireland, mainland Europe, Singapore and
the US, our employees are now working from home in line with
local government guidelines, Qur investment in 1T hos ensured o
high level of connectivity throughout the world which means we
can operate remotely with minimal disruption to the business.

In Asia, we are pleased that our Shanghai office has now

fully recpened.

Our supply chain is holding up well and we do not anticipate

any material supply impact in the current year. For those products
we sell directly, we hold typically a minimum of three months of
inventory and, in soms cases mors, depending on the level of
clinical need. Most of cur international sales are generated via
distributors, who typically hold three to six months of inventory.
We continue to monitor our supplier base for early indications of
any issues and are forward booking transport for the remainder of

2020 in order to mitigate any potential future capacity constraints.

Whilst supply is holding up well, demand is harder to forecast.
Although the COVID-19 situation in China and across the Asia Pacific
region looks to be improving, we anticipate that demand in the Asia
Pacific region, including China, will be lower in the first half of 2020
and then, depending on the speed with which this region returns to
normality, begin to recoverin H2, Sales in our UK and mainland
Europe businesses are expected to be impacted, but to a fesser
extent due to the higher proportion of prescription medicines sold

in this region.

care international brands 215 operalions

Nov Dec

Given the fast-moving nature of the pandemic, the full-year impact
on trading of the COVID-19 coronavirus is very difficult to forecast
but we anticipate that trading will be weighted to the second half.

We will provide further updates at cur AGM in May, in our H1
trading update in luly and at other times as appropriate.

Current trading and outlock

After another strong performance in 2019, we entered 2020
well-positioned for further growth,

Whilst we are expecting to see some impact on revenues this
year as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus, we are actively
working with our suppliers and distributors to mitigate the impact.
Our supply chain is holding up well and we, and our distributers,
hold good levels of inventory which provides a level of in-market
inventory buffer,

We conlinue to moniter developments and are fooking closely for
any changes in market demand so that we can evalve our mitigation
plans in response to these; our objective is to minimise the economic
impact on our business, whilst ensuring that we continue to maintain
the safety of our employees in all countries affected by the virus.

As a result of the potential impact of COVID-12 on global ecenomic
activity, we have decided it would be prudent at this time to
preserve cash and therefore have taken the decision not to propose
a final dividend for year ending 2019, We will continue ta monitor
the situakion and to reassess the position later in the year and
potentially declare a further interim dividend for 2020.

Operationally, the priorities for the Group remain unchanged:
continuing to invest in our consumer healthcare brands in order to
deliver organic growth and continuing to progress with the transiticn
of Nizoral, to enable us to benefit from the increased control we will
have over the brand as the various territories complete transition.

We will continue to look to selectively add ta our portfolio, as
suitable opportunities arise, with a focus on augmenting our
consumer healthcare brands in international markets where
we already have a presence.

e

i

Peter Butterfield
Chief Executive

7 April 2020
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS

We are committed to
operating our business in an
ethical and sustainable way,
having regard to the interests
of all our stakeholders - our
customers, suppliers, business
partners and employees.

We recognise that everything we do has an
impact on the natural environment and on
the people and communities within it and we
are committed to looking for ways to reduce
our impact in these areas to ensure a better
future for all.

Qur people

Engaging with our employees

QOur employees constitute ene of our most impertant stakeholder
groups and play an integral part in the delivery of successtul
outcomes for the business. The Group engages regularly with its
employees and monitors closely their views and any concerns
raised. The Group carries out an annual employee engagement
survey, the results of which are reviewed by the Board to ensure
appropriate actions are taken in response to this, so os to deliver
a positive outcome te the process — the results of the 2019 survey
showed that 77% of employees are positive and motivated in
their work, with some aspects of the survey achieving levels of
satisfaction exceeding 90%, for the second year running.

Celebrating success

Alliance’s core values of performance, realism, accountability,
integrity, skill and entrepreneurship remain at the heart of how
we engage with each other and conduct our business. Every
month we celebrate with cur employees great examples of

our values in practice in our global employees briefing. These
achievements are many and varied; from providing excellent
customer service to a cancerned patient, to delivery of
challenging projects, be they commercial, technical, system and
process — employees who go above and beyond in putting our
values into practice are identified and recognised.

Alliance Pharma plc — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

“We work hard to ensurc the business decisions we
make have a positive impact on our people, socicty
and the environment.”

JANICE TIMBERLAKE
Chief People and Infrastructure Officer

These briefings also provide an opportunity for the Senior
Leadership Team to communicate Group perfermance, targets
and operational priorities to all employees, to ensure that
averyone's efforts remain aligned and maintain an epen dialogue
with employees, through providing an opportunity for Q&A.

InJune 2019, Alliance was awarded International Company of
the Year [£25m+ turnover) at the South West (UK] Global Growth
Awards, in racognition of the successful expansion of our business
outside of the UK.

Creating opportunities for continued growth

and development

Alengside the recruitment of external talent, we encourage and
support the development of our existing employees’ skills and
knowledge through internal and external short courses and
formal training programmes. As a business, we invested in cur
employees’ professional and personal development across a
number of disciplines in 2019, including specialist training for
Regulatory and Pharmacovigilance colleagues on the ABP{ and
PAGB codes of practice and professional qualifications in Finance
[CIMA and ACCAY}, in additicn to our bespoke management skills
development programme and external leadership development.



We continue to focus on early career talent development and
after the initial success of our apprenticeship programme, have
expanded this fo other functions such as HR. We will look at
furthering these opportunities, together with continving to cement
our ties with our local community of schools, throughout 2020.

Employee health and wellbeing

Alliance recognises that its people are key to the business’s
success and remains committed 1o ensuring the health and well-
being of its workforce.

From providing free fruit to all our employees and a gym in our
head office, through to the selection of our healthcare insurance
provider which, for UK-based employees, is an organisation that
actively promotes and rewards members for maintaining a healthy
lifestyle. Healthcare insurance is provided to all permanent
employees and their dependents, subject to qualifying conditions,

As part of our commitment both to our employees and to the
environment, we work hard to ensure that our offices are pleasant
and environmentally friendly places to work. Around 45% of cur
employees have now been provided with height-adjustable desks,
which allow users to stand or sit when working, whilst our LED
lighting, as well as being longer lasting and around 89% maore
energy efficient, aims to mimic natural daylight.

For the third year running, we participated in Britain’s Healthiest
Workplace — the UK's most comprehensive workplace wellness
study. In addition to the ability to benchmark against comparable
companies, participating employers receive an in-depth report
detailing the health profile of their organisation, while employees
receive Personal Health Reports. We are proud to have again
scored ameng the top quartile in the smal! business category.

We have had some great data and feedback from our
participation in the survey to date regarding our organisational
health and wellbeing, our work performance and the work
environment and have developed an action plan to address
some of the key findings.

Our focus in 2020 will be to progress towards 'Great Place to
Woark” which surveys both the internal trust and engagement of
employees, together with the cultural norms within an organisation;
we believe this will provide us with a richer source of data and
insight into how our employees view Alliance, so as we can further
progress our engagement journey.

Environmental sustainability

Alliance is actively pursuing environmental sustainability,
both within its own operations and within its supply chain.

Within our own business operations, we have entered into a
contract with @ new waste-management company to ensure

all waste from our Chippenham head office, where the majority
of our employees are based, is segregated and recycled as

far as possible, so as to minimise what goes to landfill. Over
the past three years, we have also carried out an extensive
building refurbishment programme, implementing a number of
measures designed to reduce cur environmental impact, including
the installation of movement-centrolled LED lighting, new, more
efficient air conditioning systems, improved building insulation,
new energy efficient flash boilers for hot water generation and
other meosures designed to reduce energy consumption.

This is reflected in the assessors comments in our most recent
Energy Savings Opportunity Scheme (ESOS) report, for the four
years to December 2019, which notes that “Allionce Pharma
occupies a historic building in the centre of Chippenham, the
building has been refurbished to a high standard but there is
further scope for improvement subject to the appropriate local
authority consent. The building has a Display Energy rating of 94
which indicotes better than average performance”.

We plan to carry out further improvement works, in line with these
recommendations, during 2020 and we are also loaking to further
reduce our carbon footprint through reviewing activities such as
stationery purchasing, travel and woter usage.
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS CONTINUED

Environmental Sustainability continued

From 1 January 2020, we are required to report under the
Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting ['SECR’) regulations
and our first report until these regulations will be provided as
part of our 2020 Annual Report.

Supply chain management

Qur well-established vendor selection processes ensure

that aur CMOs are assessed, and future performance evaluated
against, a broad set of measures, including compliance with
Alliance's policies around anti-bribery and anti-slavery, in
addition to appropriate quality and regulatory standards.

We are fully compliant with the LUCID environmental recycling
regulafions in Germany, which require all companies to sign up
to arecycling scheme, to ensure that packaging can be recycled,
with the costs for this being born by Alliance as the manufacturer
of the product. All packs have a green dot confirming their
complionce. A similar scheme is In operation in Czech Republic
and Slavakia, which our distributer in these territories participates
in, and in Denmark.

We continue to work with our suppliers to improve the
environmental sustainability of our proeducts on an ongoing
basis. Current initiatives incluce planning for the implementation
of environmental health and safety audits of our suppliers, to
help identify areas of risk and develop and agree appropriote
mitigation plans.

Modern slavery

In keeping with the Group’s values, we are opposed to modern
slavery. We regularly review and where necessary update our
operating procedures in consideration of the provisions of the
Modern Slavery Act 2015, to ensure that we do what we con

to prevent slavery and human trafficking in our businesses/

supply chains. Our policy can we found on our website: www.
allioncepharmaceuticals com/en-gb/about/anti-slavery-statement

We are currently working towards independent assessment of
Alliance's labour standard assurance system ['LSAS') by Lloyds
Register Quality Assurance ['LRQA’), to ensure that both we and
our suppliers [principally our CMOs) have systems and policies in
place which demonsirate that they have given due consideration
to the wellbeing of their employees, having regard to minimum
standards. LSAS provides an extra level of corporate, social and
ethical governance regarding lubour standards for orgenisations
supplying the NHS supply chain.

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are also planning to roli-aut training around the provisions
of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 to all members of our Scientific
Atfairs and Operations team in 2020, te increase levels of
awareness and understanding in this important area.

Social impact

Cur people and the community

Our people have o strong interest in supporting the wider
community, locking for fun but meaningful ways to make a
difference. Alt our employees globally are given a volunteer
day each year, and these are widely used — as people are
keen to give back time directly to support the charities which
mean the most to them.

Our fundraising for Smile Train

Smile Train is a global charity with the sole vision of supporting
safe and quality cleft treatment for children all over the world.
Smile Train use a sustainable model by training local medical
professionals ta be able to carry out this important work.

In May 2019, we announced our corporate sponsorship
partnership between Smile Train and our scar treatment product,
Kelo-cote. Mare information about this can be found on page 28.

In addition to the brand suppert provided by Kelo-cote, we also
cdopted Smile Train as our chosen charity for 2019, with Alliance
matching employees fundraising to raise more than £32,000 for
the charity, enough to fund 215 operations, thraugh a variaty of
physical challenges such as running, walking or climbing walls
and climbing mountains and other activities such as cake sales,
raffles, auctions and sponsored events in the office.

Charity support through PRAISE awards

Our PRAISE awards, which reward employees for outstanding
demonstrations of our values in practice, give recipients the
oppeortunity to direct the rewards for their achievements to their
favourite charity.

Engaging with our local community

In September 2019 we held an open day at our Chippenham
head office as part of the local museum’s ‘open door’ initiative.
Our head office building, Avenbridge House, is a Grade 2 listed
building with an interesting heritage, having previously been

the site of the first Nestle cendensed milk factory in the UK. This
event gave visitors the opportupity to find out more about the

past and present uses of the building, including its current use by
Alliance and to see some of the surviving features from its previous
industrial use.



Other community support initiatives

In 2019, Alliance employees ance again provided gifts to those
adults and children spending Chrisimas in o local domestic
abuse refuge. We also collected donations of teiletries for a local
homeless hostel and the local hygiene bank - similor in concept
to a food bank but focusing on personal and domestic hygiene
products for distribution to those in need.

In the US, members of the Alliance team used their annual charity
day to support ‘Habitat for Humanity’, which helps to build safe,
affordable homes for families who otherwise couldn't afford to
purchase one, by participating in a community house-building
project in Raleigh.

Our employees have also supported many other local charities
such os Cancer Research UK, Singapore Children’s Society,
Dorothy House Hospice Care and Save the Children.

It is this level of employee engagement and desire to make a
difference that is at the heart of cur business and contributes to
it being o meaningful place to work.

Our work with International Health Partners

International Health Partners (IHP) were setup in 2004 as a
response fo the Indian Qcean tsunami and eqrthqucke and are
now Europe’s largest facilitater of product donations between
heclthcare companies and agencies. Their mission is to serve those
in need — from those caught up in conflict, to those impacted by
natural disasters, by providing high-quality donated medicines. Last
year alone IHP sent 1.2 million treatments to those suffering due to
alock of access to medicines. Alliance has been a supporter of IHP
since 2009, regularly donating a range of pharmaceutical products
for inclusion in HP's Essential Health Packs (EHPs), pre-packed kit
that is filled with a range of medicines essential to support critical
healthcare delivery in remote or disaster hit areas. Last year,
Alliance provided £75,000 of treatments for inclusicn in the EHPs,
which were distributed to 23 countries around the world.

Cur commitment to transparency

Alliance is committed to providing transparency and clarity
around our collaboration with healthcare professionals,
healthcare crganisations and patient organisations.

In the UK and Republic of Ireland, Alliance publishes transfers of
value in accordance with the ABPI and IPHA Codes of Practice.

Our commitment to patients

Patients rely on us to deliver products that can help to improve
their health — whether these are prescription medicines, or
products bought off the shelf in their local pharmacy, as part
of a self-care regime, or o treat common ailments.

We are committed to ensuring that all our products meet the
highest standards of safety and efficacy and that we remain fully
compliant with all applicable regulations. Qur quality assurance
systems and processes aim ta provide an oppropriate level of
confidence that suppliers, vendors and contractors are able to
supply consistent quality of materials, components and services
in compliance with regulatory requirements and to identity and
mitigate any associated risks.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

2019 saw another year of strong performance, with
Group revenues on a see-through basis increasing

by 16%, a 227 increase in underlying EBITDA, very
healthy cash generation and leverage below 1.5 times.

2019 Highlights
= Continued good growth in underlying EBITDA

+22%) and in underlying operating profit . . .-
:+2 9; ; (reported opzmgngppmﬁt ESF;D/ ) with by the Group, both in terms of profitability and cash
; e cneration.”
operafing leverage maintained in line with g ANDREW FRANKLIN

2018 Chief Financial Officer

“2019 saw another vear of solid financial performance

* Very strong cash generation, helping to bring
net debt down by £26.6m to £59.2m

*+ Leverage now below 1.5x

——— ———

207 pEE—— £374m 2077 —— 271
————— ——

2013 p——m 32410 2018 p—— L16.1m
—

2017 p——— E27.2M 2017 £22.0m
A——m—

2016 ———r %260 2016 — £13.0m

Underlying EBITDA* Free Cash Flow*

£39.4m £29.1m

Reported operciing profit £35 ém Cash generated from sperations £39m

{2018 £23 7m}+ 51% {2018 £26 1m} +a9%

The Group delivered a sirong financial performance in 2019,

with see-through revenues increasing 16% to £144.3m (2018:
124m} and statutory revenues increasing 15% to £135.6m

(2018: £118.2m). The increase was largely driven by a strong
performance from our International Star brands, particularly Kelo-
cote, and by the inclusion of a full year's post-acquisition revenues
from Nizoral. Overall, underlying profit before taxation increased
by 17% to £32.9m [2018: £28.1m) and reported prafit before tax
increased 36% to £31.1m (2018; £22.8m).

The impact of exchange rate movements an the Group’s revenues
was limited, the benefit of Sterling weakening against the US
Dollar in 2019 being largely offset by Sterling strengthening
slightly against the Euro. Likewise, there was minimal impact on
operating profits this year os a result of currency movements.

Gross profitincreased at a slightly higher rate than revenue, up
18% to £86.1m {2018; £72.6m), resulting in a 1.1% increase
in gross margin, from 58.6% to 59.7% of see-through revenue
(+2.0% increase from 61.5% to 63.5% of statutory revenue),
due to mix and improving inventory management.

Alliance Pharma plc



Operafing costs [defined as underlying administration and
marketing expenses, excluding underlying depreciation,
amartisation and impairment charges| increased by £6.5m fo
£449m [2018; £38.4m|, due to the full year impact of transitional
service fees payable 10 J&J in connection with Nizoral, an
increase in employee costs required to support the scale up of

our aperations in Asia Pacific and the wider business, and the
continued growth of our Star brands. As o percentage of soles,
operating cosfs were in line with 2018 and represented 31.1% of
see-through sales [2018: 31.0%).

The IFR52 share options charge for 2019 remained in line with
that for the previous year, at £1.8m (2018: £1.8m).

Notwithstanding the increase in operating costs, underlying
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amartisation
[EBITDA) increased by 22% to £39.4m (2018: £32.4m), whilst
underlying operating profitincreased by 29% to £37.4m
(2018: £28.9m] and reported operating profitincreased 51%
to £35.6m (2018: £23.7m).

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges

Underlying depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges
for 2019 amounted to £2m, a £1.5m reduction on the prior year
{2018: £3.5m); the 2018 chorge included the write-down of a
supply agreement of £1.9m.

Finance costs

Overall, net finance costs in 2019 increased by £3.7mto £4.6m
12018: £0.9m), due primarily to a £1,4m adverse mavement in
foreign currencies [2019: £0.8m loss, 2018: profit £0.6m) and
the fair value of contingent consideration in 2018 (£2m credit).

Interest payable increased by £0.3m to £3.8m, the increased
costs resulting from the Nizoral drawdown in June 2018 and
nan-utilisation costs on the new credit facilities put in place in July
2019 being offset by lower interest charges due to the reduction
in net debt and the lower interest rates associated with the new
borrowing facility.

The average interest charge on gross debt during the pericd
{including non-utilisation fees) was 3.37%.

Underlying Profit Before Tax

£32.9m +17%

2019 £329m
2018 £281m
2017 £239m

- .
Ay —————— & P

Reported proht before tax £31.1m (2018 22 8m) +36%

Underlying Basic EP5*™

5.09p +12%

2019 5.09p
2018 454p
2017 4 05p
————————
2016 ———— 07D
Reported Basic EPS 4.60p (2018- 3 49p) +31%
Dividend Per Share
<)
0.536p -63%
———
207 — O-536P
2018 1464p
a - -
2016 1 210p
Net Debt
Q,
£59.2m -31%
2019 £59.2m

2018 E————_ 85 8m
S ——-E
2017 £72 Im

N
N ——————————— S AL

“ Non-IFRS clternative performance measures [see note 33) See-through revenue includes sales from Nizoral os i they had been invoiced by Alliance For statulory accounfing purpeses the

preduct morgin on Nizorol solesis included within Revenue, in line with [FRS 15

** The 2017 measure refers to the Underlying Adjusied Basic EPS as disclosed m the 2017 Annual Report which was adjusted 1o normalise the impact of significont changes in overseas tox rates
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Reconciliation of underlying to reported profit before tax

2019 2018
Year ended 31 December £m £m
Underlying profit before taxation az9 28.7
Non-underlying items:
Return of Xonvea licensing rights (1.7}
Disposal of Flammacerium {0.1)
Profit on disposcl of Unigreg Joint Venture 1.5
Impairment cﬁd wrire-déwn of Synthasia Jclinr‘ Venture assefs - (2.5)
Impairment of anti-malarial intengible asset (4.3)
Total (1.8) {5.3)
Reported profit before taxction 31.1 228

Taxation

The total tox charge for the period was £6.1m {2018: £4.4m),
resulting in an effective tax rate of 19.5% (2018: 19.5%).
Excluding non-underlying items, which generated a tax credit of
£0.3m in 2019 (2018: £1m tax credit), the underlying tax charge

was £6.4m [2018: £5.5m), representing an underlying ETR of
19.5% (2018: 19.6%).

Earnings per share
Underlying basic earnings per share for 2019 was 5.09p,
anincrease of 12% {2018: 4.54p).

Reported basic earnings per share was 4 80p (2018: 3.69p}
due to non-underlying items reducing earnings to a lesser
extent in 2019 than in 2018.

Dividend

The Board is closely monitoring the impact of the COVID-19
virus on our people and business. At this stage it is too soon to
quantity the impact it may have in the future on our financial
performance but, given the scale of the potential impact of

| Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accaynts 2019

COVID-19 on economic activity, the Board has decided it would
be prudent to preserve cash at this time and therefore has taken

the decision to not to propose a final dividend for year ended
31 December 2019

The Board will continue to monitor the position with an intention,
to the extent that the Boord deems it prudent in light of all retevant
developments, to reassess the position later in the year and
potentially declare a further interim dividend for 2020,

The Company will update the shareholders at the time of the AGM.

Return of the licensing rights to Xonvea

On 27 November 2019, Alliance announced that the Group

had reached agreement with Duchesnay Inc. of Canada
(‘Duchesnay’) to return the UK and EU licensing rights te Xonvea,
a prescription medicine for the treatment of nausea and vemiting
of pregnancy where conservative management has failed. As

a result of this agreement, the Group booked non-underlying
inventory provisions and ossaciated restructuring costs of £1.9m in
the year ending 31 December 2019, incurring a non-underlying
loss on disposal of £1.7m,



Balance sheet

intangible assets decreased by £6.6m in 2019, to £328.7m
(2018: £335.2m), £3.1m of which related to foreign currency
translation adjustments, the remainder primarily to the disposals of
Xonvea and Flammacerium.

Intangible assets currently account for around 80% of the Group's
total assets. As part of the wider 2020 strotegic review, the Group
will confinue to consider the appropriateness of accounting
estimates for intangible assets within its portfolio,

Working capital

The Group centinued to maintain good control of its working
capital with total net working capital of £24.7m, o reduction of
£1.4m on the prior year (2018: £26.1m).

Inventories, net of provisions, amounted to £15.5m as at 31
December 2019, a decrease of £3.2m in the year {2018:
£18.7m), due to the partial reversal of an inventory build made
during 2018 in preparation for the FMD and Brexit and a £1.2m
provision for Xonvea following the return of the licensing rights
to Duchesnay.

Total receivables increased by £1.8m, which primarily related

to the balance of the Xonvea milestone repayments, receivable
this year, whilst payables (excluding contingent consideration)

increased by £0.1m.

Cash flow and net debt

Free cash flow {see note 33 for definition) for the year was very
strong at £29.1m (2018: £16.1m), due primarily to the increase in
underlying operating profit in 2019.

Net debt decreased by £26.6m to £59.2m at 31 December 2019
(2018: £85.8m|, a reflection of the Group's strong underlying
cash generation.

Consequently, adjusted net debt/EBITDA leverage reduced to
1.48 times ot 31 December 2019 {2018: 2.33 times), comfortobly
within our covenant limit of 3.0 times.

Wa expect free cash flow generation to remain good in 2020
and, in the absence of acquisitions, expect leverage to reduce to
below 1.0 times during the second haif of the year, excluding the
impact of the coronavirus noted earlier.

Treasury and capital mancgement

The Group’s operations are financed by retained earnings and
bank borrowings, with additional equity being raised on a
periodic basis to finance larger acquisitions.

The Group manages its exposure o currency fluctuations on
translation by managing currencies ai Group level using bank
accounts denominated in its primary trading currencies (Sterling,
Euro and US Dallars) and foreign exchange forward contracts.

As previously reported, in July 2019, the Group agreed a new
£165m tully Revolving Credit Facility, together with a £50m
accordion, with an enlarged syndicate of lenders on improved
terms, replacing the existing facility which ran through to
December 2020. This new facility is available until July 2023,
with a one-year extension opticn, and provides further flexibility
for the Group ta deliver carefully targeted acquisitions over the
next few years to complement its organic growth strategy.

Andrew Franklin
Chief Financial Officer

7 April 2020
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

At a global level, Alliance Pharma
recognises that it is essential that we
actively manage our risks and maximise
our opportunities.

We remain focused on our values and believe that adopting responsible behaviour
across our business activities plays an important part in achieving our purpose.
The Board ensures a healthy balance between the risks we face and harnessing the
opportunities to support sustainable growth in order to help meet the Group’s
strategic objectives, delivering value to our shareholders.

Our approach to risk management and internal control  The Committee reports regularly to the Board and, ot least
ance a year, the Board carries out o formal review of risk
management and the risks which have been identified by the

risk manogement process. Those risks which the Board is not
prepared to take, are aveided, mitigated as far as possible

The Board has primary responsibility for the Group’s overali
approach 1o risk management and systems of internal control. The
Board has delegated oversight of the management of risk and
internal control to the Audit and Risk Committee. During the year,
and Tn line with its responsibilities pursuant to its terms of reference, and/or transterred to insurers.
the Audit and Risk Committee reviews the identification, evaluation

and management of the risks facing the business and considers the

effectiveness of associated processes and controls.

'| Oversight The Board and * The Audit and Risk Committee reviews the framework for risk management and
and reporting the Audit and Risk considered the Group’s principle risks and uncertainties.
Committee E?Gd“' + The Audit and Risk Committee reparts directly to the Board.
process for risk
management
2 Identify and Top down/bottom + The identification and assessment and monagement of risks in the business is driven
assess up review and monitored by the Senior Leadership Team with the support of the Company
Secretary.

» The existence of a risk is identified from either a ‘bottom-up’ process involving fine
management or a ‘tap-down’ review by the Senior Leadership Team. As well as a
consolidated Group Risk Register, there are risk registers in place ot a functional
business level.

= Risks are identified ond assessed by the likelihood of them occurring and their
potentict impact on the business. This calculates the potential level of exposure on
the business. These are then categorised to identify those that can be effectively
managed at a functional or departmental level and those that need to be addressed
at a cross-functional business level.

* Risk registers are regularly reviewed to capture and identify new risks and identify
opportunities to improve the mitigating actions.

3 Review and The SIT reviews + Each risk is allocated o business owner, who is responsible for implementing the
H mitigate progress and mitigating actions and reporting an progress with those improvements and the status
mitigatians of those risks to the Senior Leadership Team. The Senior Leadership Teom reviews

all risks on a quarterly basis, with the principol risks being monitored monthly and,
in the case of the principal risks and uncertainties, such risks are reported to ond
reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee as well as the Board.

= Actions being taken, or that should be taken, to help mitigote the potenfial exposure to -
the risks are regularly reviewed to ensure the oppropriate individual ‘owns’ the risk and
the actions being taken remain effective

4 Reportand The Audit and Risk » The Company Secretary prepares an update report on risk and nofifies the Audit i
: review Committee reviews and Risk Committee of key changes fo the Group Risk Register.
and discusses key

risks identified

* Existing mitigations are censidered for each risk and the residual levels of exposure
assessed.
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“The Audit and Risk Committee keeps under review the Group’s internal financial

controls systems that identify, assess, manage and monitor financial risks, and

other internal control and risk management systems.”

DAVID COOK
Independent Non-executive Chairman

The responsibilities surreunding risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet the needs of the size and
complexity of the business. It takes into account the applicable requirements of pharmaceutical regulators in the various markets in
which the business operates and the regulatory and legal requirements as a UK AlM quoted plc.

The internal controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate risk and provide reasonable but not absclute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The key components of the current system of internal control are:

Communicating our strategy and
our values
Planning

Policies, processes and procedures

Reporting, management information
and discussion

Organisational structure,
accountability and delegated
authorities

Training and monitoring

Setting and communicating clear strategic goals to the business helps ensure all employees
understand the objectives on the business and raises awareness.

Defining the Group’s values and maintaining a code of ethics for all employee to encourage @
culture that promoles good behaviour.

Developing clear business plans and budgets in line with strategy, supported by intra-year
forecasting. This provides the business with clear points of reference.

Developing clear policies and procedures for all areas of the business which consider all aspects
of legal, regulatory and ethical responsibility. Final implementation of the Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP) system will further strengthen and enhance the Group's systems of internal control
This provides the business with an opportunity to review processes and reporting practices

Regular repoarting of actuol performance relative to those strotegic goals, plans, budgets and
forecasts. This ensures the business con track and trace factors that could impact on strategy
and perfermance.

Creating an appropriale structure of responsibility and accauntability, including segregation of
duties, appropriate reporting lines for key managers and regular line management communications
and one-to-one meetings where performance is discussed, supported by an appraisal process.

Working within a defined set of delegated authorities approved by the Board to the CEQ, and
thraugh him, to the Senior Leadership Teom and their delegates through avthorisation registers
managed at o departmental and functional level. This ensures and protects individuals who may
not fully appreciate or understand the risk and maintains controls where most needed to prevent
risks oceurring.

Training and monitoring employees’ understanding of the external regulatory codes which are
applicable to the Group’s business, as well as the Group’s internal| policies and procedures.

Management menitoring of compliance with the external regulatory codes which are applicable
to the Group business, as well as the Group’s internal policies and procedures, and responding
appropriately to any breaches.

Internal Aydit Function

Each year, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board separately consider the need for an internal audit function. Given the current
size of the Group, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Board do not judge it appropriate to maintain a dedicated internal audit

function. This position is kept under review.
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

As we continue to grow as a business,
the risks we face continue to be carefully
managed.

During the year, the Bocrd reviewed the principal risks and The table below/overleaf is not an exhaustive list of all risks the
uncertainties facing the Group and continues to focus on those Group faces but are the principal risks and uncertainties, which
which could threaten our business madel, reputation, future the Directors believe include all known material risks in relation to
performance, solvency or liquidity of the business. These have the Group and the markets and industry within which we operate.
been linked to the key elements of our strategy as described on
page 20. The environment in which we operate is constantly evolving and
can be affected by events that are outside of our control and
Principal risks are assessed on a residual basis eccording to our which may impact on us operationally. New risks may arise,
current view of their potential severity {being the combination the potenticl impact of known risks, including how quickly they
of impact and likelihood), and assuming that existing plans for escalate, may increase or decrease, and/or our assessment
mitigation are and remain effective. of these risks may need to change. One such new risk arising

since the year-end is COVID-19. The Company has mobilised its
business continuity plan and continues to assess and deal with the
challenges emerging as o result of the pandemic on our business
and its operation, further details of which is set out on page 33.

Market competition - the products we buy/sell are subject
to the market forces of supply and demand and new competition

Link to strategy Risk description and impact Monagement and mitigation Trend
Maximising The products we sell are subject to normal market — The Group constantly monitors < >
and extending forces, so demand may fall, our products may face that marketing campaigns deliver

brand potential new or increased competition or the price we can to support the strategy.

. achieve may be reduced. -
International 4 - We continue to moniter and This risk has not
expansion Qurinability te generate profits from sales, or te regularly forecast sales, costs, chenged materially

convert those profits into cash flow may resultin profits and cash flows. since last year.

insufficient cash 1o reinvest into the business, or to
service our debt copital. Any incbility to generate
cash would impact on our liquidity and could lead
to non-compliance with the covenants to which our
debt facilities are subject or our ability to maintain
dividend poyments.

- The Group has implemented o Glokal
Marketing excellence programme,

Compelition comes from several different sources.
The Group has to ensure it has adequote resources
to respond to any increased competition which
includes new entrants into UK or overseas markets.

These risks have the potential to compromise our
future perfarmance and, in an extreme scenario,
cash generation.

Product regulation - our products are subject to UK and overseas regulatory requirements

Link to strategy Risk description and impact Monagement and mitigation Trend
Maximising and Some of our products may not gain regulatory - The business allocates significant < >
extending brand approval or could face the risk of having their and experienced resources to supporting
potential regulatory status challenged or adversely altered. the regulatory approval of preducts, o
This ceuld affect the Group's ability to launch any including any extensions to ather markets.  This risk hos not
new products, maintain sales of its current products changed materially

- The business engages in regular since last year.
discussions with local regulatory advisers
{internal and externol} to monitor any
products that may be subjectio challenge.

in current jurisdictions or expand geographically.
These risks have the potential to compromise our
future performance and, in an extreme scenario,

cosh generation.
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“ New risks may arisc, the potential impact of known risks, including how quickly

thev escalate, may increasce or decrease, and or our assessment of these risks may

need to change.”

RICHARD JONES

Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

Continued expansion and growth of the business — new markets become less attractive
and potential acquisitions larger in size

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Mancgement and mitigation

Trend

Maximising and
extending brand
potential

International
expansion

There can be no guarantiee that the Group will

ke able to identify svitable fargets to continue its
expansion. The market for high quality products
{whether bedrack or growth) is highly competitive
and the Group may find itself unable to compete
in such a market if the pricing of such targets
proves prohibitive.

As the Group looks fo increase the size of its targets,
the complexity around acquisition and integration
of such 1argets also increases. The financial impact
of such potential risks {unidentified risks during due
diligence, external advisers, additional stoff etc)
could impact on the profitability of such targets

and the Group as a whole.

Pipeline — We menitor the market for
attractive acquisitions te develop a
pipeline of opportunities that we could
potentially bring inte our portfolic of
products thereby ensuring that we remain
compstitive in the industry. Our dedicated
Corporate Development Team has many
years’ experience in identifying and
completing transactions, as well as a wide
network of contacts in both medium and
hig pharma.

integration - continue to ensure that we
integrate acquisitions intc the business in
an effective and efficient manner, with an
experienced due diligence and integration
team within the various functions.

Business development skills and expertise
are supplemented by in-house legal
counsel with many years' experience in
ME&A transactions.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since last year.

Supply choin, sourcing and logistics - potential constraints on our ability to supply and deliver
products to our customers

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation

Trend

Maximising and
extending brand
potential

Manvfactyring, sourcing or distribution issues,
including an inability to increase production volumes
to meet demand, impinges on our potential sales.
These risks have the potential to compromise cur
future performance and, in an extreme scenario,
cash generation.

The products we sell could risk losing their regulatory
approval in the relevant territory or could become
subject to public procurement processes resulting in
constraints on either aur ahility to supply or the prices
that con be achieved.

We have developed forecaosting systems
that allow us to work with our contracted
manufacturers fo ensure production
volumes meet our ability to supply products.

Where necessary and appropriate, we

ensure that the investment in capacity or
sourcing of components from within aur

supply chain is increased.

Generally, we ensure sufficient stock
is held in the supply chain for most
preducts. This is balstered by the dual
sourcing of our brands where it is
deemed appropriate.

The diversification through selling a wide
range of products, many of which do not
require regulatory approval, or are not

subject fo public procurement processes.

Qur experienced technical and regulatory
staff build and maintain their knowledge
of the public-sector precurement process.

Where possible, and cost effective, the
potential financial impact of supply chain
disruption is mitigated by insurance.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since last year.
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Attraction and retention of key employees — losing good people to competitors or failing to
recruit qualified people

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Management ond mitigation

Trend

Investing in people

Competitors may try io recruit some of our key
employees. The business recruits ond is dependent
on certain key execulive employees. Whilsi the
business has entered into employment arrangements
with the view of securing their service, we cannot
guarantee their retention which means we run the risk
of losing good people, and with it their knowledge,
skills and expertise.

Working ot an internationa! level means we must

be able 1o access good gualified people to support
the business both from the UK and in our overseas
territories. Changes in political landscapes, and local
rules and regulations can hove an impeet on our ability
to recruit foreign nationals.

The loss of those employees could weaken the Group's
management capabilities, impacting on our day-le-
day operations.

The Group is committed to putting in place
incentive and reward structures that are
regularly reviewed to ensure we remain

a competitive employer.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
We ensure that roles and responsibilities since last year.
are clearly defined end are supported by

documented systems and procedures to

provide a level of continuity in the event

on employee moves on in their career.

We work with international and local
couniry agencies fo ensure we find and
recruit good quality employees. Working
with existing foreign nationals based in

the UK to support their employment in the
Group, ¢s the political landscape changes.

Induction and training for mew employees

— the Group has a structured and wide-
ranging induction process for new joiners

to ensure that they understand the Group,

its business and how important the role they
will play is within the Group. This has helped
nurture o positive team and work ethic within
the Group.

Group-wide fincncial, legal and regulatory compliance - failing to meet legal or regulatory compliance

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Monagement and mitigation

Trend

Maximising and
extending brand
potential

As we enter new territaries and overseas markets, the
risks we are exposed fo in those overseas territories
and markets means we could be subject to matters
such as bribery, anti-slavery and corruption.

The Group operates in a highly regulated sector and
in markets and geographies around the world each
with differing requirements. As a result, and in the
narmal course of business, the Group can be subject
to several regulatory inspectiens/investigations on
an engoing basis. It is therefore possible that the
Group may incur penalties for non-compliance and
potentially impact on the sales of our products and
cause damage fo our brands and our reputation.

in addition, several of the Group's brands and
products are subject to pricing controls and other
forms of legal or regu|utory restrictions from both
governmental/regulatory bodies and also from
third parties.

The Group has ongoing regulatory requirements
{pharmacovigilance etc} which could, if not adhered
to, lead fo substantial fines and impact on the
Group's ability to sell certain products.

As the Group expands its operations, the VAT
and general lax environment in which it cperates
becomes more compliex and the risk to incorrectly
report and poy relevant taxes increases.

The business carries out careful
assessments with its legal, commercial

and operational feams, to determine
whether to recognise a provision in respect
of these motters. These judgements are
often complex ond rely on estimates and
assumptions as 1o future events.

<>

This risk has not
changed matericlly
since last year.

in-house Company Secretarial function
has been bolstered in order 1o increase
the internal management of corporate
compliance.

The Group hos engaged external

VAT consultants to implement control
improvements using current systems.

This will be further supperted by the
introduction of the new ERP system which
will assist with supply chain management
and VAT reporting.

Third party experts are engaged in our
overseas territaries to help us comply with
{ocal rules and regulations and ensure
that our operations are monitored against
them. We request raining and support
from service providers (UK and overseas)
to widen internal knowledge for our
employees for legal and regulatory issues.

induction and fraining far new employees
- the Group has a structured and
wide-ranging induction process for new
joiners to ensure that they understand their
individual, and the Group's, obligations in
relation to such matters os adverse event
reporting. Furthermore, the Group has a
programme of periadic training around
legal and regutatery comgliance.
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Foreign exchange risk ~ volatility in reported profits

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Management and miligation

Trend

International
expansion

The Group earns a proportion of its profits in
currencies other than Sterling, but accounts for
the business in Sterling. The reporting of profits
is therefere subject to volatility due to changes in
exchange rates.

The Group is funded by o combination of
Sterling-, Dollar- and Eura-denominated
debt, which provides e natural hedge to

some of these exposures.

in 2019 the Group has implemented a
new risk management policy to hedge

up to 75% of its estimated future foreign
currency EBITDA exposure. This forup 1o
the next 18 manths at any point in time.
The Group uses forward foreign exchunge
contracts to implement this palicy which
are generally designofed as cash flow
hedges At 31 December 2019 the Group
has outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts to sell €10.7m and $9.4m for
fixed sterling amounts.

<>

The unhedged
portion of the
Group's profits
earned in
currencies other
than Sterling has
increased in 2019,
however due to
implementation

of the new risk
management
policy the residual
risk is considered
materially similar.

Product liability - defective products etc

Link ta sirategy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation

Trend

Maximising and
extending brand
potentig|

The Group produces and sells o wide ronge of
medicines, medica! devices, food supplements and
cosmetics. There are inherent risks that some of these
products could cause adverse reactions exposing
the Group to the risk that [i) the praduct must be
withdrawn from sale and (i} that we may have legal
liability to those injured by that product.

These risks have the potential to damage our
reputation and compromise our future performance
ond, in an exireme scenario, liquidity position or
even solvency.

Dedicated in-house Quality
tunction, supplier audits.

The Group’s products are well
tolerated, and many have been
in existence for decades.

All products have regulatory approvel
in the markets we trade in.

We also carry public and products liakifity
insurance to provide an appropriate level
of protection for the Company

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since [ast year.

Information security and data protection

Link ta strutegy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation

Trend

Maximising and
extending brand
potential

We hold significant amounts of confidential date on
our customers and employees. Some of that dalc is
being collected via our Iransaction processes, which
includes financial information and other personal
data. A failure to abide by data profection rules or
incur o breach of data security could post a financial
and reputational risk to the Group.

We co-ordinate a complex supply chain with many
contract manufacturers, logistics intermediaries and
distributors, all of which rely on the availabifity of
our IT systems. In addition, we sell some products
directly through our website and therefore hold
some customer daia, the loss of which [whether
occidental or malicious) would cause disruption
and costto the Group.

As the Group now supplies o wider range of products
and has become more geographically diverse, itis
more reliant on its IT systems, so this risk is increasing.

These risks are likely to be short-term in nature, but
could affect our performance and, potentially, cash
generation. There would also be o reputational
impact if we suffered a major loss of personal data.

The Group has a range of measures in
place to monitor and mitigate this risk
including anfi-virus soflware, firewalls
and network segmentation that are
regularly updated; regular intreduction of
more up to date software ajso provides
additional in-built security; and incident
management, business conrinuiiy
management and IT disaster recovery
plans are in place.

Appropriate physical and cyber security
measures are in place to prevent
unautharised access to information.

We provide fraining and clerts to staft
members to ensure that they are fully
aware of technical data protocols.

Third parties are engoged to review and
recommend ongoing improvements to
enhance IT security and resilience.

The Group continues to monitor
compliance with GDPR.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since lost year.
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OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Business systems - ERP and other systems

Link lo strategy

Risk description and impact

Munagement and mitigation

Trend

Integrating
acquired products
and companies

Maximising and
extending brand
potential

international
expansion

There is always a risk to our business systems
that means we could lose functionality, end up
with corrupted files or suffer errors in our master
data systems.

Once implemented there is a risk that the ERP system
may foil to work as intended or deliver the expected
benefits. In addition, while this is expected to improve
the internal control environment, the transition

from, and eventual removal of, legacy T systems
creates continuity risks. In addition, the design and
implementation of new operating practices and
culture needed ta bring the ERP system into full effect
creates further risk 1o the Group’s business

These risks have the potential o compromise our
fulure performance and, in an extreme scenario,
cash generation.

The Group continues fo invest in its systems
generally and hos alse infroduced an 1T
Steering Group to provide oversight of
core systems across the business and lead
on changes required as a result of systems
development or regulatory changes.

We have selected on ERP system

with @ good track record and an
experienced company fo support the
Group in the implementation through

a structured process, developed o
carefully-considered project plan, hired
experienced project managers and
released staff from their normal roles to
facus on the project.

The project continues to have the support
of the Board and the Audit and Risk
Committee and is regularly reviewed by
the Senior Leadership Team and reported
on at Board level.

We continue to work towards successful
implementation of the ERP system
alongside stringent testing before retiring
the legacy systems.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since last year.

Business continuity - the ability to continue operating in the event of extreme events

Link to stralegy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation

Trend

Sustained growth

As with many businesses, we are at risk of problems
affecting our ability to continue operctions becouse
of extreme evens. This could be an event that affects
our people, operational sites, offices or equipment
and systems, which would prevent our business from
functioning as normal.

The Group, through its experienced IT
team, has implemented and continues to
monitor the suitability of disaster recovery
plans ta ensure an ability to continue with
its operations in the event of a disruplion
to any of its operating facilities or systems.

We use third parties to support and
review resilience of our operating
plattorms and recommendations are
implemented as appropriate.

<>

This risk has nat
changed materially
since last year.

Political uncertainty - Brexit

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation

Trend

Sustained growth

The business, its manaogement and employees ore

all aware of the poiential risks and uncertainties
created as a result of the UK leaving the EU {Brexit).
The potential impact of the eventual terms of Brexit
affects aspects across our business, including preduct
regulation, ability to trade cross-border, ability to
continue fo supply under existing terms, and our
ability to recruit foreign nationals to work with us in

the UK.

The business continues to monitor the
developments affecting our industry and
markets and we contemplate ‘what-if’
strategies where we have been alerted to
potential changes that could eccur.

The Group has esiablished an internal
Brexit Strategy Group te actively manage
this uncertainty. Only o limited amount of
our business is reliant on the movement of
goods between the UK and EU, however
to mitigate potential risk, we have
implemented our Brexit strategy, which
includes: building additional inventary

in order fo maintain sufficient supply of
key products; establishing a subsidiary
company ih the Republic of Ireland which
now haosts certain registrations; ond
duplicating key statutory roles in the UK
and EU olbeit on alimited basis.

<>

This risk has not
changed materially
since last year.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Pandemics and other worldwide events (COVID-19)

Link to strategy

Risk description and impact

Management and mitigation Trend

Sustained growth

The unprecedented situation around COVID-19 is
creafing an uncertain fime. The situation is changing
almost daily, and itis difficult to assess at the time
the final impact of COVID-19 The Group has taken
various steps early on in order to deal with the
situation which it finds itself in as well as to help
mitigate any potenticl impact fo its business and
people.

Whilst supply is holding up well, demand is horder to
forecast. Although the COVID-12 situation in China
and across the Asia Pacific looks to be improving,

we anficipate that demand in the Asia Pacific region,
including China, will be lower in the first half of 2020
and then, depending on the speed with which this
region returns to narmality, begin te recover in H2.
Sales in our UK and mainlond Europe businesses are
expected to be impacted, but o o lesser extent due to
the higher propertion of prescription medicines sold
in this region.

Given the fast-moving nature of the pandemic,

the full-year impact on trading of the COVID-19
ceronavirus is very difficult to forecast but we
onticipate that trading will be weighted fo the second
halt.

Any significant impact on the turnover of the Group
could affect the Group's ability to continue te comply
with its financial covenants within its borrowing
facilities.

Our priority is to ensure the safety of 7\
our people across the globe. In the UK,
Republic or Ireland, mainland Europe,
Singapore, and the US, our staff are

now working from home in line with local
government guidelines. Qur investment in
IT has ensured a high level of connectivity
throughout the world which means we can
operate remotely with minimal disruption
to the business. In Asia, we are pleased
that our Shonghai office has now fully
recpened.

The Group teak action to establish a
COVID-19 planning and action team early
on after the events in China started to take
effect. The team teok early action to assess
the impact on and safety of cur employees
and our supply chains. Distributors

were also contacted early on, and the
team stays in close and regular contact
with every element of our supply chains
[supplier, logistics and distributors} to
ensure it has up to date information which
allows the Group to plan any necessary
response.

Our supply chain is ho'ding up well and
we do not anticipate any material supply
impact in the current year. For those
products we sell directly, we hold typically
a minimum of three months of inventary
and, in some cases more, depending on
the level of clinical need.

Most of ourinternational sales are
generated via distributors, who typically
hold three 1o six months of inventory. We
continue to monitor our supplier base
for early indications of any issues and
are forward booking transpert for the
remainder of 2020 in order to mitigate
any future capacity constraints,

The Group has sufficient headroom
between operating leverage (31
December 2019: 1.5 times) and its
banking covenants which are set at 3.0
times net debt / EBITDA. The Group
regularly reviews its on-going cashfow
position and this is stress tested on a
monthly basis. The Group’s business is
profitable and cash generative.

This is a new risk.
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“ Governance continues to focus on our ability to develop and build a sustainable and
resilicnt strategy, centred on delivering growth, maintaining a dynamic management
framework and building trust. This is embedded in our culture of supportive
leadership which harnesses the skills and talents of our people.”

DAVID COQK
Independent Non-executive Chairman
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GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s introduction
to governance

“We recognise that
good governance can
contribute to our ability to
crcate shared value. Our
governance framework
promotces a culture
of accountability and
responsibility by actively
managing the risks that
we face, supported by our
values and behaviours.”

DAVID COOK
Chairman of the Board

DEAR SHAREHOLDER,

| am delighted to introduce this section on governance, which describes the activities of the
Board and its Committees during 2019 and how we have ensured governance remains a
pivotal part in the strategic development and day-to-day running of this business.

Maintaining our strong systems of good governance

As an AIM quoted company, our governance framework is underpinned by the Quoted
Companies Alliance [QCA) Corporate Governance Code 2018 (the 'QCA Code’).

In addition ta the QCA Code, we monitor developments and guidance in the UK
Corporote Governance Code, applicable to main market listed companies, 1o keep
obreast of matters which we feel could also be embedded as best practice as part of

a progressive approach.

Governance continues to focus on our ability to develop and build a sustainable and
resilient strategy, centred on delivering growth, maintaining a dynamic management
framework and building trust. This is embedded in our culture of supportive leadership
which harnesses the skills and talents of our pecple and is coupled with regular, open
dialogue with our investors at results presentations, one-to-one investor meetings and at our
Annual Generol Meeting [AGM’). Director changes mode at the beginning of 2019 have
balanced independence on the Board, and strengthened the skills and experience on the
Board and its Committees. This further enhances our the ability of the Board as a whole to
continue to take decisions in the interasts of all stakeholders over the medium to long-term.

In the following sections, we provide an update on our compliance with Corporate
Governance, the Remuneration Report and the Directors’ Report. In these reports we
set out our governance structures, along with overview of how the Company complies
with the Principles of the QCA Code which can be found on cur website at:
www.alliancepharmaceuticals.com/investors/governance

Due to the unprecedented situation with COVID-19 and in line with the Government’s Stay
at Home measures, the Board has taken the decision to hold this year's AGM on the 18
May 2020 at the Company's offices in Chippenham, with the CEQ and CFO attending in
person and the rest of the Board attending via audio conference. Shareholders will not be
permitted to ottend the AGM in person. Your Board understands that many shareholders
who would have liked to attend in person and ask questions of the Directors will not be able
to. The Company has arranged for a listen-only conference facility to allow shareholders
to dial in to the meeting for which details are included in the notice of AGM. it should also
be noted that all voting will be conducted on a pell. Only those votes received by proxy or
castin person will count and, as such, if you are planning on dialling in to the AGM then
you should cast your votes by post or online for them to be validly counted.

Thank you for your continued support and the Board would like to thank all shareholders
in advance for your co-operaticn around the arrangements for this year's AGM.

TR

David Cook
Chairman

7 April 2020



OUR GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Shareholders

Qur shareholders delegote fo the Board colleciively, the responsibility for the long-term success of the Company within a framewark

of good governance The Boord seeks to understand the investor base through regular dilogue and engagement.

The Board

The Board's role is to set the vision ond strategy for the Company. By putting in place the business model, the Board cims to deliver value to its shareholders.

There is a collective responsibility for the Group’s corporate governance arrangements to achieve the Company’s purpose This includes taking account

of the risks and opportunites and building and maintaining on healthy relationships with its stakeholders. To assist in discharging its duties, some areas of

responsibility are delegated 1o the Commitiees of the Board,

Mare infarmation on the activities of the Boord can be found on pages 56 te 61

The Nomination Committee

The Neominction Commitiee leads on
suecession planning; the process for
recruitment of new Board members, and
evoluoting compositicn and diversity to

ensure Board effectiveness.

. More information on the wark of he Nomination
2| Committes can be found on page 82

The Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee leads on reviewing
the Company’s integrity of the financia! results
and other reporting, cha“eng'\ng axternal
ouditors, and has aversight of the effectiveness of

risk manogement and systems of internal control

y More information on the work of the Audil and Risk
Commiltee can be found on poges 43 and 64

Senior Leadership Team

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee leads on
designing remuneraton policy, determining
Board and senior executive remuneration, and
takes occount of the wider Group pay and

associated pohicres

n, Matewnformalion onthe wark of the Remuneratian
Committee can be found on poges 6510 72

The LT mests on a regular basis. 1t is led by the Chief Executive, comprises the senior leadership who have manogement responsibility,

and hos responsibility for business aperation and ifs support functions.

The Malters Reserved to the Board and Cemmittee terms of reference can be viewed an the Company’s website

MEMBERS AND MEETINGS AT A GLANCE

Schedvled ond unscheduled meetings between 1 Janvary 2019 and 31 December 2019

Board Nomination Audit and Risk Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

13 meetings 2 meetings 3 meefings 10 meetings

David Cook Chairman  Independent 13/13 Nigel Ciifford Chair 2/2 Richord Jones Chair 3/3 Nigel Cliffard Chair 10/10

Peter Butterfield (i‘EO - 13/13 David Cook NED 2/2 Cavid Cook V NED  3/3 David Cook NED 10/10

Andrew Franklin CFO - 13/13 lo LeCouiliiard  NED 2/2 JoLleCouiliard NED  3/3 Jo leCouvilliord  NED 10/10

Nigel Clifford NED \r;dependem 13/13 Richard Jones  NED 2/2

Jo LeCoui\Iioﬂrd V NEb 7 Vlnrdapendent Ié/'\ 3

Richard Jones NED Independent 1

3/13
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board is committed to
maintain a high standard of
governance and integrity.

Experience

DAVID COOK

Independent Non-executive
Chairman

David joined the Board ol Alliance as
a Non-executive Directorin 2014 and
was Uppoimed Chawman of the Board
on | March 2018

David qualified as a
Chartered Accountant with
PricewaterhouseCoopers ofter
graduating in chemistry at the
University of Oxford

He is currently Chief Financial Officer
and an Executive Director of Ellipses
Pharma, an international cancer drug
development company, and was
previously Chief Financie! Officer
and Chief Business Officer of Biotie
Therapies Corp, a drug development
company quated in Helsinki ond on
NASDAQ. He has previously held
senior financial positions with Jazz
Pharmaceuticals International, EUSA
Phorma and Zeneus Pharma.

David has extensive experience

of financiol and general business
management {including the
implementation of buy and build
slralagiesl in the Iife sciences sector,
of financing those businesses and
managing investor relations across a

number of stock markets globally.

PETER BUTTERFIELD
Chief Executive Officer

Peter was previously the Company's
Deputy ChietExecutive Olfcer and
was oppointed to his present office as
Chiel Executive Officer on 1 May 2018
having joined Alliance in 2010 as an
Executive Director.

Peter holds an honours degree in
Pharmacology from the University

of Edinburgh

Peter has over 20 years' experience

16 the life sciences sector and strong
leadership experience gained in a
variety of contexts. Peter |oined the
Board of Alliance in 2010 with the
ocquisition of Cambridge Labarateries
where he spent five years, lotterly

as UK Commercial Director. Prior to
joining Cambridge Laboratories, Peter
spent six years at GlaxoSmithKline in
a variety of marketing and sales roles

ANDREW FRANKLIN
Chief Financial Officer

Andrew joined Alliance in September
2015 trom Panasonic Europe Ltd, where
he was General Manager, European

Tax and Accounting.

Andrew holds an honours degree in
Civil Engineering from the University

of Wales, Cardiff.

Fram 2010 to 2012 Andrew was
Finance Director end Company
Secretary of Genzyme Therapeutics
Ltd, the UK ond Ireland subsidiary of
Genzyme Corporation Prior to that,
he gained 12 years’ pharmaceuical
experience with Wyeth in a variety of

senior financial positions.

Andrew 15 a Fellow af the Instituie of
Chartered Accountants in England and
Woales with extensive experience of
fingncial management of infernational
businesses, including signilicant prior

experience in life science companies.

Commiittce membership

Alliance Pharma ple — Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Committee membership key

. Audit and Risk Committee

. Nomination Committee

. Remuneration Commiitee

Bl -ommittee Chair

NIGEL CLIFFORD

Independent Non-executive
Director

Nigel joined the Board of Alliance
as a Non-executive Directorin 2015

Nige! graduated in Geography fram
the University of Cambridge and has an
MBA from Strathclyde University,

He wos appointed Deputy Chair ot
the UK Government’s new Geospatial
Commission in December 2018 and

1s an Operating Partner with Marlin
Operations Graup. Previously, he held
Chief Executive and senior pasitions ot
Ordnance Survey, Procserve Holdings,
Micro Focus International pic, Nokia,
Symbian Software, Tertio Telecoms,
Cable and Wireless plc, Glasgow
Royal Infirmary NHS Trust and BT pic
He also served aos a Nen-executive

Director of Anite plc.

He brings significant experience of the
strategic and commercial management
of complex global businesses, gained

in a variety of industry sectars and

under a variety of ownership siructures.

‘ Yiew the Nominaton Committee report
onpage 62

. ¥iew the Remuneration Commitiee report

on poge 65

RICHARD JONES
Independent Nen-executive
Director

Richard joined Alliance as o Non-

exacutive Director on | Januvary 2019

Richard has a degree in Engineering
fram Newcastle University and is a
Chortered Accountant,

Since the start of 2017 he has been
CFO and a Boord member of Mereo
BigPharma Group PLC, o UK listed
biopharma company developing a
range of praducts in bone, endocrine
and respiratory therapies with a focus
on rare diseases.

Richard joined Mereo from UK AIM
listed Shield Therapeutics plc where

he was Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary from early 2011
having initially joined the Board as

a Non-executive Director in 2010.

At Shieid he had a lesding role
establishing the finance operotions and
guiding Shield through its 2016 IPO

Prier to this, Richard had a career in
investment banking, holding senior
pasitions ot Investec and Brewin
Dolphin Securities, where he advised
healthcare clients on a wide range of
rransactions including 1FCs, M&A and

fundraisings.

View the Audit and Risk Committee report
on poge &3

JO LECOUILLIARD

Independent Non-executive
Director

Jo |pined Alllance as o Non-execulive
Director an 1 January 2019

Jo graduated in Natural Sciences
from Cambridge University and is a
Chartered Accountant

She has 23 years’ healthcare
management experience gained in
Europe, the WS and Asia. Much of her
career has been in pharmaceuticals
at GlaxeSmithKline where, amongst
other roles, she headed the US
vaccines business and Asia Pacific
Pharmaceuticals business and led

a programme to madernise the
commercial medel. She was previously
Chief QOperating OHficer of the BM}
group of private hospitals in the UK,
She was Non-executive Director al
Frimley Park NHS Foundatian Trust in
the UK and at the Duke NU§ Medizal
Schoolin Singapore.

She is currently a Non-executive
Director at the UK listed companies
Circassio Pharmaceuticals ple, Cello
Health plc and is on the Board of
Recordti $.p.a, o company listed in
Milan.
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GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Compliance with the
Principles of the QCA Code

QCA Principle

To establish a strategy and business
model which promote long-term value
for shareholders

To seek to understand ond meet
shareholder needs and expectations

To take into account wider
stakeholder and socicl responsibilities
and their implications for long-term
succes;

To embed effective risk management,
considering both oppartunities and
threots, throughout the argenisation

To maintain the Board as a well-
functioning, balanced team led by
the Chuir

Explanation

The Board meets onnually at a two-day strategy planning meeting to review the strategy for the Group.
The strategic plan and business model are reviewed by the Senior Leadership Team on a monthly basis
with relevant operational and monagement updates being reported to demonstrate delivery and progress.
Decisions of the Board are made in line with the strotegic plan and business medel for the Group.

Further informalion on the Group's stralegy con be found on pages 20 and 21 and on s business model on pages 14 and 15

The Directers are committed o cpen communication with the Group’s shareholders to ensure that they
clearly understand its business, strategy and performance. The Board actively seeks dialogue with its
shareholders via investor roadshows, capital market days, one-to-cne meetings and regulor reporting.
The Board believes that open communication with investors and analysts is the best way to ensure it
understands what is expected of the Group in order 1o allow it to drive its business forward.

The Board values the epinions of key stokehalders in the business and regularly seeks to ensure that the
views of its employees, suppliers, customers and partners are known and where relevant to the success
of our business they are ected upon. The Board continues to be mindful of environmental, social and
governance represeniation.

Further infermation about our stakeholder engagement can be found on pages 161c 19

The Board, assisted by the Audit and Risk Committee, is ultimotely responsible for overseeing
management’s activities in identifying, evaluating and managing the risks facing the Group and records
them on the Group risk register, which is reviewed quarterly. Where these risks are not ones which the
Board is prepared to take, these are avoided, eliminated as far as possible and /or transferred 1o insurers.
The management of both risks and cppartunities feeds into the decision-making process.

A turther explanatian of cur risk menagement, risks ond wternal controls can be found on pages 42 to 49

The Board keeps under review its current balance and compesition, which provides o sufficiently wide
range of skills and experience to enable it o pursue its sirategic goals and to address anticipated issues
in the foresesable future. Led by the Chair, deliberations are nol dominated by ane persen or any group
of people.

Further information on the board effectiveness, roles and responsibilifies can be found on pages 58 to 61

Key activities of the Board and its Committees

The Directors are aware and mindful of their duties and
obligations under 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006. The
Board ensures that the decisions it takes, it does so to promote
the success of the Group os a whele and having considered
the likely and long-term consequences and wider stakeholder

2019

Januecry

considerations. Open and honest discussion at Board level
between management and the Directors considers the impact on
the Group's stakeholders when reviewing items flowing up to the
Board as part of its activities, whether this is reviewing strategy,
budget or a corporate development opportunity.

February March Aprit Moy

Board and Committee activities

Shareholder communications

and engagement

Boord evaluation

Trading update

CMA discussion
Re-financing

Re-financing
Product review

Annual Report
Final dividend

Review Eurcpean
operations

Annual General
Meeting

Preliminary results
Webcast presentation
nvestor roadshow

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



The Board believes that the QCA Code continues to provide an appropriate and
suitable framework for a group of our size and complexity. The following table
demonstrates how we have applied the ten principles of the QCA Code.

10

QCA Principle

To ensure that between them the
Directors have the necessary
up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

To evoluate Board perfarmance
based on clear and relevant
objectives, seeking continuous
improvement

Te promote a culture that is based on
ethical values and behaviours

To maintain governance structures
ond processes that are fit for purpose
and support good decision-making
by the Board

To communicate how the Company
is governed and is performing

by maintaining a dialogue with
shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders

Explanation

The Nomination Commitiee reviews the balance and composition of the Board and its
Committees which considers skills and experience of the Board.

Further infermatian on the work of the Neminalion Commiltee can be found on page 42

The Chairman evaluates the performance of the Board through a blend of questionnaires and
one-to-one meetings with each Director. This pracess offers Directors an oppartunity to discuss
their contribution in terms of their skills and experience a: well as identifying improvements or
development to enhance the capabilities of the Bourd as a whole.

Further information on Boord evaluation and its effechiveness can be found on page 41

The Board aims to lead by example and make decisions that are in the besl interest of the Group
as a whole. Cur culture is underpinned by a clear set of vclues, which guide decision making at
all levels in the business. Both the SLT and the Board reviaws and cppreves the Group's policies
which are then implemented and communicated internally and externally to those whao are
expecled to adhere to them.

Further information en people end culture can be found on pages 34 and 35

The Board reviews its assurance and governance framework at least annually to ensure that
the Group's governance structures remain appropriate and are fit for purpose. This framework
sets aut lecdership and embeds delegoted responsibilities to enoble informed and confident
decision-making.

The Board ensures thal oll stakehalders across the business are actively engaged through the
relevant areas of responsibility. This includes making sure that the business as a whole vpholds
its values and monitors behaviour for acceptability.

Furlher information on our dialogues and engogement with sharehelders ond other stukehalders con be found an
pages 14 te 19, and poge 59

For example, all acquisition opportunities are assessed to
understand their impact on not only the potential income
generation and the additional value creation for shareholders,

but also how such an oppoertunity impacts on costs and wider
rasource of the business. Each meeting considers what information

This can take the form of written reports, market reviews and
guidance, and presentations and briefings from both internal
members of staff and external advisors. Further information on
how the Group engages with its stakeholders is exploined on
pages 16to 19,

is needed to assist the Directors with their responsibilities.

June

July August

Seplember October November December

Strategic plenning

Risk review
held*

Trading update
Private Client Fund
Manager meetings

No Board meeting

Nomincted Advisor
presentation

Share opfion
DWUrdS

2020 budget review 2020 budget

approval

Half-Yeor results
Interim dividend
Product review

and presentations
Product review

Half-Yeor results Consultation on
Investor roadshow  share plans

Although there 1s no schedvled meeting In August, @ monagement pack is circuloted
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GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

LEADERSHIP
The role of the Board

The Board currently comprises six Directors, being the Chairman,
three further independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors. Together, they are responsible for providing
effective leadership to promote the long-term success of the
Company. There is a formal list of matters reserved for the Board,
which may only be amended by the Board and is available on our
website. The key responsibilities of the Board include:

* setting the Group’s vision and strategy;

* maintaining the policy and decision-making process through
which the strategy is implemented;

* checking that necessary financial and human resources are in
place to meet strategic aims;

* providing entrepreneurial leadership within a framework of
good governance ond sound risk managemen;

* monitoring performance against key financial and non-
financial indicators;

» responsibility for risk management and systems of internal
control; and

* setting values ond standards in corporate governance matters.

Board Committees

The Board has delegated and empowered three Committees:

a Remuneration Committee, a Nomination Committee and an
Avdit and Risk Committee. Each Committee has written terms of
reference set by the Board, which are reviewed annually and

are available on the Company’s website. Membership of each
Committee is determined by the Boord on the recommendation of
the Nomination Committee. Each Committee Chair reports to the
Board on the activities considered and determined by the relevant
Committee. A summary of the Committees’ responsibilities and
their work during the year can be found in the reports from the
Committees appearing iater in this section.

The Company Secretary is secretary to all the Board's
Committees who has the responsibility for ensuring members
receive relevant and timely information to enable discussions
and decision-making.

Alliance Pharma plec ~ Annval Report and Accounts 2019

Directors’ duties ond decision-making

The powers and duties of the Directors are determined by
legislation and the Company’s Arficles of Association. Directors
are required to actin good faith in @ way that they consider would
be most likely to promote the success and having considered

the views of the wider stakehalders of the Company. The Board
factors the needs and concerns of the Company's stakeholders
into its discussions and decisions in accardance with 5.172 of the
Companies Act 2006,

Where appropriate, the Board receives recommendations in
relation to matters delegated to the Committees of the Board
which conduct their work in accordance with their respective terms
of reference.

Board activities

The Board held 11 scheduled meetings during the year ot which
it considered all matters of a routine nature, structured through
clear agenda setting, written reports and presentations from
both internal members of staff as well as external advisors and
consultants, In addition, there were two ad-hoc meetings of the
Boord to deal with non-routine business.

Board support, meeting management and attendance
Attendance

The Board and its Commitiees meet regularly on scheduled dates.
This includes a two-day strategy meeting in each year which is
also attended by all senior executives of the Group, the purpose
of which is to review progress in delivering ogreed plans and

to develop and settle the Group’s business plans and long-term
strategic targets and set the framework for the achievement of
those goals.

In leading and controlling the Company, the Directors are
expected to attend all meetings and their attendance for the
financial year 2019 is shown on page 53.

Meeting management

The Company Secretary plays a vital role in ensuring good
governance, assisting the Chairman. On behalf of the Chairman,
Chris Chrysanthou is responsible for ensuring that all Board and
Committee meefings are conducted properly, that the Directors
are properly briefed on any item of business to be discussed. His
role is also vital in relation to both legal regulatery compliance
and for ensuring thot governance requirements are considered
and implemented and for accurately recording each meeting.
He has a direct line into the Chairman on all matters relating

to governance.



Procedures are in ploce for distributing meeting agendas

and reports so that they are received in good time, with the
appropriate information. Ahead of each Board meeting, the
Directors each receive reporis which include updates on
strategy, finance, including monthly monagement accounts,
operations, commercial activities, business development, risk
management, legal and regulatory, people and infrastructure
and on investor relations.

The Directors may have access to independent professional
advice, where needed, ot the Group's expense.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board and its Committees recognise thatto meet its
responsibilities to shareholders and its stakeholders, it is important
to ensure effective engagement with, and encourage participation
from, these parties. The Board factors the needs and concerns of
the Company’s stakehclders into its key activities and decisions
through its reporting and throughout its discussions to ensure that
the Directors’ dufies under 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Company communicates with shareholders through

the Annual Report and Accounts, full-year and half-year
anncuncements, the AGM and one-to-one meetings with
existing or potential new shareholders. Such reports as well as
other relevant annovncements and related information are ail
aveilable on the Company’s corporate website,
www.alliancepharmaceuticals.com

A list of the Company’s major shareholders can be found in
the investor section of our website which is regularly updated
following the formal notification of movements to the Company.

Furthermore, analysts’ notes and brokers’ briefings are received
ond considered by the Board in order to ensure, as far as possible,
a clear and up-to-date understanding of investors’ views.

The Company completes regular annual employee surveys to
maintain an open dialogue with employees and holds a monthly
breakfast briefing for all employees around the warld where

the Company's perfermance, targets and key objectives are
communicated and discussed.

Engagement with our shareholders

Throughout the year the CEO and CFQO meet with potential
investors and existing institutional shareholders and the Board is
provided with feedback from all meetings and communications
with shareholders. The Board is provided with an analysis of

the Company’s invester base at each meeting and research
notes by sell-side analysts are circulated to all Directors. Further
information on investor sentiment is provided to the Board by the
Company’s brokers and financial PR advisars.

The Group recognises the importance of retail shareholders and
the “Investors’ section on the Group’s website is regularly updated
with the aim of providing good information for all investors, but
particularly retail shareholders. The website offers a facility to sign
up for email alert notifications of Company news and regulatory
announcements, In addition, the CEQ and CFO regulorly present
at conferences attended by many potential and current retail
investors and meet with specialist private client fund managers,
following which feedback is given to the Board.

In addition to meetings arranged throughout the year with
investors or potential investors, there were at least 60 scheduled
meetings held as part of the Company's investor roadshows for the
annual 2018 and half-year result 2019 results.

Annual General Meeting {AGM’)

This year’s AGM will take place at 10.00am on 18 May 2020

at our offices at Avonbridge House, Bath Road, Chippenham,
Wiltshire, SN15 2BB. Due to the unprecedented events around
COVID-19 this yeor's AGM will take a more restricted form. Only
the CEO and CFO will attend in person in order to provide a
quorum of shareholders. All other Directors will aitend via audio
conferencing, which is a listen-only focility also being made
available to shareholders.

All voting will be taken on a poll and shareholders are being
asked to cast their votes by post or on-line. Shoreholders are not
permitted to ottend the AGM in person due to the Government’s
Stay at Home measures.

The Notice of Meeting is available on the Company’s website at
www.alliancepharmaceuticals.com/investors/governance /agm

Electronic communications

We wrote to all shareholders in January 2019, requesting that
shareholders consider moving away from hard copy Company
communications. This means that, instead of being obliged to
send Annual Reports, notices of shareholder meetings and other
documents 1o shareholders in hard copy by post, the Company
can instead elect to publish them on its website at www.
alliancepharmaceuticals.com. Using the website and email allows
us to reduce printing aond postage costs and it is better for many
shareholders who can choose and access just the information they
need, from the website, at any time.

Shareholders still have the right to ask for paper versions of
shareholder information, but we are strongly encouraging all
shareholders to consider the electronic option.
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GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibilities of both the Chairman and CEQ are clearly
defined and understood.

The Chairman

The Chairman, David Cook, has primary responsibility far
leading the Board, facilitating the effective contribution of all
members and ensuring that it operates effectively in the interests
of the shareholders. In addition, he maintains a strong focus on
governance fo ensure good practice is embedded in the day to

day operations with good flows in communication and reperting.

He maintains a regular dialogue with the CEO to ensure the
business receives the support from the Board necessary to
progress the strategy.

The Chairman also meets with the Non-executive Directors on
their own together ot least once a year and on their own as
part of the Board evaluation process. Shareholders have an
opporiunity to engage with the Chairman and the Board at
the Company’s AGM.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

The CEQ, Peter Butterfield is responsible for the day-to-day
running of the business which includes implementation of the
strategy. He is supported by the SLT who have management
responsibility for the business operations and support functions.
Relevant matters are reporfed fo the Boord by the CEQ and, as
appropriate, the Chief Financial Officer and other members from
the SLT.

Board independence
Non-executive Directors

The role of cur Non-executive Directaors is to:
*» provide oversight and scrutiny of the perfermance of the
Executive Directors;

*» constructively challenge to help develop and execute on the
agreed strategy;

* satisfy themselves as to the integrity of the financial reporting
systems and the information they provide;

*» safisfy themselves as to the robustness of the internal controls;

* ensure that the systems of risk management are robust and
defensible; and

¢ review corporate performance and the reporting of such
performance to shareholders.

Alliance Pharma plc — Annual Reporf and Accounts 2016

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors sits on at

least two of the Audit and Risk, Nomination and Remuneration
Commitiees. This ensures that the Independent Non-executive
Directors between them have a role in determining the pay and
benefits of the Executive Directors and play a key role in planning
Board succession including the appointment and, if necessary,
removal of Executive Directors. Three Independent Non-executive
Directors, all of whom have an accountancy qualification, sit on
the Audit and Risk Committee, enabling them to review internal
control and finoncial reporting matters at first hand, and have a
direct relationship with the external auditors.

Each Non-executive Direclor is appainted for an initial term of
three years, subject to annuol re-election by shareholders at the
Company’s AGM. Their appointment term may be renewed by
mutual agreement. On appointment, the Non-executive Directors
receive a shructured induction into the business.

Senior Independent Director (51D)

Each year the Nomination Committee considered whether it

is appropriate to have a $ID te act as a sounding board and
intermediary for the Chairman or other Board members. As part
of their review in 2019, it was concluded that the appointment of a
SID is not necessary at this fime but will be kept under review.

External Directorships

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors hold appointments
as Directors on a small number of other companies, os detailed
in their biographies on pages 54 and 55. It is considered that the
Chairman and Nen-executive Directors allacate sufficient time
and commitment to fulfil their duties to the Company.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Company has effective procedures in place to monitor and
deal with conflicts of interest. Directors are required to notify

the Company of any situation that cold give rise to a conflict or
potential conflict thereby compromising their independence and
objectivity. Each member is required to disclose any such potential
conflicts at the start of every Board meeting. The Board is fully
aware of the other commitments and interests of its Directors, and
changes to these commitments and interests are reported to and,
where appropriate, agreed with the rest of the Board. Where
any such conflict arises, the Boord determines whether or not a
Director can vote or be a party of the item under consideration in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board is satisfied that potential conflicts have been effectively
managed throughout the year.



BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

The Chairman with the support of the Board, decided that the Company would move from holding a board effectiveness review bi-
annually to holding it en an annual basis. The latest review, which tock place in early 2020 consisted of one-to-one mestings between
the Chairman and each Director to discuss various matters relating to Board and Commitiee performance and their effectiveness; each
meeting was also attended by the Company Secretary, who also obtained feedback from each Director an the Chairman.

Results and outcomes were reviewed, summarised and circulated to Board members for discussion in February 2020. The reviews
determined thot the key themes and recommendations flowing from 2019 had largely been appropriately addressed. The key focus
areas arising from the 2020 review included the following:

Areas of focus Feedback and recommendations

Board management and « Whilst there is good planning for routine matters throughout the year, enhanced planning will ke carried out
strategic planning to ensure a higher strategic focus pulling in topics requested by Board members.

Non-executive dialogue * During the year there wos good dialogue between the Non-executive Directors, however, os a pre-curser to
and engagement the strategy meetings, the Non-executives will meet to ensure they are able to continue to provide meaningful

contribution and support to management.

« Enhanced engagement from the Non-executives outside of the formal Board meelings, drawing on their
wider skills and experience to support senior management, will be further encouraged.

The next review is scheduled for early 2021.

Annval re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to election or re-election by shareholders at the AGM.
On the recommendation of the Nomination Committee and in line with good practice, the Board has decided to move to annual re-election
of Directors. Accordingly, all six Directors, being eligible, will put themselves forward for annual re-election af the Company's AGM.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Meetings held

Reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, managing succession planning and 2

considering the leadership needs of the organisation.

Meelings attendance

100%

“lam pleased to present to vou the report of the work

of the Nomination Committee for the year ended 31
December 2019, The Committee supports the Board by
leading on appointments, succession and reviewing skills,

and experience.”

NIGEL CLIFFORD
Chairmuan of the Nomination Committee

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Nomination Committee’s {the ‘Committee’] role is to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board [including in terms
of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity} and to identify and
naminate candidates to fill Board vacancies. The Committee also
reviews the leadership needs of the organisation and monitors
succession planning for both Board and senior executive roles.
The framework of duties is set out in its terms of reference, which
are revised annually by the Committee and the Board. The terms
of reference are available on the Company’s wehbsite.

Committee membership and meetings

Membership and attendance

As at the date of this report, the members of the Nominaticn
Comnmittee, all of whom held office throughout the yeor and to the
dote of this report unless otherwise stated, are:

Appointment

Member Role Status dote Attendance

Nigel Clifford Chairman Independent  26/01/2015  2/2
David Cook NED Independent 01/04/2014 2/2
Ja Llecovilliard NED Independent  29/01/2019 2/2
Richard Jones NED Inaependent 29/01/2019  2/2

Where appropriate, the Chief People and Infrastructure Officer is
invited to attend certain meetings of the Nomination Committee to
support with discussion around succession planning, recruitment
and the selection of candidates.

Meetings and activities of the Committee

During the year, the Committee held two scheduled meetings
and reported on its activities to the Board. At both these meetings
the Committee reviews the balance, size and composition of

the Board and its Committees and considered this as part of
succession planning.

Alliance Pharma plc — Annuol Repert and Accounts 2019

Activities of the Committee
* Reviewing the structure, size, and composition of the Board.

= Developing strategies in support of progressive succession
planning for Board and senior management.

= Supperting the process for identifying and nominating for
approval candidates to fill Board vacancies and ensuring that
such a process followed a careful assessment of the balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board.

* Reviewing the outcomes from the Board performance
evaluation, as appropriate to the activities of the Committee.

Board balance and composition

The Board keeps under review its current compaosition, which
provides a sufficiently wide range of skills and experience

to enable it to pursue its strategic goals and to address
anticipated issues in the foreseeable future. Its deliberations are
not dominated by one perscon or a group of people. Having
considered the guidelines on independence, on appointment as
Chairman, David Cook was independent and continues to be
regarded by the Board as independent alongside Nigel Clifford,
Richard Jones and Jo LeCouilliard.

Board diversity

The Board is aware of the benefits of diversity on the Board and at
the senior management level. It remains committed ta considering
diversity when discussing appointments and succession planning.
The Company and the Board always seek to search for, recruit
and oppoint the best available person based on apiitude ond
ability, regardless of sex, marital or civil partnership status,

race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origins, pregnancy,
disability, age, sexual orientation, religion, belief or gender
reassignment,



AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Meetings held

Monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
and supporting the Board with ongoing oversight 3

of risk management and internal control systems.

Meetings attendance

100%

“On behalf of the Audit and Risk Commiittee,

Iam pleased to present my first Audit and Risk
Committee report for the vear ending 31 December 2019
since becoming Chairman earlier in 2019.”

RICHARD JONES
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Audit and Risk Committee (the ‘Committee’) assists the Board
with monitoring and reviewing the Company’s integrity of the
financial results and other reparting and has oversight of the
effectiveness of risk management and systems of internal control.
The framework of its duties is set out in its terms of reference, which
are reviewed periodically and can be viewed on the Company’s
website. The Committee reports to the Board which includes
reporting on any matters where it considers action or improvement
is needed, including recommendation of remedial actions,

Committee membership and meetings
Membership and attendance

During the year, the Committee held three scheduled meetings
and reported on its octivities to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the members of the Audit and Rick
Committee, all of whom held office throughout the year and to
the date of this report unless otherwise stated, are:

Appointment

Member Role Status date Attendance

Richard Jones Chairman Independent 29/01/2019 3/3
David Cook  NED Independent 01/04/2014 3/3
Jo Lecouilliard NED Independent  29/01/2019 3/3

All three members of the Committee have recent and relevant
financial experience.

The CEQ, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Group Financial
Controller are invited to attend all meetings, while other senior
financial managers will attend as oppropriate. The external
auditors attend the meetings to discuss the planning and
conclusions of their work and meet with the members of the Audit
and Risk Committee without any members of the executive team
present after each meeting. The Audit and Risk Committee is able
to call for information from management and consults with the
external auvditors directly if required.

Duties of the Committee

The duties of the Committee include:

* considering the appointment of external auditers and the
frequency of re-tendering and rotation of the audit;

* overseeing the relationship with, and the independence and
objectivity of, the external auditors;

* setfing policy in relation to the use of the external auditors for
non-audit services;

» reviewing the management and reperting of financial matters

including key accounting policies;

= advising the Board on the Company's appetite for and tolerance
of risk and the strategy in relation to risk monagement and
review any non-conformances with these; and

* reviewing the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and their effectiveness.
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Activities of the Committee

The key activities of the Committee during the year include the following:

Area of focus Key dulies and responsibilities Activities in the year ended 31 December 2019

64

Financial Statements

and narrative

reporting

Going concern

Risk management
and internal controls

Review of external
auditor

Terms of reference

The cantent and integrity of
financicl statements and any formal
announcements relating to financial
performance, including review of
the significant financial reporting
judgements contained therein.

Consider matters that have
informed the Board's assessment
of whether the Company is a going
concern.

Review of the Company's financial
and other jnternal cantrols and risk
manogement systems.

Review and monitoring of the
external ayditor’s independence
and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process.

Review the policy to control
engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services.

Reporting to the Board on how
the Commitiee has discharged
its responsibilities.

Review of the financial statements and narrofive reporting in the Annual
Report and Accounts for 2018 and 2019 and in the unaudited half year
results to 30 June 2019, with particular reference 1o the reports being fair,
baianced and understandable.

Review of the preliminary results for the financial years ended 31 December
2018 and the unaudited half year results to 30 September 2019.

Consideration of reports from the external auditor in respect of the Annual
Report and Accounts for 2018 and 2019 and the half year results to 30 June
2019.

A review of the going concern including methodology, assessment in support
of the going concern assumption, concluding the expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operclion existence for the foreseeable
future.

A review of risk management and the Group risk register.

Review of the Group’s assessment of its control framework including progress
in enhancing the control environment.

A review of the business and corporate governance statement relating to the
audit and risk monagement.

Monitor and consider the need for an internal audit function.

A review of the Group's risk management and internal control systems is set
out on pages 42 and 43.

Meetings with the exlerncl auditor without management to consider any
potential areas of concern.

Review and consideration of the external auditor’s findings and
recommendations and management’s response from the audit of the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019,

Apprave the terms of appointment, areas of responsibility and duties.

Scope and strategy of the 2019 external audit set out in the engagement
letter and recommend approval to the Board.

Review of the external auditor’s performance, independence and objectivity.

The Committee reviewed its own terms of reference which are considered to
be satisfactory. The Committee and Board were satisfied that the Committee
and its members continue to operate effectively individually and collectivety
and had discharged all of the duties within its remit.

Effectiveness and independence of the external auditor

The Committes is responsible for agreeing the terms of engagement with the Compeny’s external auditors KPMG LLP. The objectivity
and independence of the external auditors is safeguarded by reviewing the auditors’ formal declarations, monitoring relationships
between key audit staff and the Company and tracking the level of non-oudit fees payable to the external auditors.

Each year, the Committee assesses a plan for the external auditor’s review of the Company's full-year financial statements, which sets
out the scope of the audit, areas of significant risk of material misstatement and the timetable, KPMG LLP fermally present their findings
to the Committee but throughout the auditing process there is regular dialogue and engagement with management with any significant

matters or risks being communicated.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report ond sccounts 2019



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Reviewing and determining the pay, benefits
and other terms of service of the Executive
Directors and the broad pay strategy with

respect to senior emplovees.

Meetings held

10

Meetings attendance

100%

“On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the

2019 Remuncration Committee report which sets out
our remuneration policy and remuneration paid to the
Directors of the Company.”

NIGEL CLIFFORD

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The role of the Remuneration Committee (the 'Committee’] is io
review and determine on behalf of the Board the pay, benefits
and other terms of service of the Executive Directors of the
Company and the broad pay strategy with respect to other senior
executives. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company's website.

Matters reviewed and considered by the Remuneration Committee
included base salaries, annual performonce related bonuses,
pension palicy, and performance related share options and
awards generally under the Company’s Share Option Plans.
When appropriate to do s, the Remuneration Committee seeks
the support of external advisers and consultants.

This year the Committee spent considerable time reviewing
incentive strategies relating to the Company’s Share Plans. This
was done to ensure they remain aligned to the Group's strategy
and have the purpose of atracting, retaining and rewarding
amployees across the business. Having considered external
advice and guidance received from legal and financial advisers,
and following a consultation with some of the Company's key
shareholders, we were pleased to recommend the introduction of
a Long-Term Incentive Plan for executive and senior management
under which the first awards were granted in December 2019,

In line with good practice reporting for Remuneration Committees
on AlM, this year’s report provides readers with greater disclosure
of the Boards approach to remuneration.

Committee membership
Membership and attendance

During the year, the Committee held a total of ten meetings
and reported on its activities to the Board. As at the date of
this report, the membership of the Remuneration Committee

comprises three Independeni Non-executive Directors, who all
held office throughout the year and to the date of his report. The
members and their attendance is as follows:

Appointment

Member Role Status date Attendance
Nigel Clifford Chairman  Independent  24/02/2015 10/7 0
‘ Do\;id COOL V NED . “|ndeprenrdernf 017/7074/2014‘ 10/1 0
Jo Lecouillierd NED Independent  29/01/2019 10,10

The CEQ ond the Chief HR Officer are also invited to attend
certain meetings of the Remuneration Committee, when
appropriate. However, no executive participates when their
own remuneration is being discussed.

Remuneration policy

The objective of the Company's remuneration policy remains
unchanged. Its purpose is to facilitate the recruitment and
retention of executives of an appropriate calibre, to ensure that the
senior executives of the Company are provided with appropriate
incentives to encourage enhonced performance and are, in

a fair and responsible manner, rewarded for their individual
contributions to the success of the Group.

Remuneration policy tables

As the Company is not a fully listed company, it is not required
to produce a formal remuneration policy or seek shareholder
approval of that policy. Notwithstanding, we set out below
additional information that the Committee believes will be most
useful 1o shareholders and reflects remuneration practices that
are appropriate for an AIM company of our size.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Policy table in respect of Executive remuneration

Element

Pelicy and performance measures

Implementation

Base salary

Pension and
other benefits

Annual bonus

Share
incentive
schemes

Base salaries are reviewed onnually to ensure they
remain in line with other pharmaceutical and AIM-
guoted companies and reflect the size and scope of
the individual’s role. Within that frame of reference, the
Company aims fo be at or near the median level.

Levels are set to attract and retain individuals to

lead and drive forwards the agreed strategy for the
Company.

Executive Direclors ean participate in the Company's
defined contribution pension scheme, Cnly base
salaries are pensicnable. The Company contributes
twice the amount contributed by the employse up fo a
maximum of 10%.

Other benefits in kind include life assurance, healthcare
and the provision of ¢ cash allowence in lieu of @
company car.

The delivery of the Group’s short-term corporate goals
is incentivised by offering a cash-settled bonus [‘Annual
Bonus’) linked to two factors: [i) the achievement

of budgsted levels of underlying profit before tax
(‘Target’), which is the key metric the Board considers
in monitering corpotate performance; and [ii) persenal
performance of each Executive.

As part of this incentive strategy Executive Directors are
eligible tor an Annual Bonus and the level of that bonus
is determined by first assessing whether the Target has
been achieved by the business and, once this target has
been achieved, applying a further multiplier which is
determined by assessment of the Executive's personal
performance for the relevant year.

The Target is set at the start of each financial year
- the Target is determined with the opproval of the
Remuneration Committee to ensure it incentivises
Executives and aligns with the Group's strategy.

Persanal performance is measured on various factors
including delivery of pre-set personal targets.

The Company operates two share incentive schemes
to help susiain long-term growth and performance.
Executive Directors are able o participate in both the
Company Share Option Plan {CSOP) ond the Long-
Term Incentive Scheme (LTIP}).

Any awards granted to the Executive Directars are
subject to performance metrics which are reviewed
regularly by the Committee; and the level of award
is reviewed annually to ensure that the aggregate
remyngration remains competitive.

Further information about the Compuany's share
incentive plans is set out on pages 67 to 71.

Annual base salaries increase in line with the remuneration policy and
take effect from May each year.

Salary increases follow an annval benchmarking exercise which
considers the context of comparoble phormaceutical companies. The
Committee is committed to ensuring that salaries remain competitive
relotive to the AIM 100.

Directors receive an employer pension contribulion of twice the amount
contributed by the Director up te @ maximum of 10%.

Based on a combination of Target and persenal performance the Annual
Bonus thot each of the Executives is able to earn is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer

A Target bonus of 50% of base salary for 100% Target performance,
increasing on a sliding scole up fo a maximum of 100% of base salary if
200% Target over performance is achieved.

The Target bonus can be further increased by opplying a persenal
performance multiplier to the achieved Target bonus for over-performance.
The maximum personal performance related muitiplier of 1.5x [up te an
additional 50%) is applied to the Target bonus.

The CEQ's potential maximum Annuval Bonus reward is 15G% of base salary.

Chief Financial Officer

A Target bonus of 40% of base salary for 100% QOTE Target performance,
increosing on a sliding scale up to 0 maximum of 80% of base salary it
200% OTE Torget over performance is achieved.

The bonus can be further increased by applying a personal perfarmance
muliiplier to the achieved Target bonus fer aver-perfarmance. The maximum
personal performance related multiplier of 1.5x (up to an additional 50%] is
applied 1o the Target bonus.

The CFO's potential maximum Annual Banus reward is 120% of base salary.
Performance targets for Directors’ awards granted under the LTIP and

CSQOF continue to be based on market benchmarked Earnings Per
Share [EPS) and Total Shareholder Return {TSR).

During the year, Executive Directors were awarded LTIPs equal to the
value of 55% of base salary for the CEQ and 45% of base salary for
the CFO; and, one share far every £2.00 of base salary under the
CSCP.

Policy table in respect of Non-executive remunerction

Remuneration /
Benefit

Application

Measure Implementation

Fees

Non-executive Directors of the Company receive a basic fee for the services
provided to the Company and are reviewed by the Company from time o time to
ensure levels remain in line with comparable companies.

Naon-executive Directors who also fulfil the role of chairing of the Committees of

Fees are increased
in line with the
remuneration policy
and take effect from
May each year.

There ore no
performance measures
in relation to fees paid
ta Non-executive
Directors.

the Board receive an additicnal allowance. Non-executive Directars who chaired
during oll or part of 2019 were David Cook, Nigel Clifford and Richard Jones.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The aggregate remuneration payable to the Directors in respect of the period was as follows:

Solary or fees Other Pension

Total remuneration,
including share
option gains* options

Total remuneration,
excluding share Exercised share

Bonus options

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 209 2018

Pelet

Butterfield 266,667  23B,333 14,212 11,780 24,004 25625 206,250 53250 511,135 328,988 1,223,558 - 1,734,693 328,988

Andrew

Frankln 186,000 175,333 8,023 11,382 18,258 17,272 114 000 37914 326,281 241,90t 452,250 - 778,531 241,901

Nigel
Clifford 42,848 41,067

David

Cook 76,069 72,336 - - - -

Richord
lanes 41,598 - - - - -

Jo LeCoulliord 37848 - - - - -

- - 42,848 41,067 - - 42 848 41,067

- - 76,069 72,336 - - 76,069 72,336

- - 41,598 - - - 41,598 -

- - 37,848 - - - 37848 -

651,030 527,067 22,237 23,162 42,262 42,897 320,250 F1164 1,035779 484252 14675808 - 2711587 684,292

Former Ditectors:
Andrew Smith! - 8580 - - - -

Thomas
Casdogh® - - - -

John
Dowson?! - 287000 - 5,855 - -

- - - 85,801 - - - 85,801

- 292,855 - - - 292,855

Toral 651,030 B¥9.870 22,237 29.017 42,262 42,897 320,250

21,164 1,035,779 1,062,946 1.675.808 - 2711587 1062548

2 Thomos Casdagli ceased to serve as a Direclor on 30 May 2018

Andrew Smith ceased lo serve os o Director on | March 2018 The amaunt paid to him in 2018 included a payment of £73,544 in liev of notice

3 John Dowson ceased le be Chiel Executive Officer on | May 2018 The omount of salary paid to him in 2018 included a payment of £205,000 in liev of notice. lahn continued 1o serve as a Men-
exacutive Director on the Board since 1 May 2018, until his retirement fram the Board on the 30 June 2019

4 Detalls of share option exercised carried out during the year are shown in the noles 1o the toble on share incenlive awards on page 70

No Director received any remuneration from a third party in
respect of their service as a Director of the Company.

Base salary

Base salaries were reviewed in April 2019, Annual base salaries
for 2019 increased from £250,000 to £275,000 for the CEC
and from £178,000 to £190,000 for the CFO. These increases
took effect from 1 May 2019,

Benefits

The column headed ‘Other’ in the table above shows the value

of benefits provided to each Executive Director, including o cash
allowance in lieu of a company car and healthcare. As seen from
the table, only Executive Directors accrue retirement benefits, all
of whom did so through defined contribution (money purchase)
schemes. The Company does not operate a defined benefit
scheme. No Director or former Director received any benefits from
a retirement benefits scheme that were not otherwise available to
aoll members of the scheme.

Non-executive Directors’ fees

In 2019, and following an internal benchmarking review of

the market, the Boord appreved an increase to Non-executive
Director fees. The annual fee paid to the David Cook increased
from £73,544 to £75,456. Fees poid to Nigel Clifford, Jo
teCouilliard and Richard Jones increased from £37,203 to
£38,170 per annum. There was no increase to the additional
fee for chairing one or more of the Committees of the Board.

Both Nigel Clifford and Richard Jones received a Chairman's
allowance of £5,000 for their roles in chairing their Committees.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Company Share Incentive Plans

The Campany operates two share incentive schemes. During
2019, and in consultation with shareholders, the Company
introduced a Long-Term Incentive Flan (LTIP).

Shareholder Consultation 2019

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee felt that it would be
appropriote to cansult with a selection of the Company’s
shareholders on long-term reward performance, current
arrangements and aptions for the future including the design
principles for a long-term incentive plan {LTIP). The Chair of

the Remuneration Committee, Nigel Clifford, together with the
Company’s Chairman, David Cook and the Company Secretary,
Chris Chrysanthou held a series of meetings with certain
shareho!ders to discuss the key provisions relating to the LTIP as
well as the proposed levels of the awards to Executive Directors.
With the support of the Cempony’s Nominated Advisor, calls
were held with both fund and compliance managers to discuss the
proposed plan and grant levels, focusing on the type of award,
quantum, dilution and performance targets. The consultation
provided the Committee with helpful insight to ensure that the
LTIP remains in line with market practice and forms a healthy
part of the remuneration strategy for the executive, and the
views of those shareholders who took part in the consultation
were taken on board in structuring the revised Executive Director
compensation packages.

The Committee will continue to monitor trends and developments
in the relation to remuneration and market practices, corporate
governance and welcomes views from its shareholders.
Maintaining a healthy dialogue in this regard helps te ensure
that our remuneration strategy remains appropriate across

all levels of the organisation.

The Alliance Company Share Option Plan 2015 (CSOP)

for many years the Company has operated a CSOP under

which all employees are eligible to receive awards in the form of
market value options. At the discretion of the Committee, awards
are typically granted subject to a three-year vesting period and
following maturity, participants have a seven-year exercise period.

Awards granted are based on a percentage of salary and where
appropriate may attract HMRC tax advantages. Employees based
outside of the UK will receive nen-tax advantaged share option
awards and where this is not possible the Committee considers
awards in the form of share appreciation rights. In 2019, the

EPS Compound annual Growth Rate over the
Per‘nrmﬂnca Pariud

Committee decided fo review the performance conditions attaching
to awards under the CSOP which are granted to Executive Directors
and Senior Monagement — as such awards under the CSOP to
Executive Directors and Senior Management are subject to the
performance conditions set out below.

The Alliance Long-Term Incentive Plan 2019 (LTIP}

In 2019, following shareholder consultetion, the Company
introduced the LTIP which forms part of the remuneration strategy
for the Executive Directors and members of the SLT. Awards

are granted in the form of nil-cost share options based ona
percentage of base salary. All awards granted under the LTIP are
subject to the performance conditions set out below. Subjectto
achieving the performance conditions set by the Committee, such
awards will vest three years from the date of grant and participants
will have 12-months in which to exercise any vested award.

Malus and Clawback

All awards under the LTIP are subject to standard malus and
clawback provisions which allow the Company, in certain
circumstances, to either {i] terminate outstanding options or [ii)
seek repayment of after tax value of aptions which have been
exercised by an Executive which hos been dismissed as a result of
a set of prescribed irregularities including the discovery material
misstatement of results of the Company or Group; or a serious
breach of the Company’s code of ethics has arisen; or a serious
regulatory, or health and safety issue has occurred.

Performance conditions

All options granted to Executive Directors will only vest if targets
for growth in the Company’s diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)

are met over a period of three years. EPS is an important metric
which provides a strong incentive to drive the Group’s business
over that longer-term period and to mitigate downside risks thot
could affect the Group's profitability. Reputational risks could
reasonably be expected to affect the share price, so the Executive
is further incentivised to mitigate these exposures, if they wish to
maximise the potential value of their options.

During the year, the Committee reviewed performance targets

os part of the introduction of the LTIP and introduced a second
measure, in addition to EPS, based on Total Shareholder Return
(TSR). As such, all options granted in 2019 to Executives under the
CSOP and LTIP are subject EPS and TSR performance conditions.
50% of the awards are subject to EPS and 50% is subject to TSR
as set out below:

% of award that vests {of 50%)

< 5% CAGR
5% - 10% CAGR
> 10% CAGR

0%
Calculated on a straight-line basis between 50% and 100%

100%

CAGR: means compound annual growth rote

EPS: means the Underlying Diluted Earnings Per Share as presented in Alliance’s published Annuol Reports

EPS Compound Annual Growth Rate: means the percentage of increase in the EPS of the Company colcvloted by reference to the difference between (i] the EPS as presented in the published Annual

Report for the financial year ending 31 December 2018, to (i} the EPS as presented in the published Annual Report for the hinanciol year ending 31 December 2021

EPS Parformance Period: the period from 31 December 2018 10 31 December 2021 (inclusive]

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



TSR against the FTSE Small Cap Index (ex-Trustsj over the
performance period

% of award that vests [of 50%)

Less than the Index 0%

Equal to the Index 50%

Between the Index but less than 15% out performance of Caleuleted on o straight-line basis between 50% and 100%
the Index on o cumylative basis over the TSR performance

period

Equalto or greater than 15% out performance of the index  100%
on a cumulative basis over the TSR performance period

Index; means the FISE Small Cap lndex. excluding mvestments trusts as determined by the Company's nominaled adviser

TSR: means total shareho|der return calculated by reference 1o the Campany's share price appreciation plus oll dividend per shure peid [based on ex div date] dvnng the TSR Performance Period, and s

determined by the Company’s Nominated Adviser atthe end of the TS& Perfarmance Pernod

TSR Performance Period: the period starting on the Gront Date ond ending on the third ann iversary of the Gront Dote
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The closing mid-market price of Ordinary shares on 31 December 2019 {being the last dealing day in the calendar year) was 84.1p
and the range dyring the year was from 60p to 84.1p,

Employee Benefit Trust (EBT/Trust) and management of dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines. In 2017 the Group established the Alliance Pharma Employee
Benefit Trust to fucilitate the acquisition of Ordinary shares in the Company for the purpose of satisfying awards granted under
share option schemes. The Group has been operating the Trust to help manage dilution limits in line with good practice. The Trustis
administered by an independent Trustee who operates the Trust independently of the Group. The EBT is a discretionary trust, the sole
beneficiaries being employees (including Executive Directors) of the Group wha have received appliceble awards.

The Trustees must act in the best interests of the beneficiaries as a whole and will exercise their discretion in deciding whether or not
to act on any recommendations proposed by the Company. Any assets held by the Trust would be consolidated inta the Group's
financial statements.

The Company may grant awards on the basis that it is the Company’s intention to settle the exercise of awards through shares
purchased in the open market on an arm's length basis. Awards granted and settled in this way are not inciuded in the Company’s
headroom and dilution calculation. The Group may fund the EBT to purchase on the EBT's own account shares in the Company on the
cpen market. This in return for the EBT agreeing to use the shares in the Company that it holds to satisfy certain outstanding awards
made under the Company’s share option schemes. The purchasing in the market of shares to satisty the exercise of options places a
cash requirement on the business. Te date no shares have been purchased by the Trust for satisfaction of outstanding or future share
option awards.

To further help manage dilution limits, and where appropriate and agreed with the Committee, share options are net settled upon exercise.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Share Incentive Awards

Executive Directors hold options over the Company’s share option and long-term incentive plans. Details of options held under the
Company’s employee share schemes by the Directors who served during the year are as follows:

As ot 31 December 2018 Changes in the year As at 31 December 2019
Number of Number of
Type of Date of Exercise Performance oplions over exercisable Exercisable Exercisable
award Grant price {p} condition shares Granted  Vested Exercised’ Lapsed options from to
Peter Butterfield
CSOP
Unapproved  246-Mar-10 3325 Ne P0%,778 - - Q09778 - - 26-Mar-13 26-Mar-20
CSQP
Uncpproved  29-Apr-10 3425 No 115,000 - - 115,000 - - 29-Apr-13 29-Apr-20
CSOP
Unapproved 28-Apr-11 34.12 Ne 1.130,000 - — 1,130,000 - - 28-Apr-14 28-Apr-21
CSOP
Unapproved 19-Oct-12 2925 No 140,000 - - 140,000 - - 19-Oct-15 19-Oct-22
CSOP
Unupproved 06-1un-13 3725 No 144,200 - - 144,200 - - 06-Jun-16 06-Jun-23
CsOP
Unapproved  23-Qct-13 3575 EPS 400,000 - - 400,000 - - 23-Oa-18  23-Oct-23
CSOP
Unapproved 11-Apr-14 33.75 EPS 144,200 - - 131,943 12,257 - 11-Apr-17 11-Apr-24
CSOP
Unapproved  27-May-15 43.75 EPS 166,625 - - 164,625 - - 27-Moy-18  27-May-25
CSOFP
Unepproved  27-Oct-16 47.50 EPS 200,000 - 200,000 - - 200,000 27-Qct-19 27-Qct-26
Csor
Unopproved  27-0ct-16 47.50 EPS 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 27-Oct-21 27-Oct-26
CSOP
Unopproved  15-Sep-17 53.00 EPS 148,397 - - - - - 15.Sep-20  15-Sep-27
CSOP
Approved 15-Sep-17 53 00 EPS 56,603 - - - - - 15-Sep-20  15-Sep-27
CSOP
Unepproved  05-Cct-18 81.60 EPS 1,250,000 - - - - - 05-Qa-21 05-Oct-28
CSOP
Uncpproved  05-Dec-19 7690 EP5 & TSR - 137,500 - - - - 05-Dec-22  05-Dec-29
LTIP 05-Dec-19 Nil EPS & TSR - 196,684 - - - - 05-Dec-22 05-Dec-23
5,804,803 334,184 1,200,000 3,137 546 12,257 1,200,000
Andrew Franklin
CSOP
Approved 04-Dec-15 4675 No 64,171 - - 64,171 - - 04-Dec-18  04-Dec-25
CSOP
Unapproved  04-Dec-15 46.75 No 1,935,829 - - 1,435,829 - 500,000 04-Dec-18  04-Dec-23
CSOP
Unopproved  27-Qct-16 47.50 EPS 155,000 - 155,000 - - 155,000 27-Oct-19 27-Oct-2¢
CSOP
Unuppraved  27-Oct-16 47 50 EPS 400,000 - 400,000 - - 400,000 27-Oct-21 27-Oct-26
CSOP
Ungpproved  15-5ep-17 53.00 £PS 170,000 - - - - 170,000 15-5ep-20 15-Sep-27
CSOP
Unopproved  05-Oct-18 81.60 EPS 178,000 - - - - 178,000  05-Oct-21 05.0ct-28
CSOP
Approved 05-Dec-19 7690 EPS & TSR - 39.0M - - - 39,011  05-Dec-22  05-Dec-29
CSOP
Unopproved  05-Dec-19 7690 EPS & TSR - 55,989 - - - 55989  05-Dec-22  05-Dec-29
mip 05-Dec-19 Nl EPS & TSR - 111,183 - - - 111,183 05-Bec-22 05-Dec-23
2,903,000 206,183 555,000 1,500,000 - 1,609,183

On the 7 October 2013, Peter Butterfield exercised 3,137,546 options over Ordinary shares of 1p each granted to him by the Company under the CSOF belween 2010 and 2015. The average
exglcise price was 34 5p per shore 2,791,546 shores were then subsequently soid at a market price of 73.5p per share and 346,000 shares were retained in occordance with the Company’s Share
Ownership Policy

On the 2 December 2019, Andrew Franklin exercised 1,500,000 options over Ordinary shores of 1p ench granted to him by the Company under the CSOP in 2016 The average exercise price was
46.75p per share. Following the exercise, on the 5 December 2019, 1,371,616 Crdinary shares were sold ot 74.9p per share and 128,384 shares were retained in accordance with the Company's
Share Ownership Policy
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LTIP Awards 2019

In 2019, LTIP Awards were granted with a face value of 55% of base salary to the Chief Executive Officer and 45% of base salary to
the Chief Financial Officer, equal to valyes of £151,250 and £85,500 respectively. These awards will vest on the third anniversary
from the date of grant, 5 December 2022 subject to meeting the EPS and TSR performance targets.

CSOP Awards 2019

In 2019, the Committee alsa approved the award of market value share options to the Executive Directors under the Company’s Share
Opticn Plan 2015 equal to one share option for every £2.00 of solary. These awards were granted with an option price of 76.9p (the
closing mid-market price on the 4 December 2019). Based on the exercise price of 76.9p per share, the value of the awards as at the

date of grant were equal to £105,737 for the CEO and £73,055 for the CFO.

Directors’ interests and shareholdings

Share ownership policy

The Company operates a share ownership policy under which the Executive Directors and certain other employees are required when
exercising options to acquire and maintgin an interest in Alliance Pharma shares up to a percentage of base salary. The policy requires
Executive Directors when they exercise options to retain shares in the Company with a value equal to 50% of the net gain [post costs
and seftlement of tax liabilities) until such time as the required level of shareholding is achieved. Once an Executive Director has built

a stake in the Company equal to the required levels, they are free to exercise without having to retain shares. Interests may also be
maintained as a result of o Director acquiring Ordinary shares in the open market.

The Company Secretary maintains a record of individual required levels and qualifying interests based on information provided by an
individual subject to this policy and reports periodically to the Remuneration Committee regarding compliance. Ordinary shares are
volued at their market value at the fime of any calculation carried out using the previous day’s closing middle market guotation.

As at 23 March 2020, the Executive Directors held the following interests in Ordinary shares of the Company:

Percentage 2019 Base Value of
Director of sulory salary Shareholding holdings® % achieved
Peter Butterfield CEOQ 100% £275,000 374,376 £243,344 88%
Andrew Franklin CFO 100% £190,000 128,384 £83,450 44%

*  atthe closing morket price anthe 20 March 2020 65 Op

The following table shows the interests of the Directors [and their spouses and miner children) in the shares of the Company.

At 31 December 2018 At 31 December 2019
Director Beneficial Nen-beneficial Total Beneficial Non-beneficial Total
Peter Butterfield 28,376 - 28,374 374,376 - 374,376
Nig-el-CIifforc-l- - - 1-80,663 - ‘ ]86,663 . ?80,6673 o - . 180663
David Cook 162,371 - 102.371 102,37;] - 102,371
Richard Jones - - - 15,000 - 15,000
Jo LeCouvilliard - - - - - -
Andrew Franklin - - - - 128,384 - 128,384
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Directors’ service contracts

All Executive Directors are employed under 12-month rolling service contracts. The services of all Executive Directors may be

terminated (i) by the Company or individual giving 12 months’ notice or (i} immediately, in the event that the Director is not re-elected

by sharehclders at an AGM.

Date of

Date of current Notice period Notice period

Executive Director appeintment contract Unexpired term [Company) {Director)
Peter Butterfield Chief Executive 22/02/2010 05/08/2010 Rolling 12 months 12 months 12 months
Andrew Franklin Chief Financial Officer  28/09/2015 25/06/2015 Rolling 12 months 12 months 12 months

The Non-executive Directors are employed under letters of engagement for which may be terminated by the Company by (i} giving the
appropriate notice, or (i) immediately, in the event that the Director is not re-elected by shareholders ot an AGM,

Date of
Non-executive Direclar appeintment Current term Unexpired term
David Coak Chair & Independent 01/04/2014 4 years 37 Months
NED
Jo LeCouilliard Independent NED 01/01/2019 S years 45 Months
Nigel Clifford Independent NED 26/01/2015 4 years 45 Manths
Richard Jones independent NED 01/01/2019 5 years 45 Months

The Executive Directors’ service contracts and Chairman and Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment are ovailable for inspection

by shareholders at the Company’s registered office. However, due to the unprecedented events around COVID-19, and the revised format
of the AGM, these will not be available at the 2020 AGM in the ordinary way.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Scope of this report

The Directors present their Annual Report, together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group,

for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Directors’ Report
required under the Companies Act 2006 comprises the Directors’
biographies on pages 54 and 53, the corporate governance
statement on pages 36 to 61, the Remuneration Committee report
on pages 65 to 72 and the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 49.

As permitted under the Companies Acl, certain matters which
would otherwise need to be included in this Directars’ Report have
instead been discussed in the Strategic Report. These matters are
the discussion of the likely future developments in the business of
the Company and its subsidiaries, the activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries in the field of research and development, the
Company’s use of financial instruments and an indication of its
financial risk management objectives and policies.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Group is the acquisition, marketing
and distribution of pharmaceutical products. The principal activity
of the Company is to act as o holding company.

Directors

Names and biographical details of the Directors of the Company
ot the date of this report are shown on pages 54 and 55. John
Dawson served as Non-executive Director until his retirement on

30 June 2019

Directors’ liabilities

The Company’s Articles of Association contain provision for
Directors to be indemnified {including the funding of defence
costs) to the extent permitted by the Companies Act 2006. This
indemnity would enly be available if judgement was given in the
individual's favour, or he or she wos acquitted, or relief under the
Companies Act 2006 was granted by the court.

There were no qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions in
force during the year.

Directors’ obligations to the auditor

The Directors confirm that:

¢ so far as each of the Directors is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Compaony's auditor is unaware;
and

* they have each taken all the steps that they ought to have taken
os Directors to moke themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that

information.

Our employees

The Group ploces great impartance on attrocting ond retaining
high quality employees and aligning the success of the Group with
their rewards. As such the Group operates a share option plan
which aims to ensure that each employee has a direct benefit from
the growth of the business as it translates to the Company's share
price. further information about our volues and our people can be
found on pages 34 and 35.

Employee share ownership and share dealing

The Group has put in place a share dealing code appropriate to
an AlM quoted company, and the Group has in place procedures
to ensure that the Directors, and all employees of the Group,

are aware of and understand the code and the impartance of
compliance.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED

Dividends

The Board declared an interim dividend in respect of the year
ending 2019 of 0.536 pence per share (2018: 0.487p) which
was paid on 10 January 2020.

Financial instruments and risks

Details of the Group's financial instruments and financial risk
management disclosures are inciuded in note 20 of the
financial statements.

Branches

There are no branches of the Company outside the UK. Alliance
Pharmaceuticals GmbH, a company within the Alliance Group,
has a Swiss branch which operotes under the name Alliance
Pharmaceuticals GmbH Disse!dorf, Zweigniederlassung Uster,

Politicol donations

MNo political donations were made, or political expenditure
incurred during the period.

Auditor

Qur auditor, KPMG LLP, has expressed its willingness to continue
in office and a resolution to re-appoint KRMG LLP as auditer for
the next year will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report,
the Directors” Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and reguiations.

Company low requires the Directors to prepare Group and
parent Company financial statements for each financiol year.
As required by the AlM Rules of the Londen Stock Exchange
they are required to prepare the Group financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs) and applicable law
and haove elected to prepare the parent Company finencial
statements on the same basis.

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are sotisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and
of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and parent Company financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

+ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,’

+ state whether fhey have been prepcred in accordunce with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the
parent Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accurocy
at any time the financial position of the parent Cempany and
enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking
such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and

other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent Company's
ability to continve as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the
Group or the parent Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.



The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the cerporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Annual General Meeting

This year’s Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on 18 May 2020, the business of which is set out in the Notice
of Meeting. A circular containing the Notice of Meeting together
with an explanatory letter from the Chairman is included with this
Annual Report and is also available in the Investor Section of the
Company’s website at www.alliancepharmaceuticals.com

Your attention is specifically drawn to the revised format of the
2020 AGM due to COVID-19 ond the Government’s Stay at
Home measures.

Please also note that following the Company's move towards
elecironic communications, we are ne lenger producing

hard copy forms of proxy for any shareholder meetings. You
may, however, request a hard copy proxy form directly from

the Company's Registrars. Shareholders are able to vote
electronically using the following link, www .signalshares.com.
Registering your details on the Link share portal also gives
shareholders easy access to information about their shareholdings
ond the ability to vote at general meetings or appoint o proxy to
vote. You will not be able lo vote in person at this year's AGM as
shareholders are not permitted to attend in persen.

Chris Chrysanthou
Company Secretory

7 April 2020
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Financial Statements
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Independent
auditor’s report

to the members of Alliance Pharma plc

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Alliance Pharma ple
[“the Company”) tor the year ended 31 December 2019 which
comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Balance
Sheet, Company Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, Company Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated and Company Cash Flow Statements, and the
related notes, including the accounting policies in Note 2.

In our opinion:

* the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the parent Company’s affairs
as at 31 December 2019 and of the Group's profit for the
year then ended;

* the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
(tFRSs as adopted by the EU);

* the parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs os adopted
by the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Componies Act 2006; and

* the financial stotements hove been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing {UK) [“ISAs (UK}”) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Group
in aceordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC
Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Overview

Materiality: £1.4m {2018: £1.1m}
group financial
stctements as a

whole

4.3% {2018: 3.9%) of normalised
Group profit before 1ax

88% (2018: 87%) of total profits and losses
thot made up Group profit before tax

Coverage

Key audit matters vs 2018

Recurring risks 1y, impact of uncertainties due to the UK

o
exiling the European Union on our audit
Impairment of indefinite useful economic
life intangible assets [including goodwill}
.flecoverab{llty of Pu.rerﬂ company’s -
investment in subsidiaries
Event driven New: Geing concern A




2. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
ond include the most significant assessed risks of material misstotement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of rescurces in the audit; and directing the efforts of the

engagement team. We summarise below the key audit matters, in arriving at our audit opinion above. These matters were addressed in

the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In arriving at our audit opinion above, the key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, were

as follows (unchanged from 2018):

The impact of
uncertainties due to the
UK exiting the European
Union on our audit

Refer tc page 48
{principal risks)

Intangible assets
and goodwill

(£328.7m; 2018: £332m)

Refer to page 93 {accounting
policy) and page 105
(fAnancial disclosures).

Unprecedented levels of
uncertainty

All cudits assess and challenge

the reasoncbleness of estimates, in
perlicular as described in impairment
cfindefinite useful economic life
intangible assets {including goodwill)
and recoverability of parent company’s
investment in subsidiaries below,

and related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concern
basis of preparotion of the financial
statements (see below]. All of these
depend on assessments of the future
economic environment and the group’s
future praspects and performence.

Brexit is one of the most significant
econemic events for the UK, and its
effects are subject to unprecedented
levels of uncertainty of consequences,
with the tull range of possible effects
Unknowr\.

Impairment of indefinite vseful
economic life intangible assets
{including goodwill)

The estimated recoverable amount is
subjective due to the inherent uncertainty
invalved in forecasting and discounting
future cash flows.

This assessment is based on assumpfions
{such os forecast cash flows, discount
rates and growth rates), which are
inherently highly judgemental.

Given the quantum of the balance

in relation to our materiality and

the inherent estimation uncertainty
associated with these judgements, we
concluded this to be our most significant
Key Audit Matter.

The effect of these matters is thet, s part
of our risk assessment, we determined
that the value in use acrass the portfolio
has a high degree of esfimation
uncertainty, with a potential range of
reasoncble outcomes grecter than our
materiality for the financial statements
as a whole. The financiol statements
(note 11} disclose the range//sensitivity
estimated by the Group.

We developed a standordised firm-wide approach to the
consideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexit in planning and
perfarming our audits. Qur procedures included:

- Our Brexit knowledge: We considered the directers’ assessment
of Brexit-related sources of risk for the group's business and
financial resources compared with our own understanding of the
risks. We considered the directors’ plans to take action to mitigate
the risks.

- Sensitivity analysis: When addressing impcirment of indefinite
useful economic life intangible assets (including goodwill),
recoverability of parent company’s investment in subsidiaries and
other areas thot depend on forecasts, we compared the directors’
analysis to our assessment of the full range of reasonably possible
scenarios resulting from Brexit uncertainty and, where forecast cash
flows are required to be discounted, considered adjustments to
discount rates for the level of remaining uncertainty.

Assessing transparency: As well as assessing individual
disclosures as part of our procedures on impairment of indefinite
useful economic life intangible assets (including goodwill) end
recoverability of the parent company’s investment in subsidiaries we
considered all of the Brexit related disclosures together, including
those in the strategic report, comparing the overall picture against
our understanding of the risks.

However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable
factors of all possible future implications for a company and this is
particularly the case in relation to Brexit.

We applied the procedures below to higher risk CGUs for detailed
testing based on historic headroom levels, sensitivities, histaric
forecasting accuracy, issues identified from discussions with
commercial, regulatory and financicl management and information
about the products available in the public demain.

- Benchmarking assumptions: Using cur own valuations
speciclist, we chollenged the Group’s selection of discount and
growth rates by comparing those used to externally derived data
{including competitor onalysis). In addition, we assessed whether
the forecasts [including growth rate} were consistent with current
business strategies in place;

- Sensitivity analysis: We performed our own analysis to assess
the sensitivity of the impairment reviews fo changes in the key
assumptions, including the discount rate, growth rate and the
forecast cash Aows;

- Historical comparisons: We compared the previously forecast
cash flows to actual results to assess the historical accuracy of
forecasting;

- Assessing transparency: We ossessed the adequacy of the
Group's disclosures in respect of the sensitivity to changes in key
assumptions.

- For the remaining population of CGUs, we performed historicat
comparisons, sensitivity analysis and held discussions with the
directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

Investments in
subsidiaries

(£194.6m; 2018: £184.2m)

Refer to page 94 {accounting
policy} and page 110
(financial disclosures).

Going concern

Refer tc page 97 {accounting
policy) and page 131
(financial disclosures).

Recoverability of parent
company’s investmentin
svbsidiaries

The carrying amount of the parent
company's investments in subsidiaries
represents 99.9% {2018: 99.9%) of the
company’s tolal assets.

Their recoverability is not at @ high risk
of significant misstatemenl or subject to
significant judgement. Howaver, due

to their materiality in the context of the
parent company financial statements,
this is considered to be the area that had
the greatest effect on our overall parent
company qudil.

Disclosure Quality

The financial statements explain how the
Board has formed o judgement that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of preparation for the Group and
parent company.

That judgement is based on an
evaluation of the inherent risks to the
Group's and Company's business
model and how those risks might
offectthe Group's and Company's
financial rasources or ability 1o confinue
operations over a period of at least a
year from the date of opproval of the
financial statements.

The risks most likely to adversely affect
the Group’s and Company’s avoilable
financial resources over this period are
the impact of Covid-19 on customer
confidence, constraints on supply chain,
sourcing and logistics as well as product
regulation.

There are also less predictable but
realistic second order impocts, such
as the impact of Brexit on the industry
specific regulations underlying the
Group's and its suppliers” operations
which could resultin a reduction of
available financial resources.

The risk for aur qudit was whether or not
those risks were such that they amounted
to a material uncertainty thal may have
cast significant doubt about the ability to
continue a5 a geing concern. Had they
been such, then that fact would have
been required to have been disclosed,

Qur procedures included:

- Tests of detail: We compared the carrying amount of 100%
of the investments with the net assets volue of the respective
subsidiary, being an approximation of their minimum recoverable
amount, to identify whether the net asset values were in excess of
the carrying cmounts ond assessed whether those subsidicries have
historicolly been profit-making. The Group audit team performs the
statutory audit of all material investments;

- Test of detail: Where the carrying value of the investment
exceeded the net assets of the subsidiary we obtained the forecasts
used by the directors’ in their assessment of the recoverability of
their investments. We challenged and assessed the underlying
assumptions used in these forecasts, taking into consideration
the assumptions used by the directors in testing the recoverability
of the intangible assets al a Group level and the sensitivity of
impairment of the parent company’s investment in subsidiaries 1o
these assumptions.

Ovur procedures included:

- Funding assessment: We obtained confirmation of committed
level of financing.

- Historical comparisons: We compaored previously ferecast cash
flows against actual cash flows fo assess the historical accuracy of
forecasting.

- Our sector experience: We critically assessed the directors’
going concern assessment, including the reasonableness of the
key assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts and the level of
downside sensitivities applied using our knewledge of Covid-19
scenarios being applied by other entities.

- Key dependency assessment: We assessed cash flow and
covenant forecasts to identify key dependencies on individual
future fransaclions or events.

- Sensitivity analysis: We considered sensitivities over the level
of avoilable financial resources indicated by the Group's financial
forecasts, taking cecount of the severe, but plausible adverse
effects that could arise from the identified risks individually or
collectively and the potential impact on the Group’s borrowing
covenants.

- Evoluating directors’ intent: We evalucted the achievability of
the actions the Directors consider they would take to improve the
position should the risks materialise.

- Assessing transparency: We assessed the completenass and
accuracy of the matters covered in the going concern disclosure.
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3. Ourapplication of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the group financial statements as o whole was set
at £1.4m, determined with reference o a benchmark of group
profit before tax, normalised to exclude costs relating to the return
of Xonvea Licensing Rights as disclosed in note 5, of £1.7m.

Normalised Group
profit before tax
£32.9m {2018: £28.1m)

In the prior year, moteriality for the group financial statements
as a whole was set at £1.1m, determined with reference to a
benchmark of group profit before tax, normatised to exclude
£2.5m impairment of Synthasia Joint Venture assets, £4.3m
impairment of Anti-malarial intangible asset and £1.5m profit
on disposal of Unigreg Joint Venture, see note 5.

Materiality represents 4.3% {2018 3.9%) of this normalised
Group profit before tax.

Materiality for the parent company financial statements as

a whole was set at £1.3m (2018: £0.8m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of company total assets, of which it
represents 0.7% (20718: 0.5%).

. Normalised Group PBT
. Group materiolity

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected
or uncorrected identified misstatemants exceeding £70,000,
in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted
reperting on qualitative grounds.

Of the Group's 18 (2018: 19) reporting components, we Group revenue

subjected 4 {2018: 4) to full scape audits for Group purposes.
The components within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated opposite.

For the residual components, we performed analysis at an
aggregated Group level to re-examine our assessment that there

A . " . L 2018 88%
were no significant risks of material misstatement within these. {2018 }

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas to be covered, including the relevant risks
detailed above and the information to be reported back. The
Group team approved the component materialities, which
ranged from £0.6m to £0.9m {2018: £0.5m to £0.9m}, having
regard o the mix of size and risk profile of the Group across the
components. The work on 1 of the 4 components {2018: 1 of the
4 components) was performed by component auditors and the
rest, including the audit of the parent company, was performed by
the Group team. The Group team performed procedures on the
items excluded from normalised Group profit befere tax.

93%

[2018: 9$5%)

The Group team visited one [2018: one) component location in
France {2018: France, same component] to assess the audit risk
and strategy. Telephone conference meetings were also held with
the component auditor. At these visits and meetings, the findings
reported to the Group team were discussed in more detail, and
any further work required by the Group team was then performed
by the component auditer.

Group Materiality
£1.4m (2018: £1.1m)

£1.4m
Whole financial statements
materiality (2018: £1.1m)

£0.9m

Range of materiality at five
components [£0.6m to £0.9m)
{2018: £0.5m to £0.9m|

£70,000

Misstatements reported
to the audit committee
{2018: £55,000)

Group profit before tax

12018, 87 %}

Full scope for group audit
purposes 2019

Specified risk-focused
audit procedures 2019

Full scope for grovp audit
purposes 2018

Specified risk-focused
audit procedures 2018

Residual
components
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED

4. We have nothing to report on going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis os they do not intend to liquidate the Company

or the Group or to cease their operations, and as they have
concluded that the Company’s and the Group's financial position
means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant
doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the financial statements {“the
going concern period”}.

Qur responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of the
Directors’ conclusions and, had there been a material uncertainty
related to going concern, to make reference to that in this

audit report. However, as we cannot predict al future events

or conditions and as subsequent events moy result in outcomes
that are incansistent with judgements that were reasonable at

the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material
uncertainty in this auditer’s report is not a guarantee that the
group or the company will continve in operation.

We identified going concern as o key audit matter {see section
2 of this report). Bosed on the wark described in our response to
that key audit matter, we are required to report to you if:

* we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of
accounting is inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material
uncertainty that may cost significant doubt over the use of that
basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval
of the financial statements.

We have nothing to report in this respect.

5. We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented
in the Annual Report together with the financial statements.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the

other information and, accordingly, we do not express an

audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form

of assurance canclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit
work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent
with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely
on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the
other information.

Allionce Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Strategic report and directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

» we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic
report and the directors’ repart;

* in our opinion the information given in those reports for the
financial year is consistent with the financial statements; and

* in our opinion those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

6. We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you
if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

= the parent Company financiol statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by low
are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Woe have nothing to report in these respects.

7. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 74,

the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Group
and parent Campany’s ability to continue as a geing concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and
using the going concern basis of accounting unfess they either
intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or te cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasanable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
our opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordonce with [SAs (UK] will always detecta
moterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements con arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of cur respensibilities is provided on the FRC's
website at www.fre.org.uk /auditorsresponsibilities

8. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Fart 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

! / ; gy -
Gladiaes Camiproil Lbite.

Andrew Campbell-Orde

{Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on
behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
66 Queen Square
Bristol

BS1 4BE

7 Aprit 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended 31 December 2018

Nen- Non-
Underlying Underlying
Underlying £000s Total Underlying £000s Total
Note £000s {Note 5) £000s £000s {Note 5) £000s
Revenue 3,33 135,637 - 135,637 118,208 - 118,208
Cost of sales (49,561} - {49.561) {45,560) - {45,560]
Gross profit 86,076 - 86,076 72,648 - 72,648
Operating expenses
Administration ond marketing expenses {46,814} - {46,814) {41,934) - [41,934)
Share-based employee remuneraticn 7,24 {1.8156) - {1,816) {1.790) - {1.790)
Share of Joint Venture profits 30 - - - 13 - 13
Return of Xonvea Licensing Rights 5 - {1,672} 1,672} - - -
Disposal of Flammacerium 5 - (145) {145) - - -
Profit on disposal of Unigreg Joint Yenture 5 - - - - 1,508 1,508
Impairment and write down of Synthasia
Joint Venture assets 5 - - - - {2,460) {2,460)
Impairment of Anfi-malarial intangible asset 5 - - - - (4,318) (4,318
Operating profit 37,446 (1,817) 35,629 28,937 {5,270) 23,667
Finance costs
Interest payable and similar charges 5 {3,777) - {3,777) (3,457} - (3,457
Change in deferred contingent consideration ) - - - 1,966 - 1,966
Finance (costs)/income 6 {776) - (776) 627 - 627
(4,553} - {4,553) {864) - (864)
Profit before taxation 4 32,893 {1,817) 31,076 28,073 (5,270) 22,803
Texatian 8 {6,414) 348 {6,066) 15,491) 1,644 (4,447)
Profit for the period atiributable to equity
shareholders 26,479 (1,469} 25,010 22,582 (4,226) 18,356
Earnings per share
Basic {pence) 1G 5.09 4.80 4.54 3.69
Giluted {pence} 10 4.9%9 4,72 4.42 3.60

All of the activities of the Group are classed as continuing.

The accompanying accounting palicies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Alliance Pharma ple - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Profit for the year 25,010 18,356

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign exchange translation differences (net of deferred tax) {1,495) 1,100

Forward exchange forward contracts — cash flow hedge {net of deferred lax) 489 -

Interest rate swops — cash flow hedge (nel of deferred tax) {23) 113

Total comprehensive income for the year 23,981 19,570
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Neote £000s £000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and intangible assets Al 328,660 335,243
Property, plant and equipment 12 11,554 7.594
Deferred tax 22 1,710 1,845
Other nan-current assets 676 180
342,600 344,862
Current assets
Inventories 14 15,518 18,706
Trade and other receivables 15 30,992 29,148
Derivative financial instruments 20 697 -
Cash ond cash equivalents 16 17,830 10,893
65,037 58,747
Total assets 407,637 403,609
Equity
Ordinary share capital 23 5,294 5,182
Share premium account 149,036 144,639
Share option reserve 7,208 6,121
Other reserve (329) {329
Cash flow hedging reserve 462 {4)
Translation reserve {4} 1,491
Retained earnings 112,513 95,099
Total equity 274,180 252,199
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
loans ond borrowings 18 77,040 28,667
Orther liabilities 9 2,401 2,352
Deferred tax liability 22 29,810 28,663
Derivative financial instruments 20 - 5
109,251 59,687
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 8 - 68,035
Corporation tax 2,344 1,457
Trade and other payables 17 21,815 22,231
Derivative financiat instruments 20 a7 -
24,206 91,723
Total liabilities 133,457 151,410
Total equity and liabilities 407,637 403,609

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2020.

Peter Butterfield
Director

Andrew Franklin
Director

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Company number 04241478
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Note £000s £000s
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiaries 13 194,630 184,21
Deferred tax asset - 194
194,630 184,405
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 24 29
Cash and cash equivalents 16 97 83
121 112
Total assets 194,751 184,517
Equity
Ordinary share capital 23 5,294 5,182
Share premium account 149,036 144,639
Share option reserve 6,846 6,121
Relained earnings 32,316 27,751
Total equity 193,492 183,693
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other poyables 17 225 221
Corporation tax 1,034 603
Total liabilities 1,259 824
Total equity ond liabilities 194,751 184,517

The Company’s profit for the year was £12,161,000 (2018: £2,045,000).

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Income Statement is presented in respect of the Parent Company.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2020.

Peter Butterfield Andrew Franklin

Director Director

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Company number 04241478
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ordinary Share Cash flow Share
share premium Other hedging Translation aption Retained Total

capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings equity

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Bolance 1 Jonuary 2018 4,750 110,252 (329) 17) 390 5073 83,089 203,108
Issue of shares 432 - - - - - - 432
Share premium - 34,387 - - - - - 34,387
Dividend paid - - - - - - [6,346) (6,346)
Share options charge {including
deferred tax) - - - - - 1,048 - 1,048
Transactions with owners 432 34,387 - - - 1,048 (6,348) 29,521
Profit for the year - - - - - - 18,356 18,356
Other comprehensive income
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedge
{net of deferred tax| _ - - 113 - - - 113
Foreign exchange translation differences
{net of deferred tax) - - - - 1,101 - - 1,101
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 113 1,101 - 18,156 18,570
Balance 31 December 2018 5182 144,639 (329) (4) 1,491 6,121 95,099 252,199
Balance 1 Jonvary 2019 5,182 144,639 (329) (4) 1,491 6,121 95,099 252,199
issue of shares 12 - - - - - - 112
Share premium - 4,397 - - - - - 4,397
Dividend paid - - - - - - (7.596) {7,596)
Share options charge [including deferred
tax) - - - - - 1,087 - 1,087
Transactions with owners 112 4,397 - - - 1,087 {7.596) (2,000)
Profit for the year - - - - - - 25,010 25,010
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange forward contracts —
cash flow hedge (net of deferred tax) - - - 489 - - - 489
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedge
[net of deferred tax) - - - {23) - - - {23)
Foreign exchange translation differences
(net of deferred tax) - - - - (1,495) - - {1,495)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 4686 (1,495) - 25,010 23,981
Balance 31 December 2019 5,294 149,036 (329) 462 {a) 7,208 112,513 274,180
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ordinary share Share promium  Share option Retained Total
capital account reserve earnings equity
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance 1 lanyary 2018 4,750 110,252 5,073 25,052 145,127
Issue of shares 432 - ~ - 432
Share premium - 34,387 - - 34,387
Dividend paid - - - (6,346) {6,346)
Share epfions charge (including deferrad tax) - - 1,048 - 1,048
Transactions with owners 432 34,387 1,048 16,348) 29,521
Profit for the period and total comprehensive income - - ~ 2,045 7045
Balance 31 December 2018 5182 144,639 6,121 27,751 183,693
Balance 1 Janyary 2019 5,182 144,639 &1 27,751 183,693
Issue of shares 112 - - - 112
Share premium - 4,397 - - 4,397
Dividend paid - - - (7,596} {7.596)
Share eptions charge (including deferred tax) - - 725 - 725
Transactions with owners 12 4,397 725 {7,596} (2,362)
Profis for the period and total comprehensive income - - ~ 12,161 12,161
Balance 31 December 2019 5,294 149,036 6,846 32,316 193,492
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CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Group Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Naote £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cash flows from operating activities
Caosh generated from operations 25 38,958 26,117 {773} (867}
Tax paid {3,200 (3.941) {445) (686)
Cash flows from/{used in} operating activities 35,758 22,170 {1,218) {1,553}
Investing activities
Interest received 23 36 - -
Dividend received - - 7.596 5,600
Investment in subsidiary 13 - - {3,277) (32,507)
Development expenditure N {(12) (43) - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 {4,145) {2,891) - -
Repayment of loan to Joint Venture on disposal a1l - 1,426 - -
Proceeds from disposal of Joint Venture Investment kil 500 2,196 - -
Praceeds fram disposal of intangibles 3 350 - - -
Exceptional compensation income - 1,000 - -
Consideration on acquisitions - {60,307) - -
Payment of contingent consideration on acquisition - {500] - -
Net cash [used in)/from investing activities (3,284) {59,083) 4,319 (26,907}
Financing activities
Interest paid ond similar charges (2.505) (3.197) - -
loan issue costs {1,401) [362) - -
Capital lease poyments (726) {512) - -
Net preceeds from issue of shares - 32,755 - 32,755
Proceeds from exercise of share options 4,509 2,063 4,509 2,063
Dividend poid 10 {7.596) (6,346) {7.596} 16,346)
Proceeds from borrawings 20 1,054 28,000 - -
Repayment of borrowings 20 (18,533) (15,813) - -
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (25,198) 36,588 (3,087} 28,472
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents 7.276 {325) 14 12
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 10,893 11,184 83 71
Exchange {losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents {339) 34 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 16 17,830 10,893 97 83

The accompanying accounting policies and notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2019

1. General information

Alliance Pharma plc {'the Company’) and its subsidiaries {together ‘the Group’) acquire, market and distribute pharmaceutical and
other medical products. The Company is a public limited company, limited by shares, registered, incorporated and domiciled in
England and Wales in the UK. The address of its registered office is Avonbridge House, Bath Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 2BB.
The Company is listed on the AIM stock exchange.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 7 April 2020,

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the

EU ['Adopted IFRS'). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the exception of derivatives
and contingent consideration which are included at fair value,

2.2 Consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the ‘Group’) and equity
account the Group’s interest in joint Ventures. The parent Compaeny financial statements present information about the Company as a
separate entity ond not about the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, the
Group takes into consideration potential voting rights. The acquisition date is the date on which control is transferred to the acquirer.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases.

Joint Ventures

An entity is treated as a Joint Venture where the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets
and obligations for its liabilities. Joint Yentures are accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted investees) and are
initially recognised at cost. The consolidated financial statements include the Group's share of the total comprehensive income and
equity movements of equity accounted investees, from the date that joint control commences until the date that joint control ceases.
See note 30 for details of Joint Ventures.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-Group balances and transactiens, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-Group transactions,
are eliminated.

2.3 Judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions ore based on historical experience and various other facters that are believed to be reasonable under the relevant
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates ond underlying assumptions are reviewed by the Directors on an on-gaing basis.

Judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimates {which are dealt with separately below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the Group's financial statements.

These are as follows:

* Selection of indefinite useful economic lives for certain intangible assets (note 11).
* |dentification and presentation of non-underlying items (note 5}.

* Assessment of the Statement of Objection issued by the UK's Competition and Markets Authority {CMA'] {note 27).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2, Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.3 Judgements and estimates continved

Estimates

IAS 1 requires the disclosure of assumptions and estimates at the end of the current reporting period that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The Directors consider these estimates to be as follows:
» Key assumptions used in discounted cash flow projections for impairment testing of certain intangible assets {note 11).

2.4 Revenue recognition

Identification of performance obligations

Revenue comprises consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's activities, namely
the distribution of pharmaceutical products. The Group also receives royalties in relation to certain agreements with distributors in
exchange for the licensed use of infellectual property and trademarks owned by the Group, which are generally based on sales
volumes. The Group has assessed the performance obligations as being each unit of goed sold by the Group.

Transaction price
The transaction price for each performance obligation comprises the stand-clone selling price for the product excluding value-added
tax and net of rebates and discounts. Intra-Group sales are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Royalty income and the deductions relaling to rebates and discounts are based on the Group's centractual obligations. Certain of the
royalty and rebate arrangements also include elements of variable consideration. The Group does not consider these elements to be
significant, however an estimate of variable consideration is included where appropriate.

The Group has considered whether itis an ‘agent’ or ‘principal’ under IFRS 15 for each commercial arrangement and accounted for
these accordingly.

Timing of recognition

Under IFRS 15 an entity recagnises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a good to o customer. An entity
transfers a good to a customer when the customer obtains control of that good. Control may be transferred either at a peint in time or
over time. For the Group, revenue is recognised at a point in time when customers have control of the sold goods, or on an appropriate
basis where royalty or other arrangements are in place with third parties.

Specific revenue streams
The Group has the following recognition policies for ditferent commercial arrangements,

() Pharmaceutical product sales — ex-works terms: Recognition at @ point in time when each unit of pharmaceutical product is
available to the customer for collection.

lil Pharmaceutical product saies — dispatch terms: Recognition at a point in time when each unit of pharmaceutical product is
dispatched to the customer.

[i) Pharmaceutical product royalties receivable: Recognition at @ point in time when the third-party makes pharmaceutica! product
soles subject to a royclty agreement with the Group.

(iv) Pharmaceutical product rebates payable (including VPAS): Recognition os o deduction from revenue when the third-party makes
pharmaceutical product sales subject to a rebate agreement with the Group or when sales are made in the scope of the VPAS
Voluntary Scheme. VPAS applies to branded, licensed medicines which are available on NHS prescription.

{v] Pharmaceutical product transitional agreements: Recognition a pointin time when the third party makes pharmaceutical product
sales subject to a transitional agreement with the Group,

The amount recognised represents the product margin generated by the third party on behaolf of the Group. Related transitional
agreement fees are recognised within administrative expenses. This is relevant ta Nizoral (note 33) where the Group is an ‘agent’
in the relationship with J&J.

The Group does not consider that judgements made in evaluating when customers obtain control of a promised good to have
significantly influenced the timing of revenue recegnition in the year.
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2.5 Foreign currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is the presentational currency of the Group and the functional
currency of the Company. Foreign currency transactions by Group componies are booked at the exchange rate ruling on the date

of the transaction. Foraign currency monetary assets and liabilities are retransiated into Sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. Fareign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the income statement except! for differences
arising on the retranslation of a financiol liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation that is effective, or
qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated to
the Group's presentational currency, Sterling, at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The revenues and expenses of
foreign operations are translated at an average rate for the year where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Exchange differences arising from translation of foreign operations are reparted in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Foreign currency differences arising on the retranslation of a hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation are reported in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve, to the extent
that the hedge is effective.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Computer software and equipment, fixtures, fittings and equipment, plant and machinery and motor vehicles are stated at the cost of
purchase less any provisions for depreciation and impairment. Depreciation of an asset starts when the asset is available for use. The
rates generally applicable are:

Computer software and equipment 20% - 33.3% per annum, straight line
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 20% - 25% per annum, straight line
Plant and machinery 20% - 25% per annum, straight line
Motor vehicles 20% per annum, straight line

2.7 Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use osset and a corresponding liability at the date ot which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group. Each lease paymentis allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so os to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right of
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. The lease payments are discounted using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value ossets are recognised on o straight-line basis as an expense in the
income statement, Short-term leases ore leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment.

2.8 Intangible assets and goodwill

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not amortised
but is tested annually for impairment.

Acquired intangible assets

[iy Brands

Separately acquired brands are shown at cost less accumulated amertisation end impairment. Brands acquired as part of a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date, where they are separately identifiable, Brands are amortised over their
useful economic life, except when their life is determined as being indefinite.

Applying indefinite lives to certain acquired brands is appropriate due to the stable long-term nature of the business and the enduring
nature of the brands. Indefinite life brands are tested atleast annually for impairment.

A review of the useful economic life of brands is performed annually, to ensure that these lives are still appropriate. If a brand is
considered to have o finite life, its carrying value is amortised over that period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.8 Intangible assets and goodwill continued

[ii) Patents

Where an acquired intangible includes o definite period of patent protection and the value attributed to the patent is considered
material, the Group has accounted for the value of the patent separate to the underlying brand. The patent is amortised over the
period fo patent expiry.

fiii} Distribution rights

Payments made in respect of product registration and distribution rights are capitalised where the rights comply with the above
requirements for recognition of acquired brands. If the registration or distribution rights are for o defined time period, the intangible
asset is amortised over that period. If no time period is defined, the intangible osset is treated in the same way as acquired brands with
an indefinite life. If the licence period can be extended the useful life of the intangible asset shall include the renewal period only if
there is evidence fo support renewal by the entity without disproportionate cost.

Development costs

Research expenditure is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised
when it can be reliably measured and the project it is attributable to is separately identifiable, is technically feasible, demonstrates
future economic benefit, and will be used or sold by the Group once completed_

The capitalised cost is amortised over the period during which the Group is expected to benefit and begins when the asset is ready
for use.

Development costs are reviewed at least annually for impairment by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit, to
which the development costs relate. The racoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Development costs not meeting the recognition criteria are expensed as incurred.

Impairment

The carrying amaunts of the Group's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at the
same time.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs 1o sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate thot reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that
cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash-generating unit’). The Directors have
determined that the cash-generating units are at product-group level,

The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to cash-generating units, or
('CGU'). For the purposes of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which gocdwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level
atwhich impairment is tested reflects the lowest level ot which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit {group of units) on
a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwili is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impoirment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporfing date for any indications that the loss has decreased of no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed

if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable emount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
omertisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairments are classified as underlying when they relote to the normal trading activities of the Group. This wou!d include impairments
resulting from general decline in long term forecasts due to commercial factors. Impairments are classified as non-underlying when
they are significant and one-off in nature, which may be due to factors outside the Group's control, and therefore do not reflect normal
trading performance.
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29 Inventories

Inventories are included at the lower of cost, less any provision for impairment, or net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in-
first-out basis. Inventory provisions have been made for slow moving and obsolete stock. These provisions are estimates and the actual
costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future events. The difference between expectations and the actual future liability
will be accounted for in the period when such determination is made,

210 Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current fax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxchle income or loss for the year, using tex rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjusiment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tox is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financiel reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition
of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination, and differences relating o investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable
future. The amount of deferred tax provided is bosed on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying emount of
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted ot the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Derivatives are initially
measured at fair value, Subsequent 1o initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised in
profit or loss unless designated as cashflow hedges.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash flows associated with highly probakle
forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates.

Atinception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The Group also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether
the changes in cash Hlows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cashflow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cashflow hedging reserve. The effective portian of changes in
the fair value of the derivative that is recognised in other comprehensive income is fimited to the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised,
then hedge accounting is disconfinued prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that
has been accumulated in the cashflow hedging reserve remains in equity until it is reclassified to profit or loss in the same period or
periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss.

|f the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been accumulated in the cashflow hedging
reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are immediately reclossified to profit or loss.

Translation risk

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations are reported in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the transiation reserve. Gains and losses on those hedging instruments designated as hedges of the net
investment in foreign operations, are recognised to the extent that the hedging relationship is effective; these amounts are included

in exchange differences on translation of foreign operations as stated in the statement of comprehensive income. Gains and losses
relating to hedge ineffectiveness are recognised immediately in the income statement for the period. Gains and Josses accumulated in
the translation reserve are reclassified to the income statement when the foreign investment is dispesed of.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

2.12 Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables.

Modifications of financial instruments lincluding loans and borrowings) are reviewed quantitatively and qualitatively to determine if
the modification is ‘substantial’. Substantial modification of a financial liability results in de-recognition of the original balance, and
recognition of a new financial liability at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the original financial liability and
the fair value of the new financial liability is charged to the income statement. A non-substantial modification of financial liability does
not result in the de-recognition of the original balance, however may also result in a gain or loss recognised in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables

Trade ond other receivables are recognised initially at fair volue. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. The Group's trade receivables are subject to the IFRS 9 expected
credit loss model. The Group has applied the simplified approoch to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance based on historic default rates. The expected credit loss rate varies depending on whether and the extent to which
settlement of the frade receivables is overdue.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent fo initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call depuosits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose only of the
cosh How statement. Dividends and interest received are included in investing activities. Dividends and interest paid are included in
tinancing activities.

Investments in debt and equity securities
The Company’s investment in subsidiaries is stated ot amortised cost less impairment.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.13 Employee benefits — Share-based payment transactions

Employees (including Directors) of the Group receive part of their remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby,
depending on the scheme, employees render services in exchange for rights over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’) or entitlement to
a future cash payment (‘cash-settled transactions’), the amount of which is determined with reference to the Company’s share price.

The cost of equity-settled transoctions with employees is measured, where appropriate, with reference to the fair value at the date on
which they are granted. Where options need to be valued an appropriate valuation model is applied. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.
The cost of equity-settled transactions is fully recharged 1o subsidiaries,

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured with reference to the fair value of the liability, which is taken to be the closing price of
the Company's shares. Uniil the liability is settled it is remeasured ot the end of each reporting period and at the date of settlement, with
any changes in the fair value being recognised in the income statement

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, along with a corresponding increase in equity, over the years in which the
performance conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the award [*vesting
date’). The cost of cash-settled transactions is recognised, along with a provision for expected cash settlement, over the vesting period.

At each reporting date, the cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the number of awards that, in the opinion of management, will ultimately vest. Manogement's estimates are based

on the best available information at that date. No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards
where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

The provision of shares to sctisfy certain of the Group's share option schemes can be facilitated by purchases of own shares by the
Group's Employee Benefit Trust. The casts of operating the Trust is borne by the Group butis net material. To date, no shares have been
purchased by the Trust for satisfaction of outstanding or future share option awards.
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The Employee Benefit Trust is considered to be controlled by the Group. The activities of the Trust are conducted on behalf of the Group
according to its specific business needs in order to obtain benefits from its operation and, on this basis, the assets held by the Trust are
consolidated into the Group’s finoncial siatements.

2.14 Equity
‘Share capital’ represents the nominal value of equity shares.

‘Share premium’ represents the excess aver nominal value of the fair value of consideration received for equity shares, net of expenses
of the share issue.

*Share aption reserve’ represents equity-settled share-based employee remuneration.
‘Retained earnings’ represents retained profit.
‘Other reserve’ represents the difference between the fair volue and nominal value of shares issued on a reverse takeover.

‘Cash flow hedging reserve’ represents the fair value of derivative financial instruments ot the balance sheet date that are designated
as cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax, less amounts reclassified through other comprehensive income.

Translation reserve’ represents gains and losses arising on translation of the net assets of overseas operations inte the Group's
presentation currency of Sterling.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recegnised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that
a tronsfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and where o reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the abligation. Where malerial, provisions have been discounted to their present value.

2.16 Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the cequisition accounting method. Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are
measured at fair value at acquisition date. Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or
equity securities, are expensed as incurted. Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
If the contingent consideraticn is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and setilement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss. The Group afsc engages in
acquisitions of product specific assets such as brands - set out in Note 2.8). Where elements of the consideration paid are variable
and based on future revenues, the cost of the intangible asset recognised is based on the agreed minimum payments and any
additional payments are expensed as the related sales occur.

217 Going Concern

The Group is in a net current asset position of £41.8m. This contrasts to the 2018 position where the Graup was in a net current liability
position of £33m, principally due to current bank loans of £68.5m. On 2 July 2019, the Group agreed a new £165m fully Revolving
Credit Facility ['RCF'), together with a £50m accordion, with an enlarged syndicate of lenders on improved terms, replacing the
previous facility which ran through to December 2020.

The directors have prepared cashflow forecasts for a period of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements (the
forecast period). These indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds, given the RCF financing available, to meet its liabilities as they
fall due for that period.

The cashflow forecasts include the current estimated impact of COVID-19 coronavirus. Also, the Directors have considered further
potential implications of COVID-19 corgnavirus by modslling severe but plausible downside scenarios. In particular, the Directors
considered a scenario involving a 25% decline in revenue from April to December 2020. Trading across the Group’s balanced
portfolio has remained relatively stable in the first three months of 2020 and the Group has sufficient stock to mitigate supply issues that
may arise, Therefore, the Directors are confident that this scenario reflects the worst reasonably possible outcome. In this scenario, the
forecasts indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue to comply with its loan
covenants, throughout the forecast pericd.

Additionally, given the unprecedented situation, the Directors have modelled a further stress scenario invelving the cessation of sales
for a period of three months from April 2020. Even in this scenario, the forecasts indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue to comply with its loan covenants [albeit with significantly reduced headroom),
throughout the forecast period. The Directors consider the above scenario to be unlikely. However, if even more severe scenarios
were to be realised, the Group would take mitigating actions and the Directors are confident that loan covenant compliance would
be maintained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

2. Summary of significant accounting policies conlinued

2.17 Going Concern cantinued

The RCF is drawn in short to medium-term tranches of debt which are repayable within 12 months of draw-down. These tranches of
debt can be rolled over provided certain conditions are met, including covenant compliance. The Group considers that it is highly
unlikely it would be unable to exercise its right to roll-over the debt. This due to mitigating actions it could take to maintain compliance
with these conditions, including future covenant requirements, even in downside scenarios. The Directors therefore believe that the
Group has the ability and the intent to roll-over the drawn RCF amounts when due and consequently has presented the RCF as a
non-current liability.

Consequently, the Directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due
for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and have therefore determined it is appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

2.18 Alternative Performance Measures

The performance of the Group is assessed using Alternative Performance Measures [/APMs’). The Group’s results are presented both
belore and ofter non-underlying items. Adjusted profitability measures are presented excluding non-underlying items as we believe this
provides both management and investors with useful additional information about the Group’s performance and aids o more effective
comparison of the Group's trading performance from one period to the next and with similar businesses.

In addition, the Group’s results are described using certain other measures that are nct defined under IFRS and are therefore
considered to be APMs. These measures are used by management to menitor angoing business performance ogainst both shorter
term budgets and forecasts but also against the Group’s longer term strategic plans. APMs are presented in note 33.

3. Revenue
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Revenue information By Brand £000s £000s
International 5tar brands:
Kelo-cote 31,039 22,467
Nizoral* 11,528 5,037
MacuShield 8,236 6,982
Vamousse 6,538 5,756
57,34 40,242
Local brands:
Flamma Franchise 7.647 7858
Aloclair 8,057 7,207
Hydromol 6,732 6,671
Ferceval 4,409 3,874
Haemopressin 2,081 2,702
Opfiflo 2,921 2,645
Oxyplastine 3,458 2,640
Ashton & Parsons 2,676 2,225
Ametop 2,272 2,181
Other lecal brands 38,042 39963
78,296 77966
Totol Revenve 135,637 118,208

* Nizoral 1s shown on an agency basis in statutory revenue Nizoal revenue presented on o see-through income statement bosis is mcluded o1 an alternative performance measvre in note 33

Xonvea Revenue is included in Other Local brands following the return of licensing rights {note 31},
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Year ended
31 December 2019

Year ended
31 December 2018

Revenue information By Geagraphy £000s £000s
UK and Republic of Ireland 51,404 52,2466
Mainlend Europe 32,496 25,386
International 45,644 35,077
UsA 6,093 5,479
Total Revenue 135,637 118,208

Major customers

The revenue from the Group’s largest customer is as follows. Cne cusiomer separately comprised 10% or more of revenue {2018: one).

Year ended Year ended

31 Decernber 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Major customer 1 24,036 22,135

4. Profit before taxation

Yeor ended
31 December 2019

Year ended
31 December 2018

Profit before taxation is stated after chorging/[crediting): £000s £000s
Amounts receivable by the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of

~ The audit of these financial statements 40 36
- The audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries 161 141
— Corporate finance services - 114
- Other assurance services 5 5
Amortisation of intangible assets 179 211
Impairment of intangible assets 284 6,244
Non-underlying {losses)/profit on disposal {1,817) 1,508
Share eptions charge 1,816 1,790
Depreciation of plent, property and equipment 1,496 1,335
Research and development expense 74 131
Loss/{gain} on foreign exchange transactions 799 (575)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

5. Non-underlying items

Non-underlying items are those significant items which the Directors have judged, by their nature, are not related to the normal
trading activities of the Group. They are therefore seporately disclosed as their significant, non-recurring nature does not allow

@ true understanding of the Group's underlying financial performance. This assessment requires judgement to be applied by the
Direclors as to which transactions are non-underlying and whether this classification enhances the understanding of the users of the

financial statements.

Year ended Year ended
31 December 209 31 December 2018
£000s £000s
Return of Xonvea Licensing Rights (1,672) -
Disposal of Flammacerium {145) -
Unigreg Joint Venture profit on disposal - 1,508
Impairment and write down of Synthasia Joint Venture assets - {2,460)
Impairment of Anti-malarial intangible asset - {4,318}
Total non-underlying items before taxation {1,817) {5,270)
Taxation 348 1,044
Total non-underlying items after taxation (1,469) 4,226)

In November 2019, the Group reached an agresment with Duchesnay Inc. of Canada (‘Duchesnay’) to return the UK and EU licensing
rights to Xonvea, a prescription medicine for the treatment of nausea and vomiting of pregnancy where conservative management

has failed. Under the terms of the agreement, £2m in milestone payments made to dote will be repaid to the Group, £0.25m having
been paid in 2019 with the balance due in 2020. Additionally, the remaining £0.5m due on initial acquisition of Xanvea previously
held as contingent consideration has been waived as part of the agreement. This resulted in the release of the contingent consideration
(note 17) and the disposal of the corresponding £0.5m asset under development [note 11). Both the release and disposal have been
included within the loss on disposal, resulting in no netimpact on the income statement.

The Group incurred non-underlying inventory provisions and associated restructuring costs in connection with the return of the Xonvea
rights of £1.9m. The total non-underlying toss on disposal was £1.7m [note 31).

In December 2019, the Group sold the global rights to the brand Flammacerium for gross cash consideration of £0.75m payable
over six years, £0.10m having been paid in 2019, Flammacerium is used for the prevention and treatment of infections in severe burn

wounds. The total non-underlying loss on disposal was £0.1m [note 31).

The disposals of Xonvea and Flammacerium do not relate to the normal trading activities of the Group hence have been separately

disclosed as non-underlying items.

In April 2018 the Group sold its 0% interest in Unigreg Limited to its joint venture partner, Pacific Glory Development Limited, fora
consideration of £2.9m. The Group profit on disposal was £1.5m net of fees {note 31).

In May 2018 the Group was notified that the import licence partner was not going to receive the required approval to import
Supremenmil, the infant milk fermula brand owned by Synthasia. Following subsequent discussions with the import licence partner

and Synthasia management, the Board concluded to fully impair the joint venture investment of £0.3m and to fully provide for the
associated receivables balances of £2.2m. This generated a non-cash, non-underlying impairment charge and receivables provision

of £2.5m.

Sales of anti-malarial products fell significantly in 2018 due to competition in the UK market. In mid-August 2018, Alliance was
notified by the manufacturer of these products of its intention to cease supply due to lower volumes. After due consideration, the Board
concluded theat, due to the decline in demand, it was not economic to transfer the product to an alternative manufacturer and therefore
it was appropriate to write down the value of the £4.3m intangible asset ossociated with these products in full.
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6. Finance costs

Year ended

Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Interest payable and simitar charges
On loans and overdrafts {3,191} 2,964)
Amortised finance issue costs {491} {384]
Unwinding of discount an deferred and contingent considerction - {35]
Interest on lease liabilities (25) {74)
(3,777} [3,457)
Change in fair value of contingent consideration - 1,966

Finance income

Interest income 23 52
Net exchange [loss]/gains (799} 575
{776) 627
Finance costs — net (4,553) {864)

Unwinding of discount on deferred and contingent consideration was in respect of amounts payable from the Macuheaolth and

Vamousse acquisitions.

The prior year decrease in contingent consideration related to changes in the eriginal estimated amounts payable for the acquisition
of the Vamousse brand. This change in fair value was caused by revisions to financial forecasts following acquisitions and is not

considered to be a measurement period adjustment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

far the year ended 31 December 2019

7. Directors and employees

Employee benefit expenses for the Group {including Directors) during the year were as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
£000s £000s
Wages and salaries 15,432 12,920
Social security costs 2,443 2,453
Other pension costs [note 28) 812 730
Share-based employee remuneration (note 24) 1,816 1,790
20,503 17,963

The average number of employees of the Group [including Directors}t during the year was:
Year ended Yeor ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Number Number
Management and administration 219 210

Key management of the Group are the Board of Directors {including Non-executive Directors). Benefit expenses in respect of the key
management was as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Directers’ remuneration 991 1,020
Pension contributions 43 43
1,034 1,063

During the year tontributions were paid 1o defined contribution schemes for two Directors (2018: two).

Gain on share options exercised by Directors during the yeor was £1,676,000 (2018: £nil}. The notional nan-cash IFRS 2 share based
payment expense in respect of directors wos £156,000 {2018: £232,000).

The amounts sef out obove include remuneration in respect of the highest-paid Director as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Emeluments for qualifying services 435 303
Pension contributions 26 26
51 329

Average number of members of the Board of Directors {including Non-executive Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
six (2018: six).
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8. Taxation

Analysis of the chorge for the period is as follows:

Yeorended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
£000s £000s
Corporation 1lax

In respect of current period 4,373 3,003
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (227) 7
4,146 3,010

Deferred tax {see note 22
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences 1,804 1,110
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 116 327
Taxation 6,066 4,447

The difference between the total tax charge shown above and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation
tax to the profit before tax is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
£000s £000s
Profit before taxation 31,076 22,803
Profit before taxation multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 19.00%
[2C18: 19.00%) 5,904 4,332
Effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 166 259
Non-taxable income - {794)
Adjustment in respect of pricr pericds {1m1) 334
Differences between current and deferred tax rates (226} {142)
Differing tax rates on overseas earnings 277 310
Share options {241) (135]
Movement in other tax provisions 297 283
Total taxction 6,066 4,447

A change to the UK corporation tax rate was announced in the Chancellor’s Budget on 16 March 2016, reducing the main rate

from 19% to 17% from 1 April 2020. This commitmen! was obandoned in the Budget on 11 March 2020. As this change was not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, the effect is not included in these financial statements and UK timing differences

have continved to be recognised at 17% for deferred tax purposes. The overall effect of this change in policy, if ithad applied to

the deferred tax balance at the balance sheet date, wouid be to increase the overall net deferred tax liability by £1,698,000. The
income tax expense for the period would have increased by £1,854,000, with a charge of £287,000 to the revaluation reserve, and a
£444,000 credit to other comprehensive income.

The Group has calculated ‘adjusted underlying effective tax rate” as an alternotive performance measure in note 33.

Overview

Strotegic Report

Governance

Financial Statements

Additional Information

103



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

9. Dividends

Year ended
31 December 2019

Year ended
31 December 2018

Pence/share £000s Pence/share £000s

Amounts recognised as distributions to owners in the year
Interim dividend for the prior financial year 0.487 2,524 0.443 2,104
Final dividend far the prior financial year 0977 5,072 0.888 4,242
1.464 7,596 1.331 6,346
Interim dividend for the current financial year 0.536 2,837 0.487 2,524

The interim dividend for the current financia! year was paid on 10 January 2020.

10. Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculoted by dividing the earnings atiributable to Ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of Ordinary
shares in issue during the year. For diluted EPS, the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares. There are no differences in earnings vsed to calculate each measure as a

result of the dilutive employee share options,

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of Ordincry shares used in the measures is given below:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Basic EPS calculation 520,687,101 457,199,620
Employee share options 9,471,693 13,223,152
Diluted EPS calculation 530,158,794 510,422,772

The underlying basic EPS is intended to demonstrate recurring elements of the results of the Group before non-underlying items.
A reconciliation of the earnings used in the different measures is given below:

Year ended Year anded

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s

Earnings for basic EPS 25,010 18,356

Nen-underlying items [note 5) 1,469 4,226

Earnings for underlying basic EPS 26,479 22,582
The resulting EPS measures are:

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Pence Pence

Basic EPS 4.80 3.69

Diluted EPS 4,72 3.60

Underlying basic EPS 5.09 4.54

4.99 4.42

Underlying diluted EPS
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11. Goodwill and intangible assets

Brands and

Assets under

Goodwill  distribution rights  Development costs development Total
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
A1 1 January 2019 16,565 328,092 768 1,000 346,425
Additions - - 12 - 12
Disposals [note 31) [33) {1,500) (780) (1,000} {2,813)
Exchange adjustments - (3,051) - - (3,051}
At 31 December 2019 16,532 323,541 - - 340,073
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2019 - 11,182 - - 11,182
Underlying impairment for the year - 284 - - 284
Amortisation for the year - 179 - - 179
Disposal {Note 31} - (232) - - {232)
At 31 December 2019 - 11,413 - - 11,413
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 16,532 312,128 - - 328,660
At 1 Janvary 2019 16,565 316,910 768 1,000 335,243

Brands and Assets under

Goodwill  distribution rights Development costs development Total
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 Janvary 2018 16,565 263,560 725 2,500 283,350
Additiens - 60,307 43 - 60,350
Disposal - {18} - - (18]
Transfer - 1,500 - (1,5G0) -
Exchange adjustments - 2,743 - - 2,743
At 31 December 2018 16,565 328,092 768 1,000 346,425
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2018 - 4,727 - - 4,727
Underlying impairment for the year - 1,926 - - 1,926
Non-underlying impairment for the year - 4,318 - - 4,318
Amortisation for the year - 21 - - 211
At 31 December 2018 - 11,182 - - 11,182
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 16,565 316,910 768 1,000 335,243
At 1 Januvary 2018 16,565 258,833 725 2,500 278,623

Goodwill and the majority of brands and distribution rights are considered to have indefinite useful economic lives and are therefore

subject to on impairment review at least annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

11. Goodwill and intangible assets continued

Brands and distribution rights

Key judgement - useful economic lives

Certain brands were acquired with patent protection, which lasts for a finite period of time. It is the opinion of the Directars that these
palents do not provide any incremental value to the value of the brand and therefore no separate valve has been placed on these
patents. This assessment is based on a view of future profitability after patent expiry and past experience with similar brands.

The Directors believe applying indefinite lives to certain acquired brands is appropriate due to the stable long-term nature of the
business and the enduring nature of the bronds. These brands are assessed on acquisition to ensure they meet set criteria including an
established and stable sales history.

Where distribution rights are deemed to have a finite life they are amortised accordingly. Amertisation is included in administration and
marketing expenses. The remainder of the distribution rights have no defined time period or there is evidence to support the renewal of
distribution rights without disproportionate cost. These assets are therefore treated the same as acquired brands.

It is the opinion of the Directors that the indefinite life assets meet the ¢riteria set out in IAS 38. This assessment is made on an assef by
asset basis taking into account:

* how long the brand hos been established in the market and subsequent resilience to economic and social changes;
* stability of the industry in which the brand is used;

* potential obsolescence or erosion of sales;

* barriers to entry;

» whether sufficient marketing promational resourcing is available; and

* dependency on other assets with defined useful economic lives.

Goodwill

The net book value of brand and distribution rights and goodwill which are cansidered to have indefinite useful lives are allocated
to CGUs in the following table. Goodwill relating to the acquisition of certain assets and businesses from Sinclair IS Pharma ple is

allocated to the group of related product CGUs. Other Goodwill amounts are allocated to the product CGU with which they were
originally acquired.

Brands and

Goodwill  distribution rights Total
Year ended 31 December 2019 £000s £000s £000s
Nizoral - 40,307 60,307
Menadiol, Vitamin E & Others 598 12,876 13,474
Forceval, Amantadine & Others - 12,931 12,931
Vamousse - 11,596 11,596
MaeuShield 1,748 8,740 10,488
Nu-Seals - 9,100 2,100
SkinSafe, Dansac & Others 1,849 8,043 9,892
Timodine & Buccastem - 7,697 7,697
Syntemetrine {excluding UK] - 7.527 7,527
Ametop - 5,575 5,575
Others 1,147 26,882 28,029
Products acquired from Sinclair
Kelo-cote [non EU, excluding US) - 41,456 41,456
Oxyplastine, Fozal & Others - 25,198 25,198
Haemopressin, Optiflo & Cthers - 25,000 25,000
Kelo-cote [EU) - 17,800 17,800
Flamma Franchise - 17,400 17,400
Aloclair - 14,000 14,000
Coadwill 11,190 - 11,190
16,532 312,128 328,660
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Bronds and

Goodwill  distribution rights Total
Year ended 31 December 2018 £000s £000s £000s
Nizoral - 60,307 60,307
Menadtal, Vitamin E & Others 598 12,876 13,474
Forceval, Amantadine & Others - 12,931 12,931
Vamousse - 1,596 11,596
MacuShield 1,748 8,740 10,488
Nu-Seals - 2,100 9,100
SkinSafe, Dansac & Others 1,849 8,043 3892
Timedine & Buccastem - 7.697 7697
Syntometrine {excluding UK] - 7,527 7.527
Ametop - 5,575 5,575
Others 1,147 27,229 28,376
Products acquired from Sinclair
Kelo-cote (non EU, excluding US) - 43,075 43,075
Oxyplastine, Fozol & Others - 26,567 26,567
Haemopressin, Optifle & Others - 25,000 25,000
Kelo-cote (EU) - 17.800 17,800
Flamma Franchise - 17,400 17,400
Aloclair - 14,000 14,000
Goodwill 11,223 - 11,223
16,565 315,463 332,028

Recent acquisitions
The following acquisition activities took place in the prior year:

On 21 June 2018, the Group acquired the exclusive marketing rights to Nizoral, a medical anti-dandruff shampoe, in Asia-Pacific from
Janssen Pharmaceutica NV {a member of the Johnson & Johnson group of companies) for a total consideration of £60m, Associated
legal and due diligence costs were £0.3m. The acquisition was funded by on underwritten equity placing of new Ordinary shares in
the capital of the Company to raise gross proceeds of £34m [net proceeds: £32.8m after deduction of £1.2m directly attributable
expenses), and by the draw-down of £28m from a £35m extension of the Group's debt facilities.

In respect of Nizoral, the amounts included in the income statement since 21 June 2018 were revenues of £m and net profit of £3.6m.
Had the transaction occurred on 1 January 2018 estimated contribution to Group revenues would have been £10.7m and net profit of
£7.6m.

Impairment
As explained in note 2.8 all intangible assets are stated at the lower of cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment or the
recoverable amount.

Assets with indefinite useful economic lives and those that are not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annuclly, or
more frequentiy if there are indicators that amounts might be impaired. These ossets are tested at CGU leve! (or ot group of CGUs level
in the case of goodwill relating to the acquisition of certain assets and businesses from Sinclair IS Pharma ple) as the Directors believe
these CGUs generate largely independent cash inflows.

The impairment test involves determining the recoveroble amount of the relevant cash-generating unit, which carresponds te the higher
of the fair value less costs to sell or its value in use.

The value in use caiculation uses cash flow projections based on financial forecasts for up to the next five years extrapolated to
perpetyity, Financial forecasts for 2020 are based on the approved annual budget. Financial forecasts for 2021-24 are based on the
approved {ong range plan. Margins are based on past experience and cost estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

11. Goodwill and intangible assets continued

Goodwill continued

Key source of estimation uncertainty - value in use assumptions

The key assumptions on which cash flow projections are made are as follows (including our assessment of the estimation uncertainty
arising}:

Discount rates

* Methadology: Cash flows are discounted at an appropriate rate, based on the Group’s post-tax Weighted Average Cost of Copital
{WACC] adjusted where appropriate for country specific risks, of between 7.7%-12.0%, or pre-tax 9.6%-15.0% {2018: between
7.9%-10.5%, or pre-tax 9.6%-12.8%).

+ Estimation uncerfainty: The assumptions included in the compilation of the CGU specific discount rates are designed to approximate
the discount rate that a potential market participant would adopt. Given the nature of the Group’s business model, the discount rate

necessarily includes estimation uncertainty.

Forecast cash-flows

« Methadology: Approved budgets and forecasts for up to five years, based on management's best estimate of cash flows by
individual CGU. These forecasts are then uplifted to perpetuity using growth rates between -2.8% and 2.0% based on the Group's
leng-term projections. Higher growth rates have been applied to certain international Star brands in order to reflect the Group's
view of the strong long-term growth prospects of these products, taking into account the growth since acquisition and intended
marketing investment.

* Estimation uncertainty: The growth rates assumed in the Group's budgets and forecasts inherently include estimation uncertainty
relating to the achievement of commercial initiatives and external factors such as competition,

The Group hos conducted sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests. The valuations indicate sufficient headroom, the Group does not
consider that any reasonably possible change in key assumptians could resultin an impairment for all intangibles except Mu-seals as
detailed below.

Nu-seals
Nu-seals is a low dose aspirin sold mainly in Ireland. In recent years it has seen significant competition from generic alternatives. The
recoverable amount of this CGU is based on a value in use calculation with the following key ossumptions:

T
Pre-tax discount rate 10.0
Terminal margin growth rate (1.0)

The cash flow projections included specific estimates for five years ond o terminal growth rate thereafter, The terminal growth rate was
determined based on management's estimate of the long-term prospects for Nu-seals.

The estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount of £9.1m by £0.2m. Management has identified that
a reasanably possible change in the two key assumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount. The
following table shows the individual assumptions required for the estimated recoverable ameount to be equal to the carrying amount
whilst other assumptions are held constant.

%

Pre-tax discount rate 10.3

Terminal margin growth rcte (1.3}

The following table shows the potential impact of reasonably possible changes to individual assumptions on the estimated recoverable
amount of the CGU, whilst other assumptions are held constant.

Dec¢roase in CGU
recoverable
amount £000s

1.0% increase in pre-tax discount rate (810}

1.0% reduction in terminal margin growth rate (610)
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Recent significant impairments

Sales of anti-malarial praducts fell significantly in 2018 due to competition in the UK market. in mid-August 2018, Allionce was

notified by the manufacturer of these products of its intention to cease supply due to lower volumes. After due consideration, the Board
concluded that, due to the decline in demand, it was not economic to transfer the product to an alternative manufacturer and therefore

it was appropriate to write down the value of the £4.3m intangible asset associated with these products in full in 2018.

The Group had a £1.9m intangible asset within Brands and distribution rights representing the value of the agreement with Macuhealth
to guarantee supply of MacuShield API. In September 2018 the Group was notified by Macuhealth of their intention to end this supply

agreement. As a result of the notification the £1.9m intongible asset was written down in full, and related deferred consideration of

£1.1m released to the income statement. The net impact on underlying profit before tax was therefore a charge of £0.8m,

12. Property, plant and equipment

Computer Fixtures,
software and fittings & Right of

equipment equipment  Plant & machinery use leose assets Total
The Grouwp £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At T January 2019 5,327 2,036 14 3,964 11,341
Additions 3,461 684 - 1,329 5474
Effect of movements in exchonge rates {9) (14) - - {23)
Disposals {268) 7} - - {275)
At 31 December 2019 8,51 2,699 14 5,293 16,517
Depreciation
At 1 January 2019 1,074 836 - 1,837 3,747
Provided in the year 367 375 4 750 1,496
Effect of movements in exchange rates {n (4) - - (5)
Dispesals {268} {7) - - {275)
At 31 December 2019 1,172 1,200 4 2,587 4,963
Net book amount
At 31 December 2019 7,339 1,499 10 2,706 11,554
At 1 Jonvary 2019 4,253 1,200 14 2127 7,594

Computer Fixtures,

software and fitings & Right of

equipment equipment  Plant & machinery use lease ossets Total
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 January 2018 2,936 2,275 193 3,611 2015
Additions 2,406 470 15 353 3,244
Disposoals {15) (709) (194) - {218)
At 31 December 2018 5,327 2,036 14 3,964 11,341
Depreciation
At 1 Janvary 2018 560 1,312 155 1,303 3,330
Pravided in the year 529 233 39 534 1,335
Disposals (15) {709} (194) - (918)
At 31 December 2018 1,074 836 - 1,837 3,747
Net book amount
At 31 December 2018 4,253 1,200 14 2,127 7,594
At 1 January 2018 2,376 963 38 2,308 5,685

Property, plant and equipment of £8.7m is located within the United Kingdom {2018: £6.6m) The balance is located in France, Italy,
China, Singapore, Spain, Germany and the United States of America.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

13. Investments

Investment
in subsidiary
undertakings

The Company £000s
Cost

At 1 January 2019 184,211
Additions 10,419
At31 December 2019 194,630
At 1 January 2018 145,469
Additions 38,742
At 31 December 2018 184,211

£32.8m of the 2018 odditions related to funds from the equity placing of new Ordinary shares in the capital of the Company. These
were distributed to Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited for use in the acquisition of Nizoral [note 11). The investment balance includes
outstonding intercompany debt due from subsidiaries (note 29). The Directors do not consider that this amount will be demanded by the

Company and therefore it has been classified as an investment.

The subsidiary and associated undertakings where the Group held 20% or more of the equity share capital at 31 December 2019 are

shown below:

Country of
registration

%

Company or incorporation owned Nature of business
Advanced Bio-Technologies inc. USA 100 Phormaceutical sales
Alliance Pharma France SAS France 100  Pharmaceutical sales
Allionce Pharma {Singapare) Private Limited* Singapore 100  Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharma S.r.l. Italy 100 Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited* England & Wales 100  Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals (Asia) Limited™ Hong Keng 100  Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals (Shanghai) Limited Ching 100  Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals Spain SL* Spain 100 Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pherma Inc. USA 100 Pharmaceutical sales
Alliance Pharmaceuticals {Thailand} Co., Lid Thailand 100 Pharmaoceutical sales
Synthosia International Company Limited Hong Kong 20 Pharmaceutical sales
Synthesia Shanghai Co. Limited China 20 Pharmaceutical sales
Maelor Loboratories Limited England & Wales 100 Non-trading
Alliance Phormaceuticals GmbH™* Germany 100  Non-trading
Alliance Pharmaceuticals GmbH* — Swiss Branch Switzerland 100  Non-trading
Alliance Pharmaceuticals SAS™ France 100 Mon-trading

Opus Healthcare limited Republic of Ireland 100 Neon-trading
Alliance Pharma (Irelond) Limited Republic of Ireland 100 Nan-iroding
Alliance Consumer Health Limited Englend & Wales 100  Dormant

Alliance Generics Limited Englend & Wales 100  Dormant

Alliance Health Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant

Alliance Healthcare Limited Englend & Wales 100 Dormant

Caraderm Limited Northern Ireland 100 Dormant
Dermapharm Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant

MacuVision Europe Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant

Opus Group Holdings Limited England & Wales 100  Dormant

Opus Healthcare Limited England & Wales 100 Dormaont

* Investments heid directly by Alliance Phorme ple
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The registered address in each country is as follows:

Territory Company Registered Office Address
USA Advanced Bio-Technologies Inc. 100 N. Tampa Street, Suite 2700, Tampa, FL 33602,
United States
Alliance Pharma Inc. Corporation Trust Company, 1289 Crange Street,
Wilmington, DE 19801-1120
France Alliance Pharmaceuticals SAS &% avenue Franklin D. Roosevelt, 75008 Paris, France
Alliance Pharma France SAS 69, avenue Franklin D. Roosevelt, 75008 Paris, France
Chinag Alliance Pharmaceuticals {Shanghai) Limited Room 103, 1st Floar, 56 Meisheng Road, Shonghai Free-
Trade-Zone, PR.C
Synthasia Shanghci Company Limited Suite 806, Silva Bay Tower, Tower C, 469 Wusong Road,
Hongkou District, Shanghai 200080, P.R. China
Germany Alliance Pharmaceuticals GmbH Hanseatic Trade Center, Am Sandtorkai 41, D-20457
Hamburg, Germany
Hong Kong Alliance Pharmaceuticals {Asia) Limited Room 2105, 21/ F Office Tower, Langham Place, 8 Argyle
Street, Mongkok, Kowloon
Synthasic Internatienal Company Limited Unit 2402, 24/F, Bonham Trade Centre, 50 Benham Strand,
Sheung Warn, Hong Kang
ltaly Alliance Pharma S.r.l. Via Brerc &, 20121 Milan, Italy

Republic of lreland

Alliance Phorme {Ireland) Limited

Opus Healthcare Limited

6th Floor, South Bank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4
6th Floor, South Bank House, Barrow Street, Dublin 4

Singapore

Alliance Pharmao {Singapore} Private Limited

6 Battery Road, #10-01, Singapore (049909)

Spain

Alliance Phormaceuticals Spain SL

Paseo de la Castllana 259 C — 18th Floor, Regus Business
Center, Torre de Crista!, Madrid, ZIP Code 28044, Spain

Switzerland [Branch]

Alliance Pharmaceuticals GmbH Disseldorf

Bahnhofstrasse 37, Postfoch 2818, CH-8021 Zirich

Thailond

Alliance Pharmaceuticals {Thailand] Co., Ltd

The Ninth Tower 35th locr, 33/4, Tower A Rama 9 Road,
Huaykwang Subdistrict, Huaykwang district, Bangkok,
Thailand 10310

Englund & Wales

All Companies

Avonbridge House, Bath Road, Chippenham, Wiltshire,
SN15 2BB

Northern Ireland

Caraderm Limited

& Trevor Hill, Newry, County Down, BT34 1DN

Unless otherwise stated, the share capital comprises Ordinary shares and the ownership percentage is provided for each undertaking.
All subsidiary undertakings prepare accounts to 31 December.

Maeslor Laboratories Limited is exempt from the Companies Act 2006 requirement relating to the audit of its individual accounts by
virtue of Section 479A of the Act as this company has guaranteed the subsidiary company under Section 479C of the Act.

14. Inventories

31 December2019 31 December 2018

The Group £000s £000s
Finished goods and materials 19,089 20,544
Inventory provision (3,571) {1,838)

15,518 18,706

Inventory costs expensed through the income statement during the year were £47,926,000 [2018: £44,349,000}. During the year
£2,673,000 (2018: £1,983,000) was recognised as an expense relating to the write-down of inventories ta net realisable value,
including £1,152,000 related to the return of Xonvea licensing rights and included within non-underlying items [note 31}.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe yeor ended 31 December 2019

15. Trade and other receivables

The Group The Company
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Trade receivables 23,987 23,407 - -
Other receivables 2,522 1,083 20
Prepayments 703 1,216 15 9
Accrued income 3,780 3,442 - -
30,992 29,148 24 29

The ageing of trade receivables of the Group at 31 December is detailed below:;

31 December 2019

31 December 201

Trade and receivables, net estimated allowances for expected credit losses £000s £000s
Not past due 19,640 20,482
1-30 days pastdue 3,253 1,794
31-60 days past due 278 391
61-50 days past due 320 145
Past91 days 496 595

23,987 23,407

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Trade and receivables, gross of estimated allowances for expected credit losses £000s £000s
Not past due 19,640 20,482
1-30 days past due 3,253 1,794
31-60 days pastdue 278 391
61-920 days paost due 320 145
Post 91 days 1,495 1,463

24,986 24,275

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other receivables of £999,000 (2018: £868,000] were past due and impaired.

QOur policy requires customers to pay us in accordance with agreed payment terms. Depending on the geographical location, aur
settlement terms are generally due within 30 or 60 days from the end of the month of sale.

16. Cash and cash equivalents

The Group The Company

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Sterling 6,275 3,345 Q7 83
Euros 6,563 4,769 - -
US Dollars 2,071 1,856 - -
Other currencies 2,921 923 - -
Cash ot bank and in hand 17.830 10,893 97 83
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17. Trade and other payables

The Group The Company
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 Decernber 2018
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Trade payables 6,970 8,978 - 29
Other taxes and social security costs 3,247 1,808 - -
Accruals 10,114 10,301 225 192
Other payables 459 197 - -
Contingent consideration - 500 - -
Lease liabilities 1,025 A47 - -
21,815 22,231 225 221

Contingent consideration of £0.5m related to the Licence and Supply Agreement for the preduct Xonvea with Duchesnay Inc.
Following return of the UK and EU licensing rights to Xonvea (note 5}, this hos been waived. The waiver resulted in the release of the
contingent consideration (note 17} and the disposal of the corresponding £0.5m asset under development [note 11). Both the release
and disposal have been included within the loss on disposal, resulting in no net impact on the income statement.

18. Loans and borrowings

On 2 July 2019, the Group agreed a new £165m fully Revolving Credit Facility {'/RCF’), together with @ £50m accordion facility, with
an enlarged syndicate of lenders on improved terms, replacing the previous facility which ran through to December 2020. This has
been classified as a non-current liability {note 2.17). The bank facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the Company's

and Group’s assets registered with Companies House.

The Group The Company
31 December 2019 31 Decermnber 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Current £000s £000s £000s £000s
Bank loans due within one year or on demand:
Secured - 68,500 - -
Finance issue costs - {445) - -
- 68,035 - -
The Group The Company
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Non-current £000s £000s £000s £000s
Bank laans:
Secured 78,848 29100 - -
Finance issue costs {1,808) (433) - -
77,040 28,667 - -

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Movement in loans and borrowings £000s £000s
At 1 January 96,702 83,499
Net (payments) /receipts from borrowing {17,479) 12,187
Additional prepaid arrongement fees {1,401) (362)
Amortisation of prepaid arrangement fees 4N 384
Exchange movements® {1,273) 04
At 31 December 77,040 26,702

* Exchonge movements on loans and borrowings are reported in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation reserve
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

18. Other non-current liabilities

The Group The Company
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2019 11 December 2018
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Lease liabilities 1,997 1972 - -
Other non-curreni liabilities 404 380 - -
2,401 2,352 - -

20. Financial instruments

The Group uses finencial instruments comprising borrowings, derivatives, cash and liquid resources, and various items such as trade
receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
fiquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Board is responsible for risk management policies on managing each of
these which are summarised below

Liquidity Risk

The Group's operations are financed by retained earnings und bank borrowings, with additional equity being raised on a periodic
basis to finance larger acquisitions. Borrowings are denominated in Sterling, Euro and US Dellars. The purpose of Euro and US Dollar
borrowings are to manage the currency exposure arising from the Group's operations.

On 2 july 2019, the Group agreed a new £165m fully Revolving Credit Facility ('RCF'), together with a £50m accordion facility, with
an enlarged syndicate of lenders an improved terms, replacing the previous facility which ran through to December 2020. This new
facility is available until July 2023, with a one-year extension option, and provides flexibility for the Group to deliver carefully torgeted
acquisitions over the next few years to complement its organic growth strategy.

The RCF is drawn in short to medium-term tranches of debt which are repoyable within 12 months of draw-down, These tranches of
debt can be rolled over provided certain conditions are met, including covenant compliance. The Group considers that it is highly
unlikely it would be unable to exercise its right to roll-over the debt. This due to mitigating actions it could take to maintain compliance
with these conditions, including future covenant requirements, even in downside scenarios. The Directors therefore believe that the
Group has the ability and the intent to roll-over the drawn RCF amounts when due and consequently has presented the RCF as a non-
current liability.

The Group also has access to an overdraft facility of £4.5m.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial gross liabilities [capital and interest) ot the year-end is as follows:

31 December 2019

In more than one In more than two

yedar, but not meore years, but not more In more than
In one year or less than twe than five five years Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Trade and other payables 20,790 - - - 20,790
Bank loans™ 79,852 - - - 79,852
Interest rate swaps a7 - - - 47
Lease liabilities 1,025 17 1,339 164 3,245
101,714 7 1,339 164 103,934

' Includes an amount of £78 8m in respect of gross contractual cosh ows peyable under the RCF these are shown as due within one year or less to reflect the contractual maturity of the tranches drawn
down o1 31 December 2019 As explained above, the RCF is clossified o5 o non-currentiiability as the directors have assessed that the Group has the ability end the intent to rell-overthe drawn RCF

amounts when due
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31 December 2018

In more than one
year, but not mare

ln more than two
years, but not more

In more than

In one yeor or less than two than five five years Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Trade and other payables 21,784 - - - 21,784
Bank loans 71,382 31,526 - - 102,908
Interest rate swaps 5 - - - 5
Lease liabilities 447 307 987 678 2,419
93,618 31,833 987 678 127116

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial gross liabilities (capital and interest} at the year end is as foliows:

31 December 2019
In one year or less

£000s

31 December 2018
In one year or less
£000s

Trade and other payables

225

221

Interest rate risk

The Group's debt is provided on a floating interest rote basis. The Group uses interest rate swaps to fix the rates paid on a partien of its
debt in order to mitigate against the risks of increasing interest rates. These swaps are re-measured to fair value at each period end.

The Group has in place interest rate swaps with @ nominal value of £8m {2018: £13m) to convert the floating interest rate charge to a

fixed rate interest charge maturing in November 2020.

The Group also has a EUR 12m {2018: EUR 12m) interest rate swap to convert the floating interest rate charge to a fixed rate interest

charge maturing in November 2020,

The interest rate exposure of the financial liabilities of the Group of the period end was:

Fixed Floating Total
£000s £000s £000s

At 31 December 2019
Bank loans - Sterling denaminated - 54,792 54,792
Bank leans - Eure denominated - 13,559 13,559
Bank loans - US Dellar denominated - 10,497 10,497
Interest rate hedges — Sterling denominaled 8,000 (8,000) -
Interest rate hedges — Euro denominated 10,169 {10,169) -
Total financial liabilities 18,169 60,679 78,848
Unamortised issue costs - (1,808) {1,808)
Net book value of financial liabilities 18,169 58,87 77,040
Fixed Floating Total
£000s £000s £000s

At 31 December 2018
Bank loons - Sterling denominated - 66,187 66,187
Bank loons — Euro denominated - 16,216 16,216
Bank loans - US Dollar denominated - 15,197 15,197
interest rate hedges - Sterling denominated 13,000 {13,000) -
Interest rate hedges — Euro denominated 10,810 [10,810) -
Total financial liabilities 23,810 73,790 97,600
Unamortised issue costs - {(898) (898)
Net book value of financiol liabilities 23,810 72,892 96,702
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

20. Financial instruments continued

Interest rate risk continued

Fixed rote financial liabilities

Weighted average
Weighted average period for which

fixed rate % rate is fixed
At 31 December 2019
Sterling 3.20 0.91 years
Euros 2.16 0.91 years
At 31 December 2018
Sterling 3.20 1.97 years
Euros 2.16 1.91 years

The Sterling flaating rate barrowings bear interest at a rate based on LIBOR. The Euro floating rate borrowings bear interest at a rate
based on EURIBCOR. The US Dollar floating rate borrowings bear interest at o benchmark rate (US Dollar LIBOR).

A 0.5% increase in LIBOR would reduce pre-tax profits by approximately £0.4m in 2019. A 0.5% decrease would have the opposite
effect. A 0.5% increase or decrease in EURIBOR would have no material impact on pre-tax profits dus to the majority of the Eure
denominated debt being hedged to fixed rates. A 0.5% increase in US LIBOR would reduce pre-tax profits by approximately £0.1m in
2019, A 0.5% decrease would have the opposite effect.

Currency risk

Approximately 48% of the Group’s sales are inveiced in Euros. The Group has a level of Evro expense that naturally offsets a high
portion of the Euro sales. Approximately 16% of the Group's sales are invoiced in US Dollar, a portion of which will be used to service
the US Dollar denominated debt. The majority of other Group sales, and the majority of ather Group expenses, are denominated

in Sterling.

A 5% weakening or strengthening of Sterling against the Euro would have resulted in £1m gain or loss to EBITDA [note 33} in 2019. A
5% weakening or strengthening of Sterling against the US Dollar would have resulted in @ £0.6m gain or loss te EBITDA in 2019,

The Group is exposed to fransactional foreign currency risk to the extent thaot there is @ mismatch between the currencies in which sales,
purchases, receivables and borrowings are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Group companies. The functional
currencies of Group companies are primarily Sterling, Eure and US Dollars.

The Group's risk management policy is to hedge up to 75% of its estimated net foreign currency exposure in respect of forecast sales
and purchases for up to the next 18 months at any point in time. The Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge its
currency risk. These contracts are generally designated as cash flow hedges.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses currency denominated borrowings to hedge the exposure of a portion of its net investment in overseas operations
against changes in value due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The net invesiment hedge was tested for effectiveness during the
year and found to be effective. As the Group repays its foreign denominated borrowings the hedged paortion of the net investment

is reduced.
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Fair value measurement

The Group has adopted IFRS 13 for financial instruments that are measured in the Group balance sheet at fair value. This requires
disclosure of fair value measuremenits by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

* quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1);

* inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {that is, as prices)

or indirectly [that is, derived from prices) {Level 2); and

= inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market duta {that is, unobservable inputs) (tevel 3).

The Group's financial instruments held at fair value {or for which fair value is disclosed) in the scope of IFRS 13 are as follows:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Carrying value Carrying value

Level £000s £000s
Interest rate swaps 2 {47} (5)
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 697 -
Contingent considerction ] - {500}
650 (505)

For the other financial assets and liabilities, the carrying amount is a reascnable approximation of fair value and therefore no further
disclosure is provided. The valuation techniques vsed for instruments cotegorised in levels 2 and 3 are described below:

Interest rate swaps {Level 2)

The Group's inlerest rate swaps are not traded in active morkets. These have been fair valued using observable interest rates. The

effects of non-observable inputs are not significant for interest rate swaps.

Counterparty banks perform valuations of interest rate swaps for financial reporting purposes, determined by discounting the future

cash flows at rates determined by year end yield curves. The valuation processes and fair volue changes are discussed by the Audit

and Risk Committee and the finance team at least every half yeor, in line with the Group's reporting dates.

Forward foreign exchange contracts (Level 2)

The Group's currency rate swaps are not traded in active markets, These have been fair valued using observable currency rates. The

effects of non-abservable inputs are nat significant for currency rate swaps.

Counterparty banks perform valuations of currency rate swaps for financial reporting purposes, determined by discounting the future
cash flows at rates determined by year end spot and forward rate. The valuation processes and fair value changes are discussed by the
Audit and Risk Committee and the finance team at least every half year, in line with the Group’s reporting dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the vear ended 31 December 2019

20. Financial instruments continued
Forward foreign exchange contracts (Level 2) continved

The following table details the fareign currency forword contracts outstanding of the end of the reporting pericd. Forward foreign
exchange contract assets and liabilities are presented in ‘Derivative financial instruments’ (either as asset or as liabilities) within the
statement of financial position:

Carrying amaunt of the hedging

Average forward rate Notianal value: Foreign currency instruments assets/(liabilities)
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
rate rate $000s €000s $000s €000s £000s £000s

Sell Dollars
Less than 3 months 1.282 - 2,025 - - - 68 -
3 to 6 months 1.283 - 2,225 - - - 80 -
6to 12 months 1.272 - 5,125 - - - 232 -
1.278 - 9,375 - - - 380 -

SellEvros

Less than 3 months 1.153 - - 3,350 - - 42 -
3 to 6 months 1.144 - - 2,800 - - 102 -
6 to 12 months 1.131 - - 4,550 - - 173 -
1.143 - - 10,700 - - 37 -
9,375 10,700 - - 697 -

Contingent consideration (Level 3)

During the year £0.5m contingent consideration related to Xonvea was cancelled following the return of the UK and EU licensing rights
(note 17).

During the prior year £2m contingent consideration related to acauisition of the Vamousse brands was released.
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Level 3 fair value measurements:

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of financial instruments classified within Level 3 is as follows:

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Liabilities Liakilities

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 January 500 2,854

Cash paoid in the year - (500)
Amounis recognised in profit or lass under finance costs:

Change in fair value of contingent considerotion - (1,964)

Unwinding of discount - 40

Foreign exchange movements - 72

Xonvea contingent consideration waived (500) -

Balance at 31 December - 500

Classification of financial assets and liabilities

Group

Classification of the Group's financial assets and liabilities is set out below:

31 December 2019

31 December 2018

Financial assets £000s £000s
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 23,987 23,407
Cash ond cash equivalents 17,830 10,893
Derivative financial instruments
Used for hedging 697 E
42,514 34,300

31 December 2019

31 Pecember 2018

Financial liabiljlies £000s £000s
Financiol liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables 20,790 21,284
Leans and borrowings 77,040 946,702
Other liahilities 404 380
Lease liabilities 3,022 2,419
Derivative financial instruments
Used for Hedging 47 5
Fair Value
Contingent consideration - 500
101,303 121,290
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

20. Financial instruments continued
Company

Classification of the Company's financial instruments is set out below:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Financial assets £000s £000s

Financial assets at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables 24 G

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
Financial liabilities £000s £000s

Financiol liabilities at amortised cost

Trade and other paycbles 225 22}

Reconciliation to cashflow movements

Cashflows Naon-cash changes
Foreign Net

2018 Principal Interest exchanga® additions Amortisation Interest 2019

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Gross Loons and borrowings 27,400 (17.479) - 1,273) - - - 78,848
Prepaid arrangement fees (898) {1,401) - - - 497 - (1,808)
Accrued intergst 85 - [2,410) - - - 3 866
Lease liabilities 2,419 {726] (5] - 1,329 - 95 3,022

* Exchange movements an loans and borrowings ore reported in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the translahen reserve

Derivative financial instruments

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
[Assels)/Liabilies [Assels)/Liabilities

£000s £000s
Current portion a7 _
Non-current portion - 5
Interest rate swoap - cosh flow hedge 47 5
Current porfion (697) -
Forward exchange swap - cash low hedge (697) -

The cash flow hedges were tested for effectiveness both retrospectively and prospectively as at 31 December 2019. They were found
to be highly affective, with the ineffective element being immaterial. The hedge and interest on the bank debt are setied on a quarterly
basis on the same date and measured ogainst the same benchmark, namely fhree month Sterling LIBOR. The amount recognised
through the income statement in respect of interest rate swaps during the yeor was a charge of £103,000 (2018: £123,000). The
amount recagnised through the income statement in respect of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts during the year wos
£109.600 (2018: £nil).

21. Operating Segments

The Group is engaged in a single business activity of pharmoceuticals, The Group’s pharmaceutical business consists of the marketing
and sales of acquired products. The Group’s Board of Directors (‘the Board’} is the Group’s Chiet Operating Decision Maker
{'CODM’), as defined by IFRS 8, and all significant operating decisions are taken by the Board. |n assessing performance, the Board
reviews financial information on an integrated basis for the Group, substantially in the form of, and on the same basis as, the Group's
IFRS financial statements.

120 I Alliance Pharma plc - Annual Report and Accounts 2019



22. Deferred tax

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

The Group £000s £000s
Accelerated capite! allowances on tangible assets (468) 172)
Temporary ditferences: trading 234 108
Temporary ditferences: non-trading 662 716
Accelerated allowances on inlangible assets (10,081} (8,735]
Initial recognition of intangible assets from business combination (19,161) 19.756)
Share based payments 806 735
Interest rate hedge 8 1
Foreign exchange forward contracts {100) -
Losses - 285
{28,100) [26,818)
Recognised as:
Deferred tax asset 1,710 1,845
Deferred tax liability {29,810} {28,663)

Reconciliation of deferred tax movements:

Recognised

in other Recognised
comprehensive Recagnised inthe income
1 January 2019 income directly in equity statement 31 December 2019
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Non-current ossets
Intangible assets (28,491) - 606 {1,357} {29,242)
Property, plant and equipment {(172) - - (296) {a68)
Non-current liakilities
Derivative financial Instruments 1 (23) - - (92)
Other non-cyrrent liabilities 715 (53) - - 662
Equity
Share aption reserve 735 - 179 {108) 806
Temporary differences
Trading 108 - - 126 234
Losses 286 - - (286) -
(26,818] (146) 785 11,921) {28,100)
Recognised as:
Deferred tax asset 1,845 1,710
Deferred tax liability (28,663) (29,810}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

22. Deferred tax confinued

Recognised

inother Recognised
comprehensive Recognised in the incame 31 December
1 January 2018 income directly in equity statement 2018
The Group £000s £000s £000s £000s ECO00s
Non-current assets
Intangible assets (26,842) - [598) {1,051) {28,497
Property, plant and equipment (78) - - (94) (172)
Non-current liabilities
Derivative financial Instruments 24 (23) - - 1
Other non-current liabilities 601 14 - - 716
Equity
Share option reserve gé4 - 19) (10) 735
Temperary differences
Trading 202 - - {94) 108
losses 483 - - (197} 285
(24,746) 91 (7171 (1,448) {26,818)
Recognised as:
Deferred tox asset 2,174 1,845
Deferred tax liability {26,920) (28,663)

The Group has no unrecognised deferred tax assets (2018: £nil).

23. Share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid

MNo. of shares £000s
At 1 January 2018 - Ordinary shares of 1p each 474,989988 4,750
Issued during the year 43,224,238 432
At 31 December 2018 - Ordinary shares of 1p each 518,214,224 5182
lssued during the year 11,188,393 12
At 31 December 2019 - Ordinary shares of 1p each 529,402,619 5,294

Between 1 Jonuary 2019 and 31 December 2019 11,188,393 shares were issued on the exercise of employee share options

(2018: 5,861,601).

Cn 21 June 2018 37,362,637 shares were issued at 91.0p in the underwritten equity placing used for the acquisition of Nizoral.
This raised gross proceeds of £34m before expenses. The net addition to equity was £32.8m after the deduction of £1.2m directly

attributable expenses.

The holders of Ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

meetings of the Company.
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Potential share options commitment

Under the Group's share option scheme for employees and Directors, opfions have been granted to subscribe for shares in the
Company at prices ranging from 29.25p to 81.60p {2018:7.75p to 81.40p). Options are exercisable three years after date of grant,
butin certain instances this can be extended to five years. Options outstanding are as follows:

Exercise price 31 December 2019 31 Dacember 2018

Year of grant pence Exercise from Scheme Number (000s) Number [000s)
2009 775 2012 C50F - 44
2010 33.25and 34.25 2013 CS0P 79 1,531
201 31.00ond 3412 2074 C5CP 401 1,745
2012 29.25 2015 CSQP 126 871
2013 35.75and 37.25 2016 CS50P 1.211 1,685
2013 35.75 2018 CSOFP 450 1,683
2014 33.75 2017 CSQOFP 581 207
2015 43.75and 46.75 2078 CSOFP 2,066 3,936
2016 4400 and 47.5 2019 CSOF 514 8,638
2016 4750 2021 CS0OP 3,500 4,400
2007 53.00 2020 CSQOFP 6,260 7329
2018 81.60 2021 CSOF 6,769 7935
2009 7650 2022 CS0P 7,331 -
2019 0.00 2022 LTIP 596 -
34,484 40,714

The provision of shares to satisfy certain of the Group’s share option schemes can be facilitated by purchases of own shares by the
Group’s Employee Benefit Trust, The costs of aperating the Trust is borne by the Group but is not materiol. To date, no shares have been
purchased by the Trust for satisfoction of outstanding or future share option awards.

Managing Capital
Our objective in managing the business’s capital structure is to ensure that the Group has the financial capacity, liquidity and flexibility
to support the existing business and to fund acquisition opportunities as they arise.

The capital siructure of the Group consists of net bank debt and sharehalders’ equity. At 31 December 2019, net debt was £59.2m
(2018: £85.8m) (note 33}, whilst shareholders’ equity was £274.2m {2018: £252.2m}.

The bysiness is profitable and cash generative. The main financicl covenant applying to bank debt are that leverage [the ratio of net
bank debt to EBITDA} should not exceed 3.0 times. The Group complied with this covenant in 2019 and 2018.

Smaller acquisitions are typically financed using bank debt, while larger acquisitions typically involve o combination of bank debt and
additional equity. The mixture of debt and equity is varied, taking into account the desire to maximise the shareholder returns while
keeping leverage at comfortable levels.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

24. Share based payments

Under the Group’s share option scheme for employees and Directors, options jo subscribe for shares in the Company are granted
normally once each year. The contractual life of an option is ten years from date of grant. Generally, options granted become
exercisoble on the third anniversary of the date of grant, but in certain instances this can be extended 1o five years. Exercise of an
eption is normally subject to continued employment. Options ore valued by a third-party provider using the Black-5choles option-
pricing model.

Certain options are subject to EPS or Total Shareholder Return {TSR) accretion performance criteria, those outstanding are as follows

Exercise price 31 December2019 31 December 2018

Year of grant pence Exercise from Number (0005} Number (000s)
2013 35.75 2018 450 1,683
2014 3375 2017 204 514
2015 4375 2018 nz 581
2016 47.50 2019 875 2,557
2016 47.50 2021 3,500 4.400
2017 53.00 2020 1,358 1,804
2018 81.60 2021 2,411 2,775
2019 7690 2022 1,127 -
2019 0.00 2022 594 -
10,838 14,314

The total expense for the year relating to share-based payment plans was £1.8m (2018: £1.8m], of which £1m (2018: £1.2m) related
to equity-settled transactions and £0.8m (2018: £0.6m) related to cash-settled transactions.

Itis assumed that on average options will be exercised after five years. The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
due to publicly available information. The risk-free rate of return is based on UK Gavernment bonds of a term consistent with the
assumed option life.

The cash-settled transaction expense includes provision for social security charges based on the applicable social tax rate applied to
the number of share awards which are expected to vest, valued with reference fo the year-end share price.

The estimated total equity-settled fair value of the share options granted on 5 December 2019 was £1,237,000. The model inputs were
a market price of 76.9p, expected volatility of 30.37% and a risk-free rate of 0.58%.

Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows for the reporting periods presented:

2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
Number average price Number average prica
{0003) Pence {000s) Pence
Qutstanding at start of year 40,714 52.10 39,898 43.50
Granted 7928 76.90 8,009 81.60
Exercised {11,188} 40.30 {5.862) 35.27
Forfeited {2,970} 62.89 {1,331} 4940
Qutstanding at end of year 34,484 59.40 40,714 52.10
Exercisable of end of year 10,030 43.32 12,345 37.75

Share options were exercised throughout the financial year. Share options were exercised aof prices of between 7.75 and 53.0 pence
per share.
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25. Cash generated from operations

Graup Company

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 Decernber 2019 31 December 2018

£000Cs £000s £000s £000s

Profit for the year 25,010 18,356 12,161 2,045
Taxation 6,066 4,447 877 802
interest payable and similar charges 3,777 3,457 - -
Change in contingent consideration - 1,966) - -
Change in deferred consideration - {1,048) - -
Interest income {23) (52) {6,225) (5,066)
Foreign exchange loss/{gain} 799 {575) - 2}
Profit on dispasal of Unigreg Jeint Venture - {1,508) - -
Return of Xenvea licensing Rights 1,672 - - -
Disposal of Flammacerivm 145 - - _
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,496 1,335 - -
Amortisation and impairment of intangibles 463 6,455 - -
Impairment of Synthasia Joint Venture assets - 2,460 - -
Change in invenloties 2,036 {4,458) - -
Share of post-tax Joint Venture profits - 113) - ~
Change in trade and other receivables (498} 17.628) 5 (8]
Change in trade and other payables {3,801) 5,059 5 [38)
Share based emplayee remuneration 1,816 1,790 - -
Dividends received - - (7,596) 5,600)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 38,958 26,111 {773) (867)

26. Capital commitments
The Group had capital commitments at 31 December 2019 totalling £3,900,000 {2018- £3,560,000).

27. Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that are not probable. The Group operates in a highly regulated sector and in markets
and geographies around the world each with differing requirements. As a result, and in the normal course of business, the Group can
be subject to a number of regulatory inspections/investigations on an ongoing basis. It is therefore possible that the Group may incur
penalties for non-cemplionce. In addition, a number of the Group's brands and products are subject to pricing and other forms of
legal or regulatory restrictions from both governmental/regulatory bodies and also from third parties. Assessments as to whether or
not to recognise a provision in respect of these matters are judgemental as the matters are often complex and rely on estimates and
assumptions as to future events.

On 23 May 2019 the UK’s Competition and Markets Authority {{ CMA’) issued a Statement of Objection alleging anti-compstitive
agreements against the Group and certain other pharmaceutical companies in relafion to the sale of prescription prochlorperozine.
Prochlorperazine is one of the Group’s smaller products and had peck sales in 2015 of £1.9m and sales of less than £0.1m in 2019.

The Group confirms that it has had no involvement in the pricing or distribution of prochlorperazine since 2013, when it was out-
licensed by the Group. Prior to 2013, prochlorperazine was marketed directly by the Group.

The Group has reviewed the CMA Statement of Objection in detail and is working with the CMA to resolve its alleged objections.

The Group's assessment as af the date of this report, based on currently available infermation, is that there are no matters for which a
provision is required (31 December 2018: £nil). However, given the inherent uncertainties involved in assessing the outcomes of such
matters there can be ne assurance regarding the cutcome of any ongoing inspectians/investigations and the position could change
over time as a result of the factors referred to above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 21 December 201%

28. Pensions

The Group operates o defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of certain Directors and employees.

31 Decemnber 2019 31 December 2618
The Group £000s £000s

Contributions payable by the Group for the year 812 730

29. Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

{il Interest receivable from Unigreg was £nil (2018: £13,000).

[ii} Interest receivable from Synthasia International Company Limited was £nil (2018: £16,000].
(iii) Payments on behalf of Synthasia International Company Limited of £nil (2018: £5,000).

During the year, the Company entered into the following transactions with related parties:

The Company
Tronsaction values for Amount due from
the year ended related parties

31 December 2019 31 December 2018 31 Dacember 2019 31 Decembar 2018

£000s £000s £000s £000s
Allionce Pharmaceuticals Limited - Net funds received 974 1,070 170,056 159,568
Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited - Interest received 6,225 5066 - -
Allience Pharmaceuticals Limited - Investments during the year {4,167) {33,619) - -
Allicnce Pharmaceuticals Limited — Share based payment
recharge {1,025) {1,169} - -
Allignce Pharmaceuticals Limited - Dividend declared and
received 7,596 5,600 - -
Allionce Phormaoceuticals SAS - - - Q7
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30. Joint Ventures

Country of

z
Name Principal Aclivity Incorporation % Owned -2
——
nigreg Limite - ! : " — o}
*disposed of in the prior yeor (note 31) Distribution of pharmaceutical products to China British Virgin Istands Q
Synthasia International Company Limited Distribution of infant milk formulo preducts in China  Hong Kong 20
In 2018 the Group disposed of its interest in Unigreg Limited [note 31). Previously the Group owned 60% of the issued share capital
of Unigreg Limited. The Group considered the existence of substantive participating rights held by the minority shareholder which
provide that shareholder with o veto right over the significant financial and eperating policies of Unigreg Ltd and determined that, as a
result of these rights, the Group did not have control over the financial and operating policies of Unigreg Ltd, despite the Group’s 60% 5
ownership interests. Consequently the Company was accounted for as o Joint Venture. &
S
(s>}
The Group owns 20% of the issued share copital of Synthasia international Company Limited ['Synthasia’). The Group considered §
the existence of substantive participating rights held by both the Group and another shareholder which provide both parties with a v
veto right over the significant financial and operating policies of Synthasia and has determined that, as a result of these rights and
by exercise of judgement, Synthasia is accounted for as a Joint Venture. In accordance with IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, a Joint
Venturer shall recognise its interest in a Joint Venture as an investment and shall account for that investment using the equity method in
accordance with IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
In May 2018 the Group was notified that the import licence partner was not going to receive the required approval to import
Suprememil, the infant milk formula brand owned by Synthasia. Following subsequen discussions with the import licence partner and
Synthasia management, the Board concluded that the joint venture investment of £0.3m, and associated loan balances of £2.2m, was ¢
to be written down in full. g
>
[a}
Following the impairment further losses from the Synthasia Joint Venture have not been recognised. This is due to the Group having ne ©
obligation to fund such losses.
The carrying value of loint Ventures is as follows:
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 ”
£000s £000s ‘E
E
Synthasia International Company Limited - - 5
(7]
B
g
31 December 2019 31 December 2018 §
Trade and other recsivables £000s £000s i
Synthasia International Company Limited - -
The receivables from Synthasia International Company Limited are stated after a provision of £2.2m (2018 £2.2m).
c
b}
°
£
2
£
K
2
S
=z
)
<<
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

forthe year ended 31 December 2019

31. Disposals

Return of Xonvea Licensing Rights

In November 2019, the Group reached an agreement with Duchesnay Inc. of Canada {'Duchesnay’] to return the UK and EU ficensing
rights to Xonvea, a prescription medicine for the treatment of nousea and vomiting of pregnancy where conservative management has
failed. Under the terms of the agreement, £2m in milestone payments made to date will be paid to the Group, £0.25m having been
paid in 2019 with the balance due in 2020. Additionally, the remaining £0.5m due on inftial acquisition of Xanvea previously held as
confingent consideration has been waived as part of the agreement. This has resulted in the release of the contingent consideration
[note 17) and the disposal of the corresponding £0.5m asset under development {note 11). Both the release and disposal have been
included within the loss on disposal, resulting in no net impacs on the income statement.

The Group incurred non-ynderlying inventory provisions and ossociated restructuring costs in connection with the return of the Xonvea
rights of £1.9m. The tatal non-underlying loss on disposal was £1.7m as follows:

Return of Xenvea Licenaing Rights €000s
Milestone repayments 2,000
Net bock amount — intangible asset brand {note 11) (1,268)
Net book amount — intangible asset under development (nate 11] {1,000)
Release of contingent consideration (Note 17) 500
Inventory provisions {1.152)
Assaciated restructuring costs [752)
Non-underlying loss (1,672}

Xonvea was nof considered to represent a separate major line of business of the date of disposal. Therefore it has not been
disaggregated os o specific discontinued operation.

Disposal of Flammacerium

In December 2019, the Group sold the global rights to the brand Flammacerium for gross cash consideration of £0.75m payable
over six years, £0.10m having been paid in 2019. flammacerium is used for the prevention and treatment of infections in severe burn
wounds. The total non-ynderlying loss an disposal was £0.1m as follows:

Disposal of Flammacerium £000s
Gross cash consideration 750
Impact of discounting on cosh consideration 137)
Net book amount ~ intangible asset development costs [nate 11) (780)
Net book amaunt — gosdwill {rote 11) (33)
Associated transaction costs (25)
Non-underlying loss (145)

Disposal of Unigreg Joint Venture

On 18 April 2018 the Group sold its 60% interest in Unigreg Limited fo its joint venture partner, Pacific Glory Development Limited, for
a consideration of £2.9 million.

The consideration of £2.9 million for the Unigreg shareholding was settled with an initial payment of £2.4 million cash at completion
and a deferred payment of £0.5 million settled in 2019. In addition, all outstanding shareholder loans made by the Group to Unigreg,
totalling £1.5 million, were repaid in full prior to completion.

As at 18 April 2018 the Alliance Pharma Group's investment in Unigreg wos £1.2 million, representing the initial investment of £0.5
millien, together with unremitted profits of £0.7 million. The Group profit on disposal was £1.5 milfion [net of fees). The profit on
disposal is disclosed as @ non-underlying item [note 5.

32. Ultimate controlling party

The Company's shares are listed on the Alternative Investment Market {'AIM’) and are held widely. There is no single ultimate
controlling party.
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33. Alternative performance measures

The performance of the Group is assessed using Alternative Performance Measures ['APMs’). The Group's results are presented both

before and after non-underlying items. Adjusted profitability measures are presented excluding non-underlying items as we believe this
provides both management and investors with useful additional information about the Group's performance and aids a more effective

comparison of the Group's trading perfarmance from one period to the next and with similar businesses.

In addition, the Group’s results are described using certain other measures that are not defined under IFRS and are therefore

considered to be APMs. These measures are used by management to monitor ongoing business performance against both shorter term

budgets and forecasis but also against the Group's longer term strategic plans. APMs used to explain and moniter Group performance:

Measure

Definition

Reconciliation to GAAP
measure

Underlying
EBIT and EBITDA

Earnings before interest, tax and non-underlying items {EBIT), then depreciation,
amortisation and underlying impairment (EBITDA).

Caleulated by taking profit before tax and financing costs, excluding non-underlying
items and edding back depreciation and amortisation.

EBITDA morgin is calculated using see-though revenue.

Note A below

Free cash flow

Free cash flow is defined os cash generated from operations less cash payments made
far interest payable and similar charges, capital expenditure and tax.

Note B below

Net debt

Net debt is defined as the group’s gross bank debt position net of finance issue costs and
cash.

Note C below

Adjusted underiying
effective tax rate

Adjusted underlying effective tax rate is calculated by dividing total taxation for the year
less impact of tax rate changes and non-underlying charges, by the underlying profit
before tax for the year.

Note D below

See-through
income statement

Under the terms of the Iransitional services agreement with J&J, Alliance receives the
benefit of the net profit on sales of Nizoral from the date of acquisition up until the
product licences in the Asia-Pacific territories transfer from J&J to Alliance. The net
product margin is recognised as part of statutory revenue.

The see-through income statement recognises the underlying sales and cost of sales
which give rise to the net product margin, as management consider this tc be a more
meaningful representation of the underlying performance of the business, and to reflect
the way in which it is managed.

Note E below

Constant currency
basis revenue

Revenue stated so that the portion denominated in non-sterling currencies is retranslated
using foreign exchange rates from the previous financial year.

Note f below

Like-for-like

Revenue

Revenue stated excluding the impact of acquisitions in both the current and prier years.
This therefore excludes revenve from Nizerat to ensure comparability.

Note 3 includes
revenue by brand

A.Underlying EBIT and EBITDA

Year ended

Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Recanciliakion of Underlying EBIT and EBITDA £000s £000s
Profit before tax 31,076 22,803
Mon-underlying items {nofe 5] 1,817 5,270
Finance costs [note 8) 4,553 864
Underlying EBIT 37,446 28,937
Depreciation {note 12) 1,496 1,335
Underlying impairment {note 11) 284 1926
Amortisation (note 11) 179 211
Underlying EBITDA 39,405 32,409
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 31 December 2019

33, Alternative performance measures continued

B. Free cash flow

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Reconciliation of free cash flow £000s £000s
Cash generated from operaticns (note 25} 38,958 26,111

Interest payable and similar charges {2,505) {3,197}
Capital expenditure {4,145) {2,891)
Tax paid {3,200) {3,941)
Free cash flow 29,108 16,082

C. Net debt
31 December 2019 3] December 2018
Reconciliation of net debt MNote £000s £000s
Loans and borrowings ~ current 18 - (68,035)
leans and borrowings - non-current 8 (77,040} (28,667)
Cash and cash equivalents 16 17,830 10,893
Net debt {59.210) (85,809)
D. Adjusted underlying effective tax rate
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2019 31 Dacember 2018
Reconciliotion of adjusted underlying effective tax rote £000s £000s
Total taxation charge for the year (6,066) (4,447)
Non-ynderlying tax credit {348) {1,044)
Adjusted underlying taxation charge for the year (6,414) 15,491)
Underlying profit before tax for the year 32,893 28,073
Adjusted underlying effective tax rate 19.5% 19.6%

E. See-through income statement

2019 statutory

See-through 2019 see-through

values adjustment values
£000s £000s £000s

Revenve 135,637 8,641 144,278
Cost of sales {49,561) (8,641) {58,202)
Gross profit 86,076 - 86,076
Gross profit margin 63.5% 59.7%
2018 statutory See-through 2018 see-through

values edjustment values

£000s £000s £000s

Revenue 118,208 5,834 124,042
Cost of sales {45,560) {5,834} {51,394}
Gross profit 72,648 - 72,648
Gross profit margin 61.5% 58.6%

There is no impact from the see-through adjustment an income statement lines below gross profit,
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F. Constant currency revenue

2019

Foreign constant

exchange currency

2019 impact revenve

£000s £000s £000s

See-through revenue {Note E} 144,278 (767) 143,51
Vamousse product revenue 6,538 {237) 6,301
2018

Foraign constant

exchange currency

2008 impact revenue

£000s £000s £000s

See-through revenue (Note E) 124,042 516 124,558
Vamousse product revenue 5756 138 5,894

34, Post balance sheet events
Impact of COVID-19 coronavirus

As highlighted and discussed in the Chief Executive’s Review, the Group notes the developing situation regarding the cutbreak of the,
COVID-19 coronavirus. The Group is actively assessing and monitering this pandemic and will continue to keep the impact on the

business, and the apportunities for us minimise the ecanomic impact on our business, under review. At the date of this report we are not
yet able quantify the potential financial impact, however a range of reasonably possible scenarios have been modelfed for the purpose
of covenant compliance. Under these scenarios we are forecast to maintain compliance with future covenant requirements.
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UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Shareholder Infarmation

Shareholder enquiries

The Company’s share register is maintained by Link Asset Services ['Link’} who are responsible for updating the register, including
changes to shareholders’ names or addresses and processing off-market transfers af the Company’s shares. If you have any questions
about yaur shareholding in the Company or need to notify any changes to your persona! details you should write to Link Asset Services,
FXS1, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4ZF or telephone 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras,
lines are open 9.00am to 5.0pm Monday to Friday).

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting 18 May 2020
Interim results anncuncement 22 September 2020
Year End 31 December 2020
Preliminary announcement 23 March 2021
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 2015 31 December 2016 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2019
£m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 48.3 §7.5 101.6 18.2 135.6
Operating profit before
non-underlying items 10.6 254 25.8 28.9 37.4
Non-underlying operating items {6.3) - 4.4 {5.3) {1.8})
Operating profit 17.0 25.6 30.2 23.7 35.6
Profit before tax before
non-underlying items 1.0 222 239 28.) 32.9
Profit before tax abter non-underlying items 15.2 22.2 28.3 22.8 311
Intangible assets 2599 264.8 278.6 335.2 328.7
Tangible assets 1.0 1.8 57 76 1.6
Current assets 278 493 491 58.7 65.0
Current liabilities 318 503 461.4 1.7 24.2
Equity 162.4 179.3 203.) 252.2 274.2
Average shares in issue [millions) 2727 4694 473.8 4972 520.7
Shares in issue at period end [millions} 468.2 472.6 475.0 518.2 529.4
Earnings per share - basic {p) 4.65 385 6.08 3.69 4.80
Earnings per share — adjusted
underlying basic (p) 1.69 3.69 4.05 4.54 5.09
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

This Annual Report has been prepared for the members of the Company and no one else. The Company, its Directors, employees or
agents do nat acceps or assume responsibility to any other person in cannection with this document and any such responsibility or
liability is expressly disclaimed.

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements with respect to the principal risks and uncertainties facing Alliance.

By their nature, these stotements and forecasts involve risk and uncertainty because they relate fo evenfs and depend on circumstances
that may ar may not occur in the future. There are a number of factors that could cause actual results or developments to differ
materially from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements and forecasts. The forward-locking statements reflect
the knowledge and information available at the date of preporation of this Annual Report, and will not be updated during the year.
Nothing in this Annual Report should be construed as a prolit forecast.

The Report of the Directars in this Annual Report has been drawn up and presented in cecordance with English company low and the
liabilities of the Directors in connection with that report shall be subject to the limitations and restrictions provided by such law.

In particular, Directors would be ligble to the Company (but not to any third party) if the Report of the Directors contains errors as a
resull of recklessness or knowing misstatement or dishonest concealment of o material fact, but would not otherwise be liable.
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ABPI

AGM

CEOQ

CFO

CMO

ERP

FDA

EHP

IHP

IPHA

J&J

LRQA

LSAS

MDR

MHRA

NPI

oTC

SECR

S&QP

VPAS

GLOSSARY

Association of the British Phormaceutical Industry

Annual General Meeting

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Finance QOfficer

Contract Manufacturer

Enterprise Resource Planning

US Food and Drug Administration

Essential Health Pack

International Health Partners

Itish Pharmaceutical Healthcare Association

Johnson and Johnson

Lloyds Register Quality Assurance

Labour Standard Assurance System

Medical Device Regulation

Medicines and Heualthcare products Regulatory Agency

MNew Product Introduction

Over the Counter

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting regulations

Sales and Operations Planning

Voluntary Pricing and Access Scheme
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